
 
Page 1 of 4 

September 17, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

 
ALLEN OWEN  
Mayor 
 
JERRY WYATT 
Councilmember at Large Position 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON  
Councilmember at Large Position 2 
  

                                                    the show me city 
 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember District A 
  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 
Notice is hereby given of a meeting of the City Council of Missouri City to be held on Monday, September 
17, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. at: City Hall, Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, 
Texas, 77489, for the purpose of considering the following agenda items.  All agenda items are subject to 
action.  The City Council reserves the right to meet in a closed session on any agenda item should the need 
arise and if applicable pursuant to authorization by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – The Pledge of Allegiance will be led by Fire Chief Eugene Campbell.   
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS – There are no Presentations and Recognitions on this 

agenda. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
An opportunity for the public to address City Council on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda-

-those wishing to speak must complete the orange comment card, present the comment card to the City 
Secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting, and observe a three-minute time limit. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

(a) City Manager announcements. 
 
(b) Presentation of the Missouri City Fire and Rescue Services Department annual report. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
All consent agenda items listed are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 

one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a councilmember so requests; in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on 
the agenda.  Information concerning consent agenda items is available for public review. 

 
(a) Consider approving the minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of 

September 4, 2018, and the special City Council meetings of September 5, 2018, and 
September 10, 2018. 

 
(b) Consider an ordinance amending the standards and regulations contained in the specific use 

permit for River Pointe Church to allow for the development of a fellowship pavilion and 
exterior sign; providing for an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan; providing a penalty; 
and consider the ordinance on the second and final reading. The subject site is located north 
of Knights Court, south of Colony Lakes, east of Elkins High School and west of the center at 
Knights Court Shopping Center. 

 



 
Page 2 of 4 

September 17, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

(c) Consider an ordinance amending the regulations and restrictions of PD Planned Development 
District No. 88 pertaining to fence regulations for the Dry Creek Village residential subdivision; 
providing for an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan; providing a penalty; and consider 
the ordinance on the second and final reading. The subject site is located within PD No. 88, 
south of Lake Olympia Parkway, east of the Olympia Estates and Vicksburg residential 
subdivisions, and west of the Fort Bend Parkway. 

 
(d) Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 18, Businesses, of the Missouri City Code; 

amending regulations relating to mobile food units; providing a penalty; and consider the 
ordinance on the second and final reading. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTIONS  

(a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances – There are no Zoning Public Hearings and 
Ordinances on this agenda. 
 

(b) Public Hearings and related actions 
(1) Public hearing to receive comments for or against the proposed levy of assessments 

on certain residential lots within Section 8, Lake Shore Harbour subdivision, for public 
improvements in Public Improvement District No. 2; and consider an ordinance levying 
the same on the first of two readings. 

 
(2) Public hearing to receive comments concerning the City of Missouri City, Texas budget 

for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2018, and ending on September 30, 2019; 
making appropriations for the City for such fiscal year as reflected in said budget; 
adopting a projection for Capital Improvement Program spending beginning October 
1, 2019, and ending September 30, 2023; adopting pay structures and an incentive 
and certification pay plan within such budget for non-exempt personnel, exempt 
personnel, fire personnel, and police personnel; making certain findings; containing 
certain provisions relating to the subject; and consider the ordinance on the first and 
final reading. 

 
(3) Second and final public hearing to receive comments regarding the City’s proposed 

tax rate of up to $0.63000. 
 
(4) Public hearing to receive comments regarding the proposed groundwater pumpage 

fee recommended by the Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee. 
 

8. APPOINTMENTS  
(a) Consider nominating and casting votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League 

Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees. 
 

9. AUTHORIZATIONS  
(a) Consider authorizing the execution of an interlocal agreement with the Fort Bend County 

Sheriff’s Office for housing county officers in a City of Missouri City facility. 
 
(b) Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for sidewalk construction and 

repair services. 
 
(c) Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for pavement construction and 

repair services. 
 
(d) Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for concrete pavement lifting 

services. 



 
Page 3 of 4 

September 17, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

 
(e) Consider authorizing an interlocal agreement with the City of Stafford for the use of the 

Missouri City Animal Shelter. 
 
(f) Consider authorizing the request by Farmers Market Partners to host a farmers market on the 

first and third Saturday of each month at 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway.  
 

10. ORDINANCES  
(a) Consider an ordinance amending the general budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, 

and ending September 30, 2018; transferring various appropriations among accounts; 
appropriating supplemental revenue to various fund accounts; authorizing the appropriate city 
official to take steps necessary to accomplish such transfers; making certain findings; 
containing certain provisions relating to the subject; and consider the ordinance on the first 
and final reading. 

 
11. RESOLUTIONS  

(a) Consider a resolution amending the bylaws for the Missouri City Parks Foundation. 
 

12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
Discussion, review, and possible action regarding a meeting or activity of one or more of the following 

entities (each entity refers to a City of Missouri City entity unless otherwise indicated):  
Charter Review Commission, Community Development Advisory Committee, Construction Board of 
Adjustments, Electrical Board, Parks Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone Boards, Fort Bend Chamber of Commerce, Houston-Galveston Area Council, Fort Bend Regional 
Council, Texas Municipal League, Fort Bend County, Harris County, Gulf Coast Building and Construction 
Trades Council, Mayor’s Youth Commission, Finances and Services Committee, Fort Bend Leadership 
Forum, Fort Bend County Drainage District, Economic Development Committee, Missouri City Parks 
Foundation, Missouri City Police and Fire Auxiliary, Livable Community Committee, Texas Parkway Alliance, 
High Performance Organization Committee, Missouri City Juneteenth Celebration Foundation, Fort Bend 
County Mayor and Council Association, METRO, Planning, Development and Infrastructure Committee, Fort 
Bend Independent School District, Greater Fort Bend Economic Development Coalition, Transportation 
Policy Council, Community Development Advisory Committee, Veterans Memorial Committee, Missouri City 
Recreation and Leisure Local Government Corporation, Missouri City Development Authority, and the 
Greater Houston Partnership and Emergency Management updates. 
 
13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council may go into Executive Session regarding any item posted on the Agenda as 
authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
14. RECONVENE 

Reconvene into Regular Session and Consider Action, if any, on items discussed in Executive 
Session. 
 
15. ADJOURN 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Missouri City will provide for 
reasonable accommodations for persons attending City Council meetings.  To better serve you, 
requests should be received 24 hours prior to the meetings.  Please contact Maria Jackson, City 
Secretary, at 281.403.8686. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 



 
Page 4 of 4 

September 17, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

I certify that a copy of the September 17, 2018, agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was 
posted on the City Hall bulletin board on September 13, 2018, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

______________________________________ 
Yomara Frias, City Secretary Department 

 
I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was removed by 
me from the City Hall bulletin board on the ____ day of ________________, 2018. 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________                      Title:  ______________________________ 

 



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 17, 2018 

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – The Pledge of Allegiance will be led by Fire Chief Eugene Campbell.   
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS – There are no Presentations and Recognitions on this 

agenda. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
An opportunity for the public to address City Council on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda-

-those wishing to speak must complete the orange comment card, present the comment card to the City 
Secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting, and observe a three-minute time limit. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

(a) City Manager announcements. 
 
(b) Presentation of the Missouri City Fire and Rescue Services Department annual report. 
 

 

 
 



 

 
Page 1 of 1 

September 4, 2018 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 

 

 
ALLEN OWEN  
Mayor 
 
JERRY WYATT 
Councilmember at Large Position 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Councilmember at Large Position 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember District A 
  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in special session on Tuesday, September 4, 2018, 
at the City Hall, Council Conference Room, 2nd Floor, behind the Council Chamber, 1522 Texas Parkway, 
Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Owen called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 

Those also present: Councilmembers Wyatt, Preston, Boney, Maroulis, and Emery; City Manager Snipes, 
City Secretary Jackson, Assistant City Manager Atkinson, Assistant City Manager Elmer, Director of Parks 
and Recreation Mangum, Director of Public Works Kumar, Director of Communications Walker, Interim 
Director of Finance Clarkson, Fire Chief Campbell, Assistant City Attorney Quintal, Assistant City Attorney 
Santangelo, and Police Sergeant Doench.  Also present: Frank Hester, Renee Yan, Monica Riley, and Angie 
Wierzbicki.  Mayor Pro Tem Ford arrived at 6:09 p.m.  Absent:  City Attorney Iyamu. 
 
Councilmember Emery moved to take agenda item 2b out of order.  Councilmember Wyatt seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 
See agenda item 2b for action taken. 
 
2. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION 

(a) Budget work session to discuss Council priorities and the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.  
 
City Manager Snipes presented on City Council priorities and the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.  
 

(b) Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) overview.   
 
Assistant City Manager Elmer presented an overview of the 2019 Capital Improvements Program.  
Councilmember Maroulis asked if the parking lot lines stripes at Municipal Court would be replaced soon.  
Elmer stated it was included as part of the bond package and would be done this year.  Director Mangum 
spoke about the funding received to build a new playground at Roane Park.   
 
3. ADJOURN 

The special City Council meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m.  
 
  ATTEST: 
   
                                                                   

Allen Owen, Mayor  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 

 
Page 1 of 3 

September 4, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

ALLEN OWEN  
Mayor 
 
JERRY WYATT 
Councilmember at Large Position 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON  
Councilmember at Large Position 2 
  

                                                    the show me city 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember District A 
  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in regular session on Tuesday, September 4, 2018, 
at the City Hall, Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 7:00 p.m. 
to consider the following: 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

Mayor Owen called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 

Those also present: Councilmembers Wyatt, Preston, Boney, Maroulis, and Emery; City Manager Snipes, 
Assistant City Attorney Quintal, and City Secretary Jackson. Mayor Pro Tem Ford arrived at 7:26 p.m.  
Absent: City Attorney Iyamu.   
 
2. The PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Assistant City Manager Atkinson.   
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

Chief Berezin and Officer Ibanez recognized Police K-9, Hektor, on his retirement and for his years 
of service with the City of Missouri City.  Mayor Owen and Cory Stottlemyer recognize Boy Scout Luke Parker 
and the Scouts in Troop 828 for creating outdoor recreational equipment for the pets at the Missouri City 
Animal Services shelter.  Mayor Owen and Health Inspector Abraham presented the Clean Restaurant Award 
to local establishments.  Community Resource Unit presented on National Night Out events. 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

William McMullen, 2103 Quail Valley East Drive, expressed concerns with the new fee structure at 
StaMo Park and the poor condition of the StaMo complex.  McMullen stated the City increased fees but not 
the service.   
 
Jana McMullen, 2103 Quail Valley East Drive, expressed concerns regarding new fee structure at StaMo 
Park.    
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

City Manager Snipes provided hurricane season updates.  He announced the upcoming Fiscal Year 
2019 budget meeting dates as follows: budget overview on September 10; first public hearing on September 
13; and, second hearing of the proposed tax rate on September 17.  Snipes congratulated the Parks and 
Recreation Department who received a competitive KaBoom! grant for new playground in Roane Park.  He 
stated the METRO community connector launched on August 27.  Snipes announced the following upcoming 
events: Police Department Car Seat Inspection event on September 6; Free Skills and Drills Lacrosse Clinic 
on August 25 with a second session on September 15; Second Annual Employee Conference on September 
14; Community Connection Forum on September 18; Second Annual Oktoberfest on September 22; Job Fair 
& Career Development Forum on September 28; 2018 National Night Out on October 2; and, Community 
Night Out on October 6.  Snipes highlighted the following events: grand opening of Baskin-Robbins on August 
25 and Sugar’s Cajun Cuisine on August 30.  Snipes recognized Cory Stottlemyer for his contributions to the 
City during his five years of service.   
  



 

 
Page 2 of 3 

September 4, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
(a) Consider approving the minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of August 

20, 2018, and the special meeting minutes of August 27, 2018, and August 29, 2018. 
(b) Consider an ordinance changing the name of Lakeshore Harbour Boulevard, a public street 

located in the City of Missouri City, Texas, to Trammel Fresno Road; and consider the 
ordinance on the second and final reading. 

 
Councilmember Emery moved to approve the Consent Agenda pursuant to recommendations by City Staff.  
Councilmember Maroulis seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTIONS  

(a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances 
(1) Public hearing to receive comments for or against a request to amend the standards 

and regulations contained in the specific use permit for River Pointe Church to allow 
for the development of a fellowship pavilion and exterior sign; providing for an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan; providing a penalty; and consider a related 
ordinance on the first of two readings. The subject site is located north of Knights 
Court, south of Colony Lakes, east of Elkins High School and west of the center at 
Knights Court Shopping Center. 

 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to open the public hearing at 7:54 p.m.  Councilmember Boney seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Planner II White presented on a request by Dean King to amend the standards and regulations contained in 
ordinance O-15-62 to allow for the development of a fellowship pavilion.  White stated they received positive 
recommendation to move forward from the Planning and Zoning Commission and staff.   
 
Councilmember Emery moved to close the public hearing at 7:56 p.m.  Councilmember Wyatt seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Councilmember Emery moved approve the ordinance.  Councilmember Boney seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

(2) Public hearing to receive comments for or against a request to amend the regulations 
and restrictions of PD Planned Development District No. 88 pertaining to fence 
regulations for the Dry Creek Village residential subdivision; providing for an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan; providing a penalty; and consider a related 
ordinance on the first of two readings. The subject site is located within PD No. 88, 
south of Lake Olympia Parkway, east of the Olympia Estates and Vicksburg residential 
subdivision, and west of the Fort Bend Parkway. 

 
Councilmember Wyatt moved to open the public hearing at 7:57 p.m. Councilmember Boney seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Planning Manager Gomez presented on a request to amend the regulations and restrictions of PD, Planned 
Development District No. 88 pertaining to fence regulations for the Dry Creek Village residential subdivision.  
Gomez stated staff recommended approval to allow for the construction of the fence with two conditions: the 
fence should meet the color requirements for primary material permitted colors; and, the masonry pilasters 
should meet the requirements of Section 14.3.  The Planning and Zoning Commission forward a negative 
recommendation due to the color chosen.  Gomez noted the developer has proposed alternative colors.  
Mayor Pro Tem Ford inquired on the lifespan of the vinyl.  David Glunt, the applicant, stated it had a lifetime 
warranty or 30 years.  Councilmember Wyatt requested that the applicant note his color preference.  Glunt 
stated they would like earth tones such as browns and umber rust. 



 

 
Page 3 of 3 

September 4, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Councilmember Wyatt moved to close the public hearing at 8:07 p.m. and approve the ordinance with the 
umber rust vinyl fence color as the primary material color.  Councilmember Maroulis seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
There were no Public Hearings and related actions, APPOINTMENTS or AUTHORIZATIONS. 
 
10. ORDINANCES 

(a) Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 18, Businesses, of the Missouri City Code; 
amending regulations relating to mobile food units; providing a penalty; and consider the 
ordinance on the first of two readings. 

 
Director of Development Services Spriggs discussed the proposed ordinance amendments to Division 5, 
Article II, of Chapter 18, Businesses, of the Missouri City Code, which provide regulations pertaining to mobile 
food units.  The regulation was proposed to allow the director to review and consider applications that satisfy 
reasonable distance requirements regarding hand-washing facilities, and operational requirements of mobile 
food units (MFU’s) that do not constitute a substantial hazard to public health or public safety.  The proposed 
text amendment changes provide flexibility in the regulations regarding location(s) where the MFU’s could 
be in operation in proximity to other units and facilities; and, provides for deviations of deficiencies that would 
not constitute substantial hazard to public health or public safety.  Councilmember Wyatt noted the proposed 
amendments do not change where mobile trucks would be allowed. He also inquired if it allows the fire 
marshal to make such determination.  Spriggs stated the fire marshal would make determinations based on 
their evaluation. 
 
Councilmember Wyatt moved to adopt the ordinance.  Councilmember Maroulis seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
There were no RESOLUTIONS. 
 
12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councilmember Preston gave kudos to the Animal Services team for a successful Animal Shelter 
open house event.  Councilmember Emery spoke about the upcoming Missouri City Police Department golf 
tournament.  Councilmember Maroulis stated it was good to see the clean restaurant awards and that we 
need to go support them.  Councilmember Boney noted his excitement as residents took advantage of the 
new METRO service.  Mayor Owen stated 102 residents used the METRO service first week.  He also noted 
City Council would have a joint meeting with the Fort Bend County Independent School District on September 
5 and that enrollment would be taking place at Houston Community College.   
 
13. ADJOURN 

The regular City Council meeting adjourned at 8:16 p.m. 
 

  ATTEST: 
   
                                                                                            

Allen Owen, Mayor  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 
Page 1 of 1 

September 5, 2018 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

 
ALLEN OWEN  
Mayor 
 
JERRY WYATT 
Councilmember at Large Position 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Councilmember at Large Position 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember District A 
  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in special session on Wednesday, September 5, 
2018, at the Emergency Operations Training Room, 3845 Cartwright Road, Missouri City, Texas, 77459, at 
5:00 p.m. to consider the following: 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Owen called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  
 

Those also present: Councilmembers Wyatt, Maroulis, and Emery; City Manager Snipes, City Secretary 
Jackson, Assistant City Manager Atkinson, Assistant City Manager Elmer, Fire Chief Campbell, First 
Assistant City Attorney Way, Assistant City Attorney Santangelo, IT Specialist II Rooda, and Community 
Relations Coordinator Matte.  Councilmember Boney arrived at 5:13 p.m.  Absent: Mayor Pro Tem Ford, 
Councilmember Preston, and City Attorney Iyamu.   
 
Also present from Fort Bend Independent School District (ISD): Board President Burdine, Board Secretary 
Rosenthal, Board Member Rice, Board Member George, and Board Member Tassin; Superintendent Dupre, 
Board Counsel Morris, Chief of Schools Rodriguez, Chief of Staff and Strategic Planning Martinez, Chief 
Information Officer Pham, and Chief Operations Officer Mr. Perez.  Vice President Heyliger arrived at 5:40 
p.m. 
 
2. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION 

(a) Discuss coordination of planning for City and Fort Bend Independent School District growth. 
 
Mayor Owen and Board President Burdine began discussions with opening remarks.  Discussions continued 
to acknowledge mutual beliefs of an ongoing partnership committed to the success of Fort Bend ISD growth, 
students, and the City of Missouri City.  Councilmember Maroulis left the City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

(b) Discuss legislative priorities for the 86th Legislative Session. 
 
Board Member Rice discussed school finances.  City Manager Snipes and Board Member Tassin went over 
the proposed legislative priorities for the 86th Legislative Session. 
 
3. ADJOURN 

The special City Council meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
  ATTEST: 
   
                                                                   

Allen Owen, Mayor  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 
Page 1 of 1 

September 10, 2018 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 

 

 
ALLEN OWEN  
Mayor 
 
JERRY WYATT 
Councilmember at Large Position 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Councilmember at Large Position 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember District A 
  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in special session on Monday, September 10, 
2018, at the City Hall, Council Conference Room, 2nd Floor, behind the Council Chamber, 1522 Texas 
Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 5:30 p.m. to consider the following: 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Councilmember Wyatt called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Those also present: Councilmembers Preston, Boney, Maroulis, and Emery; City Manager Snipes, City 
Attorney Iyamu, City Secretary Jackson, Assistant City Manager Atkinson, Director of Human 
Resources/Organizational Development Williams, Interim Director of Financial Services Clarkson, Director 
of Communications Walker, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager Alexander, and Senior Budget Analyst 
Aaron.  Absent: Mayor Owen and Mayor Pro Tem Ford.  
 
2. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION 

(a) Discuss the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 budget. 
 
City Manager Snipes discussed the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.  
 

(b) Update on the compensation and benefits study. 
 
Director of Human Resources/Organizational Development Williams presented an update on the 
compensation and benefits study.  Councilmember Preston left the City Council meeting at 5:58 p.m. 
 
3. ADJOURN 

The special City Council meeting adjourned at 6:21 p.m.  
 
  ATTEST: 
   
                                                                   

Allen Owen, Mayor  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(b) River Pointe Church Missouri City – SUP #197 Amendment  
  
Submitted by:  Thomas K. White Jr.,  Planning II 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This is the second and final reading of an ordinance to amend the standards and regulations contained in 
ordinance O-15-62, pertaining to SUP #197, a request by Dean King, Executive Pastor, River Pointe 
Community Church, to allow for the development of a fellowship pavilion; and to the extent such rezoning 
does not deviate from the Future Land Use and Character map of the Comprehensive Plan, to provide for 
an amendment therefrom. 
 
The subject site is located north of Knights Court, south of Colony Lakes, east of Elkins High School and 
west of the center at Knights Court Shopping Center. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND & SYNOPSIS 
 
River Pointe Church was founded in December 1996 with five families and has since grown with over 4,000 
members and worship services conducted at three locations – Richmond, Houston and Missouri City. After 
operating from school auditoriums in its early years, River Pointe Church moved into a permanent campus 
in Richmond in 1995. Worship services have been held at the Missouri City location at Elkins High School. 
 
In 2015, Ordinance O-15-62 pertaining to SUP, Specific Use Permit #197 was approved to allow for the 
church to construct its permanent campus just adjacent to the Elkins High School campus. Ordinance O-15-
62 allowed for the place of assembly as well as certain architectural, landscaping and sign regulations that 
took into consideration the significant portion of the site that would be encumbered for drainage and detention 
purposes.  
 
Construction on the Missouri City campus is now underway, beginning in April 2018.  
 
The applicant has submitted this request to allow for certain deviations from the city’s architectural design 
standards in the future construction of a fellowship pavilion to be located on the campus. 
 
As part of this application, a 41-foot tall climber visual structure piece is proposed, similar to the one displayed 
at the original campus in Richmond TX; it would considered as signage and meets the building height 
requirement allowance for SD. Presently the city does not have a code pertaining to art.  
 
City Council approved the ordinance on first reading with no changes. 
 
 
 



 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Ordinance O-15-62 
3. Application 
4. Pavilion example images 
5. Ortho map  
6. Notice of public hearing 
7. Rezoning application protest letters analysis  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance on the final reading. 
 
Director Approval:   Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Development Services Director 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Scott Elmer, P.E., Assistant City Manager 
 



 

River Point SUP Ordinance Amendment 2018.doc       Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AMENDING A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT AUTHORIZING THE USE OF AN 18.90-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY AS A SPECIFIC USE-
PLACES OF ASSEMBLY; DESCRIBING SAID 18.90-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND; PROVIDING LIMITATIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND CONDITIONS ON 
SUCH SPECIFIC USE; REFERENCING A SITE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 
CERTAIN CONSTRUCTION ACCORDING TO SAID PLAN; AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY; PROVIDING 
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

 
*         *                  *                 *       * 

 
 WHEREAS, River Pointe Community Church, is the owner of an 18.90-acre tract of 
land within the corporate limits of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Property presently has a zoning classification of SD suburban 
district under Ordinance No. O-81-1, adopted on January 19, 1981, and is subject to 
Specific Use Permit No. 197 under Ordinance No. O-15-62, adopted on November 16, 
2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, the owner’s agent, Dean King of River Pointe Church, has made 
application to the City of Missouri City for an amendment to the specific use permit 
authorizing the use of said Property as a  Specific Use-Places of Assembly; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City 
of Missouri City have each conducted, in the time and manner and after the notice 
required by law and the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance, a public hearing on such 
proposed specific use permit; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has issued its final report and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City now deems it appropriate to grant such 
requested specific use permit; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 
hereby found to be true and correct. 
 

Section 2.  As required by law, the City Council of the City of Missouri City 
conducted the public hearing on the request to amend the specific use permit and closed 
the public hearing prior to the final adoption of this Ordinance. 

 



 

River Point SUP Ordinance Amendment 2018.doc       Page 2 of 4 

Section 3.   The Property is more fully described in the legal description in Exhibit 
“A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, and is depicted in Exhibit “A-
1,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.  Exhibit “A-1” shall be for 
reference purposes only.  In the event that Exhibit “A-1” conflicts with Exhibit “A,”  Exhibit 
“A” shall prevail. 

 
 Section 4.  The specific use of the Property authorized and permitted by this 
Ordinance is Places of Assembly. 
 
 Section 5.  The specific use authorized and permitted by this Ordinance shall be 
developed in accordance with the Missouri City Code and the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance and shall be developed in accordance with the site plan, Exhibit “B,” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, and as specifically set forth herein and 
subject to the following limitations, restrictions, and conditions: 
 
I. Use Permitted.  The following specific use shall be permitted: 
 
 Places of Assembly 
 
II. Standards and Regulations. 
   

A. Architectural Design Standards.  Except as provided herein, the 
requirements of Section 7A, Architectural Design Standards, of the 
City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply.   

 
1. The use of visible pitched roofs or architectural elements with 

visible pitched roofs is not required for the accessory structure 
consisting of a pavilion.  

 
2. Except as provided herein, buildings may be constructed as 

depicted and described on Exhibit “C,” Elevations. Concrete 
masonry block materials may be used for the building to be 
located beneath the pavilion as described and depicted in the 
River Pointe Church Missouri City Campus Elevations, Drawing 
Number SUP 1.00, set forth in Exhibit “D”. Such building may be 
visible from a street or driveway used by the general public and is 
not required to have a pitched roof element.   

 
B. Landscaping regulations.  Except as provided herein, the 

requirements of Section 11, Landscaping, of the City of Missouri City 
Zoning Ordinance shall apply.  

 
1. The number and location of planting islands and diamonds may be 

provided as depicted on Exhibit “B”, Site Plan, provided that the 
requirements of subsection 11.5.A of the City of Missouri City 
Zoning Ordinance are met.   



 

River Point SUP Ordinance Amendment 2018.doc       Page 3 of 4 

 
 
C. Sign regulations.  Except as provided herein, the sign regulations for 

nonresidential districts contained in Section 13, Sign Regulations, of 
the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply.   

  
1.  The requirements of subsection 13.12.G.5 of the City of Missouri 

City Zoning Ordinance do not apply provided that a monument 
sign shall be constructed as provided and depicted on Exhibit “E,” 
Monument Sign. 

 
2. The sign depicted in Exhibit “F” is allowed.   

 
D.  Trash disposal regulations.  Except as provided herein, the trash 

disposal regulations contained in Subsection 9.14, Trash disposal 
regulations, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

 
1. The trash disposal regulations for nonresidential zones, 

specifically LC-3 retail districts, shall apply. 
 
E. Outside placement, storage, sales and services regulations.  

Outside placement, storage, sales, and services are prohibited, 
except during the place of assembly’s festivals and permitted special 
events. 

 
F. Development Schedule.  This Ordinance shall expire on the fifth 

anniversary of the date the first specific use permit application was 
filed, provided no progress has been made toward the completion of 
this project.  

 
 Section 6.  The Zoning District Map of the City of Missouri City shall be revised and 
amended to show the specific use permitted on said 18.90 acres of land as provided in 
Section 3 hereof, with the appropriate reference thereon to the number and effective date 
of this Ordinance and a brief description of the nature of the changes.  
 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall in no manner amend, change, supplement, or 
revise any provision of any ordinance of the City of Missouri City, Texas, save and except 
the change in the specific use of the land described in Section 3 hereof authorizing the 
Specific Use-Places of Assembly and the imposition of the limitations, restrictions, and 
conditions contained herein. 

 
Section 8. Comprehensive plan deviation. To the extent this Ordinance 

represents any deviation from the Future Land Use and Character map of the City of 
Missouri City Comprehensive Plan, such map is hereby amended to conform with this 
Ordinance. 

  



 

River Point SUP Ordinance Amendment 2018.doc       Page 4 of 4 

Section 9.   Repeal.  Ordinance No. O-15-62, adopted on November 16, 2015, is 
hereby repealed. Any ordinance or any part of any other ordinance in conflict herewith 
shall be and is hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 

  
Section 10. Penalty.  Any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, 

company, or organization of any kind who or which violates any provision of this zoning 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be 
fined in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day during which 
said violation shall exist or occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The owner or 
owners of any property or of premises where any violation of this zoning ordinance shall 
occur, and any agent, contractor, builder, architect, person, or corporation who shall assist 
in the commission of such offense shall be guilty of a separate offense unless otherwise 
prohibited by law and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as above provided. 

 
Section 11.  Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, 

phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any 
person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance 
as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it 
would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any 
such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more 
parts. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 4th day of September, 2018. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 17th day of 

September, 2018. 
 

 
______________________________ 

       Allen Owen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ______________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 

 
 
 
  







S
A

IL
O

R
'S

 W
A

Y

CORAL TREE PL

P
E

N
IN

S
U

L
A

S
 D

R

S
T
A

T
E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

P
IG

E
O

N

M
A

G
N

O
L
IA

D
E
S
E
R

T
 R

O
S
E

 P
L

B
R

O
O

K
 C

T

PORTUGUESE

COLONY BEND LN

HAW

S
P

R
IN

G

M
O

SS
D

R

M
Y

R
T

L
E

L
N

O
Y

STER
C

REEK
P
L
A

C
E

D
R

WE

W
P

L

O
Y

STER CREEK VILLAGE DR

FERN
M

EADOW
DR

M
E
A

D
O

W
P

O
N

D
D

R

M
EA

D
O

W

VISTA CT

P
E

N
I
N

S
U

L
A

S
D

R A
C

A
CIA PL

OYSTER
C

R
EEK

PLACE DR

KNIGHTS CT

K
N

IG

H
T
S

C
T

BREAKER CT

P
O

R
T

U
G

U
E

S
E

B
E

N

D
DR

P
E

N
IN

S
U

L
A

S
D

R

CICADA DR

P
E
N

IN
SU

LAS
DR

BEND CT

ABALONE

COVE

H
A

R
B

O
U

R
 P

L

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

W
ILD PEA CH PL

WILD PEACH

P
L
.

L
A

K
E

O
L
Y

M
PIA

PK
W

Y

M
EA

D
O

W

V
I
S

T
A

D
R

PLANTATION LAKES DR

P
A

L
M

E
R

P

B
R

IG
H

T
S

B
E

N

C
R

O
W

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 D
R PLA

N
TA

TIO
N

LAKES DR

PEN
IN

SU
LA

 P
L

K
E

N
S

T
O

N
 P

L

L
A

K
E

SID
E

VILLA
G

E
D

S
T
A

T
E

 H
W

Y
 6

C
A

P
T

A
IN

S
 C

T

C
O

V
E

F
IS

H
E

R
M

A
N

'S

FOUR WINDS DR
KEN

W
ICK

 ST

H
A

R
V

E
S

T
E

R

L
N

TU
R

N
IN

G
 R

O
W

 LN

PLA
N

TER
S V

IEW
 LN

PLA
N

TER
S V

IEW
 LN

TU
RN

IN
G

 R
O

W
 LN

LA
K

E O
LY

M
PIA

 PK
W

Y

O
IL

F
IE

L
D

 R
D

B
E
T

H
A

N
Y

B
A

Y
D

R

S
H

A
D

Y
S

ID
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

F
O

Y
E

R
 C

IR

M
O

O
N

B
E

A
M

 C
I R

C
O

L
O

N
Y

 V
I E

W
 L

N

C
O

L
O

N
Y

PLY
M

O
U

T
H

P
O

IN
T
E

L
N

HARBOUR COVE CIR

STA CIR

SHADY BAY LN

BELMONT

SHORE CT

PO
INT LN

CARAVEL CIR

ALEXIS TATE
CIR

R
H

O
D

E
S

 C
T

C
A

R
A

V
E

L
 L

N

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

R
A

V
E
L
 C

T

S
 G

O
L

D
 R

IV
E

R
 C

IR

O
A

K
 B

A
Y

 C
IR

P
A

R

A
D

IS
E

R
IV

E
R

D
R

S
A

B
L

E
R

I
V

E
R

D
R

OILFIELD RD

B
E

L
M

O
N

T
S

H
O

R
E

L
N

LOUPE
LN

LOUPE

CT

C
A

R
A

V
E

L
 L

N

B
E
N

D
 C

IR
RO C

K
Y

C
R

E
E
K

D
R

S
IE

N
N

A
R

A
N

C
H

R
D

JA DE
COVE LN

LD CT

E B
B

L
E

B
L

U
F

F
L

N

CTFALLSBROOK

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

TURTLE
SPRIN

G
S

L
N

WALDEN

PARK LN

H
E

A
T

H
R

IV
E

R
L

N

FIEL

D
B

R
I
A

R
L

N

BLUFFST
O

N
E

C
T

F

NGS
B

R
O

K
E

N

PIN
E

C
T

C
O

V
E

C
T

O
Y

S
T

E
R

C
R

E
E

K
P

DOVER 

BLUFF LNSWEET GLEN

CT

B
R

A
N

T

H
A

R
B

O
R

 L
N

H
E

A

T
H

RIVER LN

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

T
W

IN
R

I
V

E
R

S
L

N

ORCHARD SPRINGS CT

B
E

A
C

O
N

 S
P

R
I
N

G
S

 L
N

SAWYER BEND LN

HUNTERS GATE CT

PEACH 

CREEK LN

SUMMIT 

SPRINGS LN

L
IN

D
E

N
R

O
S

E
L

N

CREEKSTONE CROSSING
DR

SERRANO 

VALLEY LN

G
R

A
N

IT
E

F
A

L
L

S
L

N

R
IS

I
N

G
W

A
L

K
L

N

S
L

A
T

E
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

T

S
T

A
G

E
 S

T
O

N
E

 L
N

BENDING KEY CT

SENIOR RD

T
W

I
N

R
IV

E
R

S
LN

SHOREVIEW LN

S
H

O
R

E
V

IE
W

 L
N

S
H

O REVIEW
LN

N

GOLD

RIVER CIR

SPANISH

BAY

CT

SHOREVIEW 

CT

C
O

P
P
E

R

M
E
R

R
Y

 

M
E
A

D
O

W
 C

T PLUM
POINT CT

TWIN
RIVERSCT

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

F
E

R
R

Y
R

DMAY RIDGE LN

C
REEK

STO
NE

CROSSING
D

RP
IP

E
R

G
L

E
N

L
N

ROCK

RIVER CT

M
A

V
E

R
IC

K

B
E

N
D

L
N

ANDOVER TRACE LNH
O

R
IZ

O
N

S

E
D

G
E

L
N

HIDDEN

BOUGH LN

P
E
B
B

L
E

V
IE

W
C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
D

R

PEBBLE

PASS CT

P

E
B

B
L

E

PA
S

S
L

N

P
E
B

B
L
E

R
ID

G
E

T
R

L

PEBBLE

WAY LN

Elkins High School

Colony Lakes

Olympia Gymnastics 
and Tumbling

Fort Bend Community Church 

Subject Site:
RPC Missouri City

Center at 
Knights Court

Riverstone

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

1 inch = 1,000 feet
Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

RPC Missouri City

¯

jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit A-1Page 1 of 1



jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit BPage 1 of 1









jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit DPage 1 of 1



jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit EPage 1 of 1



jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit FPage 1 of 1





















jthomas
Snapshot

jthomas
Snapshot





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(c) Dry Creek Village - PD, Planned Development District No. 88 Amendment  
  
Submitted by: Jennifer Thomas Gomez, AICP, Planning Manager 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This is the second and final reading of an ordinance to amend the regulations and restrictions of PD, Planned 
Development District No. 88 pertaining to fence regulations for the Dry Creek Village residential subdivision, 
and to the extent such rezoning deviates from the Future Land Use and Character map of the 
Comprehensive Plan, to provide for an amendment therefrom. 
 
The subject site is located within PD No. 88, south of Lake Olympia Parkway, east of the Olympia Estates 
and Vicksburg residential subdivision, west of the Fort Bend Parkway. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 Have quality development through buildout  

 
BACKGROUND 

 
PD, Planned Development District #88 is proposed to be a mixed use development consisting of single family 
residential and commercial uses to the west of the Fort Bend Parkway (Tollroad) and business park uses to 
the west. 
 
The single family residential component of the PD is being developed as a subdivision named Dry Creek 
Village. Section 1, being the northern most part of the subdivision located at its entrance along Lake Olympia 
Parkway and Dry Creek Drive is now under construction. The developer is seeking an amendment to the PD 
to allow for flexibility in the material to be used for community (perimeter) fencing. 
 
Staff recommended approval to allow for the construction of the fence with two conditions.  
 
(1) Fence should meet the color requirements for primary material permitted colors; 
(2) Masonry pilasters meeting the requirements of Section 14.3 should be required.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission forwarded a negative recommendation however discussed support 
for the flexibility in the material. 
 
City Council approved the ordinance on the first reading with the applicant selecting to use a Sherwin 
Williams color, called “Umber Rust” identified as SW9100. 
 
 
 



SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Changes marked 
3. Ordinance O-16-13 
4. Application 
5. Letter of owner authorization 
6. Dry Creek Village conceptual plan 
7. Developer proposed fence layout 
8. Developer fence color proposal 
9. Ortho map  
10. Notice of public  
11. Rezoning application protest letters analysis  
12. Letters of protest 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance on the final reading. 
 
Director Approval:   Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Development Services Director 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Scott Elmer, P.E., Assistant City Manager 
 



ORD.doc       Page 1 of 9         
                         

 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18-  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
AMENDING REGULATIONS IN PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 88; REGULATING AND RESTRICTING THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN SUCH PD 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AMENDING THE ZONING 
DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY; PROVIDING FOR 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE 
SUBJECT. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 WHEREAS, DC Development Partners LP, FLC Parkway LP, Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 48, Ft Bend Parkway-34 LP, K. Hovnanian Houston Dry 
Creek Village, and Meritage Homes of Texas LLC are the owners of approximately 
432.87 acres of land within the corporate limits of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the 
“Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Property presently has a zoning classification of PD Planned 
Development District No. 88 under Ordinance No. O-16-13, adopted on April 18, 2016; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the owners’ agent, Stan Winter of Jones Carter, has made 
application to the City of Missouri City to amend PD Planned Development District No. 
88 to allow vinyl fencing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8.3 of the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance, said application was submitted to the City of Missouri City with proof of 
notice to all of the other property owners within PD Planned Development District No. 
88; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the 
City of Missouri City have each conducted, in the time and manner and after the notice 
required by law and the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance, a public hearing on 
such requested amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Missouri City Planning and Zoning Commission has 

issued its final report and the City Council of the City of Missouri City now deems it 
appropriate to grant such requested amendment; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 



ORD.doc       Page 2 of 9         
                         

 

Section 1.  The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct. 
 

Section 2.  As required by law, the City Council of the City of Missouri City 
conducted the public hearing on the request for zoning amendments and closed the 
public hearing prior to the final adoption of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Property is more fully described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto 
and made a part hereof for all purposes, and is depicted in Exhibit “B,” the concept plan, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.   

 
Section 4.  PD Planned Development District No. 88 shall be developed in 

accordance with the Missouri City Code, including the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance, and shall be developed generally in accordance with Exhibit “B,” and is 
subject to the following regulations and restrictions:  

 
A. Purpose.  PD Planned Development District No. 88 may include a 

combination of uses consisting of LC-3 retail district uses, BP business 
park district uses, and R-2 single-family residential district uses.  
Improvements to the site shall be designed to enhance the overall urban 
design and nature of the surrounding area. 

 
B. Use regulations.  In PD Planned Development District No. 88, no 

building, structure, or land shall be used and no building or structure shall 
be hereafter erected, reconstructed, altered or enlarged except as 
provided in this Ordinance. 

 
1. The following uses shall be located within the subdistricts 

designated on Exhibit “B” as set forth below: 
 

a. Except as provided in Subsection 4.B.1.b of this Ordinance, 
LC-3 retail district uses may be located only within the 
Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and 
Commercial Southeast Subdistricts. 

b. BP business park district uses may be located only within 
the Business Park East Subdistrict. 

c. R-2 single-family residential district uses may be located 
only within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict. 

 
2. The following uses shall be prohibited: 
 
 a. sexually oriented businesses; 
 b.  quarry, mine, sand and mineral extraction uses; and  
 c. sanitary landfills. 

 



ORD.doc       Page 3 of 9         
                         

 

C. Use district regulations.  Except as set forth in Subsections 4.D to 4.K of 
this Ordinance, the following use district regulations shall apply within the 
designated subdistricts: 

 
1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial 

Southeast Subdistricts:  LC-3 retail district regulations contained in 
Subsection 7.12 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall 
apply. 

 
2. Business Park East Subdistrict: BP business park district 

regulations contained in Subsection 7.1255 of the City of Missouri 
City Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

 
3. Single-family Residential Subdistrict:  R-2 single-family residential 

district regulations contained in Subsection 7.3 of the City of 
Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

 
D. Height and area regulations.  The height and area regulations for the 

subdistricts set forth below shall be as follows: 
 

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial 
Southeast Subdistricts:  Except as set forth herein, the height and 
area regulations for LC-3 retail districts contained in Subsection 
7.12 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

 
a. The maximum building height shall be based on the ratio of 

one foot of height for each 1.75 feet of distance from the 
exterior portion of a building nearest to the nearest property 
line within a residential zoning district to the nearest property 
line in the nearest residential zoning district.  

b. Buildings shall be set back at least 25 feet from the right-of-
way line of the Fort Bend Parkway. 

 
2. Business Park East Subdistrict:  Except as set forth herein, the 

height and area regulations for BP business park district contained 
in Subsection 7.1255 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance 
shall apply. 

 
a. The maximum building height shall be based on the ratio of 

one foot of height for each 1.75 feet of distance from the 
exterior portion of a building nearest to the nearest property 
line within a residential zoning district to the nearest property 
line in the nearest residential zoning district. 

b.  Buildings shall be set back at least 25 feet from the right-of-
way line of the Fort Bend Parkway. 

 



ORD.doc       Page 4 of 9         
                         

 

E. Building regulations.  The building regulations within the planned 
development district shall be as follows: 

  
1. Horizontal and vertical building planes shall be interrupted by 

offsets, changes in building materials, colors, textures, or other 
methods allowed in Section 7A, Architectural Design Standards, of 
the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.  

  
2. Architectural details that create shade and cast shadows shall be 

incorporated to provide visual relief. 
 

3. Any uninterrupted street-facing facade may not exceed 100 feet in 
length. A building facade of more than 100 feet in length that faces 
a public street shall have offsets with a minimum depth of at least 
five feet and a minimum length extending at least 20 percent of the 
length of such building facade.  

 
4. Exterior lighting shall be shielded to prohibit illumination in excess 

of 0.25 footcandles of average general light overflow or 0.50 
footcandles at any point on the boundary of an adjacent residential 
zoning district. 

 
F. Architectural standards.  The architectural standards within the planned 

development district shall be as follows: 
 

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, Commercial 
Southeast, and Business Park East Subdistricts:  Except as set 
forth herein, all buildings and structures constructed in PD Planned 
Development District No. 88 to which Section 7A, Architectural 
Design Standards, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance 
applies, shall be constructed in accordance with Section 7A, 
Architectural Design Standards, of the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance.   

 
a. The following materials may not be installed on the exterior 

of a building: 
 

i. Vinyl siding, wood-fiber hardboard siding, oriented 
strand board siding, plastic, and fiberglass panels; 

  ii. Unfired or underfired clay, sand, or shale brick; 
  iii. Smooth or untextured concrete surfaces; and 
  iv. Exterior insulation and finish system (EIFS). 
 

b. A single building material may not cover more than 80 
percent of the front exterior of any building. 

 



ORD.doc       Page 5 of 9         
                         

 

c. The architectural design, color, and materials of all facades 
facing or siding a public street, internal access drive, or 
pedestrian walkway shall match for the following: 

 
  i. an independent business establishment; and  

ii. multiple buildings within an integrated business 
development or a shopping center. 

 
d. The architectural design, color, and materials of screening 

walls, wing walls, columns, and similar building extensions 
and supports shall match the building to which they are 
attached.   

 
2.  Single-family Residential Subdistrict:  All residential buildings and 

structures located within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict 
shall be constructed in accordance with the architectural guidelines 
contained in Exhibit “C,” the Residential Builder Guidelines, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

    
G. Landscaping regulations.  The landscaping regulations within the 

planned development district shall be as follows:  
 

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial 
Southeast Subdistricts:  Except as set forth herein, the landscaping, 
screening, and buffer yard regulations contained in Section 11, 
Landscaping, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall 
apply.   

 
a. The minimum depth for buffer yards abutting the areas 

specified below shall be as follows: 
 

   i. Fort Bend Parkway:  20 feet 
   ii. Other public streets:  20 feet 
   iii. Internal access drives: 10 feet 
   iv. All other property lines: 5 feet 
 

 b. At the time of planting, canopy trees shall have a minimum 
four-inch caliper and be a minimum of 10 feet in height as 
measured at ground level. Canopy trees may be clustered or 
spaced linearly and are not required to be spaced evenly. 

 
2. Single-family Residential Subdistrict: The landscaping, screening, 

and buffer yard regulations shall be as follows: 
 

a. A landscape or open space buffer a minimum of 25 feet in 
depth shall be provided between Fort Bend Parkway and the 



ORD.doc       Page 6 of 9         
                         

 

rear property line of single-family residential lots.  A masonry 
wall a minimum of eight feet in height shall be provided 
along the property line of single-family residential lots 
adjacent to the landscape or open space buffer. 
Landscaping within the landscape or open space buffer shall 
consist of a combination of trees, shrubs and berms. At the 
time of planting, canopy trees and understory trees within 
the landscape or open space buffer shall have a minimum 
three-inch caliper. Berms with a slope of a minimum ratio of 
four to one and a minimum of two feet in height shall be 
provided within the landscape and open space buffer.  

 
b. A landscape or open space buffer a minimum of 20 feet in 

depth shall be provided between nonresidential uses 
adjoining single-family residential uses.  No parking, paving, 
or buildings shall be installed within the landscape or open 
space buffer.  A masonry wall a minimum of eight feet in 
height and one canopy tree per 30 linear feet of buffer area 
shall be provided within the landscape or open space buffer.  
At the time of planting, canopy trees within the landscape or 
open space buffer shall have a minimum three-inch caliper. 

 
H. Ingress and Egress. Ingress and egress within the planned development 

district shall be as follows: 
 

1. A pedestrian walkway shall be provided to connect the primary 
entrance of a nonresidential building to a sidewalk abutting a public 
street.  For a nonresidential use with a parking area located 
between a public street and the nonresidential building, at least one 
pedestrian walkway shall be provided to and through the 
associated parking area to connect any nonresidential building 
entrance of such building to a sidewalk abutting the public street.  

 
 
I. Parking regulations.  Except as set forth herein, the parking regulations 

contained in Section 12, Parking Regulations, of the City of Missouri City 
Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

 
1. The minimum setback for nonresidential parking facilities abutting 

the areas specified below shall be as follows: 
 

  a. Fort Bend Parkway:  20 feet 
  b. Other public streets:  20 feet 
  c. Internal access drives: 10 feet 
  d. All other property lines: 5 feet 
 



ORD.doc       Page 7 of 9         
                         

 

2. Bicycle parking: An off-street parking area for bicycles shall be 
provided within 50 feet of a primary employee or visitor entrance of 
each building. Such parking area shall include racks and other 
structures intended for parking bicycles.  

 
J. Garages.  Except as set forth in Exhibit “C,” construction of garages within 

the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall comply with Section 9.8, 
Garages, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance. 

 
K. Fence Regulations. Except as set forth herein and in Exhibit “C,” fences 

installed within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall comply with 
Section 14, Fence Regulations, of the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance.  A homeowners association or property owner association 
shall be responsible for maintaining community fencing within the Single-
family Residential Subdistrict. 

  
1. Fences that are adjacent to collector streets or major thoroughfares 

and installed within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall 
be fenced with community fencing, which may consist of vinyl 
fencing, provided that:  

 
(a)  such fencing, not including the pilasters, shall be “SW 9100 

Umber Rust” in color, or a color substantially similar to such 
color; and 

 
(b) such fencing shall include architectural masonry unit, brick, 

or stone pilasters, as required by Subsection 14.3 of the 
Missouri City Zoning Ordinance. 

 
L. Conflicts.  Except as set forth in Subsections 4.D, 4.E, 4.F, 4.G, 4.H, 4.I, 

4.J, and 4.K, in the event that any exhibit to this Ordinance conflicts with 
the Missouri City Code, the Missouri City Code shall prevail.  

 
M. Development schedule.  Pursuant to Section 8, PD Planned 

Development District, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance the 
property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
This Ordinance shall expire on the fifth anniversary of the date the first 
permit application was filed for this project, provided no progress has been 
made toward the completion of this project. 

 
Section 5.  The Zoning District Map of the City of Missouri City shall be revised 

and amended to show the zoning classification of said 432.87-acre tract of land with the 
appropriate references thereon to the number and effective date of this Ordinance and a 
brief description of the nature of these changes. 
 



ORD.doc       Page 8 of 9         
                         

 

Section 6.  This Ordinance shall in no manner amend, change, supplement, or 
revise any provision of any ordinance of the City of Missouri City, save and except the 
changes in zoning classification described in Section 3 hereof and the imposition of the 
findings, regulations, restrictions and conditions contained herein. 

 
Section 7. Comprehensive plan deviation. To the extent this Ordinance 

represents any deviation from the Future Land Use and Character map of the City of 
Missouri City Comprehensive Plan, such map is hereby amended to conform with this 
Ordinance. 

 
Section 8.  Repeal.  Ordinance Number O-16-13, adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Missouri City on April 18, 2016, is hereby repealed.  Any ordinance or any 
other part of any other ordinance in conflict herewith shall be and is hereby repealed 
only to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 9.  Penalty.  Any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, 

company, or organization of any kind who or which violates any provision of this zoning 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall 
be fined in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day during 
which said violation shall exist or occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The owner 
or owners of any property or of premises where any violation of this zoning ordinance 
shall occur, and any agent, contractor, builder, architect, person, or corporation who 
shall assist in the commission of such offense shall be guilty of a separate offense 
unless otherwise prohibited by law and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as 
above provided. 

 
Section 10.  Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, 

clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance or the application of the 
same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Missouri 
City, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 4th day of September, 2018. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 17th day 
of September, 2018. 

 
 

       ______________________________   
       Allen Owen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



ORD.doc       Page 9 of 9         
                         

 

 
 
____________________________         
Maria Jackson, City Secretary   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 

 



































ORDINANCE NO. O-18-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS,
AMENDING REGULATIONS IN PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 88; REGULATING AND RESTRICTING THE
DEVELOPMENT AND USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN SUCH PD
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AMENDING THE ZONING
DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY; PROVIDING FOR
AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR
REPEAL; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE
SUBJECT.

* * * * *

WHEREAS, DC Development Partners LP, FLC Parkway LP, Fort Bend County
Municipal Utility District No. 48, Ft Bend Parkway-34 LP, K. Hovnanian Houston Dry
Creek Village, and Meritage Homes of Texas LLC are the owners of approximately
432.87 acres of land within the corporate limits of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, said Property presently has a zoning classification of PD Planned
Development District No. 88 under Ordinance No. O-16-13, adopted on April 18, 2016;
and

WHEREAS, the owners’ agent, Stan Winter of Jones Carter, has made
application to the City of Missouri City to amend PD Planned Development District No.
88 to allow vinyl fencing; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8.3 of the City of Missouri City Zoning
Ordinance, said application was submitted to the City of Missouri City with proof of
notice to all of the other property owners within PD Planned Development District No.
88; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the
City of Missouri City have each conducted, in the time and manner and after the notice
required by law and the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance, a public hearing on
such requested amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City of Missouri City Planning and Zoning Commission has
issued its final report and the City Council of the City of Missouri City now deems it
appropriate to grant such requested amendment; now therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY,
TEXAS:

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 1 of 11                             
Page 1 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



Section 1.  The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance
are hereby found to be true and correct.

Section 2.  As required by law, the City Council of the City of Missouri City
conducted the public hearing on the request for zoning amendments and closed the
public hearing prior to the final adoption of this Ordinance.

Section 3.  The Property is more fully described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto
and made a part hereof for all purposes, and is depicted in Exhibit “B,” the concept
plan, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Section 4.  PD Planned Development District No. 88 shall be developed in
accordance with the Missouri City Code, including the City of Missouri City Zoning
Ordinance, and shall be developed generally in accordance with Exhibit “B,” and is
subject to the following regulations and restrictions:

Purpose.  PD Planned Development District No. 88 may include aA.
combination of uses consisting of LC-3 retail district uses, BP business
park district uses, and R-2 single-family residential district uses.
Improvements to the site shall be designed to enhance the overall urban
design and nature of the surrounding area.

Use regulations.  In PD Planned Development District No. 88, noB.
building, structure, or land shall be used and no building or structure shall
be hereafter erected, reconstructed, altered or enlarged except as
provided in this Ordinance.

1. The following uses shall be located within the subdistricts
designated on Exhibit “B” as set forth below:

a. Except as provided in Subsection 4.B.1.b of this Ordinance,
LC-3 retail district uses may be located only within the
Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and
Commercial Southeast Subdistricts.

b. BP business park district uses may be located only within
the Business Park East Subdistrict.

c. R-2 single-family residential district uses may be located
only within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict.

2. The following uses shall be prohibited:

a. sexually oriented businesses;
b. quarry, mine, sand and mineral extraction uses; and
c. sanitary landfills.

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 2 of 11                             
Page 2 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



Use district regulations.  Except as set forth in Subsections 4.D to 4.K ofC.
this Ordinance, the following use district regulations shall apply within the
designated subdistricts:

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial
Southeast Subdistricts:  LC-3 retail district regulations contained in
Subsection 7.12 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall
apply.

2. Business Park East Subdistrict: BP business park district
regulations contained in Subsection 7.1255 of the City of Missouri
City Zoning Ordinance shall apply.

3. Single-family Residential Subdistrict:  R-2 single-family residential
district regulations contained in Subsection 7.3 of the City of
Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply.

Height and area regulations. The height and area regulations for theD.
subdistricts set forth below shall be as follows:

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial
Southeast Subdistricts:  Except as set forth herein, the height and
area regulations for LC-3 retail districts contained in Subsection
7.12 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance shall apply.

a. The maximum building height shall be based on the ratio of
one foot of height for each 1.75 feet of distance from the
exterior portion of a building nearest to the nearest property
line within a residential zoning district to the nearest property
line in the nearest residential zoning district.

b. Buildings shall be set back at least 25 feet from the
right-of-way line of the Fort Bend Parkway.

2. Business Park East Subdistrict:  Except as set forth herein, the
height and area regulations for BP business park district contained
in Subsection 7.1255 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance
shall apply.

a. The maximum building height shall be based on the ratio of
one foot of height for each 1.75 feet of distance from the
exterior portion of a building nearest to the nearest property
line within a residential zoning district to the nearest property
line in the nearest residential zoning district.

b. Buildings shall be set back at least 25 feet from the
right-of-way line of the Fort Bend Parkway.

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 3 of 11                             
Page 3 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



E. Building regulations. The building regulations within the planned
development district shall be as follows:

1. Horizontal and vertical building planes shall be interrupted by
offsets, changes in building materials, colors, textures, or other
methods allowed in Section 7A, Architectural Design Standards, of
the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.

2. Architectural details that create shade and cast shadows shall be
incorporated to provide visual relief.

3. Any uninterrupted street-facing facade may not exceed 100 feet in
length. A building facade of more than 100 feet in length that faces
a public street shall have offsets with a minimum depth of at least
five feet and a minimum length extending at least 20 percent of the
length of such building facade.

Exterior lighting shall be shielded to prohibit illumination in excess4.
of 0.25 footcandles of average general light overflow or 0.50
footcandles at any point on the boundary of an adjacent residential
zoning district.

F. Architectural standards.  The architectural standards within the planned
development district shall be as follows:

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, Commercial
Southeast, and Business Park East Subdistricts:  Except as set
forth herein, all buildings and structures constructed in PD Planned
Development District No. 88 to which Section 7A, Architectural
Design Standards, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance
applies, shall be constructed in accordance with Section 7A,
Architectural Design Standards, of the City of Missouri City Zoning
Ordinance.

a. The following materials may not be installed on the exterior
of a building:

i. Vinyl siding, wood-fiber hardboard siding, oriented
strand board siding, plastic, and fiberglass panels;

ii. Unfired or underfired clay, sand, or shale brick;
iii. Smooth or untextured concrete surfaces; and
iv. Exterior insulation and finish system (EIFS).

b. A single building material may not cover more than 80
percent of the front exterior of any building.

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 4 of 11                             
Page 4 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



c. The architectural design, color, and materials of all facades
facing or siding a public street, internal access drive, or
pedestrian walkway shall match for the following:

i. an independent business establishment; and
ii. multiple buildings within an integrated business

development or a shopping center.

d. The architectural design, color, and materials of screening
walls, wing walls, columns, and similar building extensions
and supports shall match the building to which they are
attached.

2. Single-family Residential Subdistrict:  All residential buildings and
structures located within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict
shall be constructed in accordance with the architectural guidelines
contained in Exhibit “C,” the Residential Builder Guidelines,
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.

G. Landscaping regulations. The landscaping regulations within the
planned development district shall be as follows:

1. Commercial Northeast, Commercial Northwest, and Commercial
Southeast Subdistricts:  Except as set forth herein, the
landscaping, screening, and buffer yard regulations contained in
Section 11, Landscaping, of the City of Missouri City Zoning
Ordinance shall apply.

a. The minimum depth for buffer yards abutting the areas
specified below shall be as follows:

i. Fort Bend Parkway: 20 feet
ii. Other public streets: 20 feet
iii. Internal access drives: 10 feet
iv. All other property lines: 5 feet

b. At the time of planting, canopy trees shall have a minimum
four-inch caliper and be a minimum of 10 feet in height as
measured at ground level. Canopy trees may be clustered or
spaced linearly and are not required to be spaced evenly.

2. Single-family Residential Subdistrict: The landscaping, screening,
and buffer yard regulations shall be as follows:

a. A landscape or open space buffer a minimum of 25 feet in
depth shall be provided between Fort Bend Parkway and the

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 5 of 11                             
Page 5 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



rear property line of single-family residential lots.  A masonry
wall a minimum of eight feet in height shall be provided
along the property line of single-family residential lots
adjacent to the landscape or open space buffer.
Landscaping within the landscape or open space buffer shall
consist of a combination of trees, shrubs and berms. At the
time of planting, canopy trees and understory trees within
the landscape or open space buffer shall have a minimum
three-inch caliper. Berms with a slope of a minimum ratio of
four to one and a minimum of two feet in height shall be
provided within the landscape and open space buffer.

b. A landscape or open space buffer a minimum of 20 feet in
depth shall be provided between nonresidential uses
adjoining single-family residential uses.  No parking, paving,
or buildings shall be installed within the landscape or open
space buffer.  A masonry wall a minimum of eight feet in
height and one canopy tree per 30 linear feet of buffer area
shall be provided within the landscape or open space buffer.
At the time of planting, canopy trees within the landscape or
open space buffer shall have a minimum three-inch caliper.

H. Ingress and Egress. Ingress and egress within the planned development
district shall be as follows:

1. A pedestrian walkway shall be provided to connect the primary
entrance of a nonresidential building to a sidewalk abutting a public
street.  For a nonresidential use with a parking area located
between a public street and the nonresidential building, at least one
pedestrian walkway shall be provided to and through the
associated parking area to connect any nonresidential building
entrance of such building to a sidewalk abutting the public street.

I. Parking regulations. Except as set forth herein, the parking regulations
contained in Section 12, Parking Regulations, of the City of Missouri City
Zoning Ordinance shall apply.

1. The minimum setback for nonresidential parking facilities abutting
the areas specified below shall be as follows:

a. Fort Bend Parkway: 20 feet
b. Other public streets: 20 feet
c. Internal access drives: 10 feet
d. All other property lines: 5 feet

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 6 of 11                             
Page 6 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



2. Bicycle parking: An off-street parking area for bicycles shall be
provided within 50 feet of a primary employee or visitor entrance of
each building. Such parking area shall include racks and other
structures intended for parking bicycles.

J. Garages.  Except as set forth in Exhibit “C,” construction of garages within
the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall comply with Section 9.8,
Garages, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.

K. Fence Regulations. Except as set forth herein and in Exhibit “C,” fences
installed within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall comply with
Section 14, Fence Regulations, of the City of Missouri City Zoning
Ordinance.  A homeowners association or property owner association
shall be responsible for maintaining community fencing within the
Single-family Residential Subdistrict.

1. Fences that are adjacent to collector streets or major thoroughfares
and installed within the Single-family Residential Subdistrict shall
be fenced with community fencing, which may consist of vinyl
fencing, provided that:

(a) such fencing, not including the pilasters, shall be beige,
brown, burgundy, cream, gray, orange, red, rose, sage, or
tan in“SW 9100 Umber Rust” in color, or a color substantially
similar to such color; and

(b) such fencing shall include architectural masonry unit, brick,
or stone pilasters, as required by Subsection 14.3 of the
Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.

L. Conflicts. Except as set forth in Subsections 4.D, 4.E, 4.F, 4.G, 4.H, 4.I,
4.J, and 4.K, in the event that any exhibit to this Ordinance conflicts with
the Missouri City Code, the Missouri City Code shall prevail.

M. Development schedule.  Pursuant to Section 8, PD Planned
Development District, of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance the
property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule
attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and made a part hereof for all purposes.
This Ordinance shall expire on the fifth anniversary of the date the first
permit application was filed for this project, provided no progress has
been made toward the completion of this project.

Section 5.  The Zoning District Map of the City of Missouri City shall be revised
and amended to show the zoning classification of said 432.87-acre tract of land with the
appropriate references thereon to the number and effective date of this Ordinance and
a brief description of the nature of these changes.

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 7 of 11                             
Page 7 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



Section 6.  This Ordinance shall in no manner amend, change, supplement, or
revise any provision of any ordinance of the City of Missouri City, save and except the
changes in zoning classification described in Section 3 hereof and the imposition of the
findings, regulations, restrictions and conditions contained herein.

Section 7. Comprehensive plan deviation. To the extent this Ordinance
represents any deviation from the Future Land Use and Character map of the City of
Missouri City Comprehensive Plan, such map is hereby amended to conform with this
Ordinance.

Section 8. Repeal. Ordinance Number O-16-13, adopted by the City Council of
the City of Missouri City on April 18, 2016, is hereby repealed. Any ordinance or any
other part of any other ordinance in conflict herewith shall be and is hereby repealed
only to the extent of such conflict.

Section 9. Penalty.  Any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation,
company, or organization of any kind who or which violates any provision of this zoning
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall
be fined in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day during
which said violation shall exist or occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The owner
or owners of any property or of premises where any violation of this zoning ordinance
shall occur, and any agent, contractor, builder, architect, person, or corporation who
shall assist in the commission of such offense shall be guilty of a separate offense
unless otherwise prohibited by law and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as
above provided.

Section 10. Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision,
clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance or the application of the
same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or
invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Missouri
City, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or
unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.

PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 4th day of September, 2018.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 17th day
of September, 2018.

______________________________
Allen Owen, Mayor

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 8 of 11                             
Page 8 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

____________________________
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney

PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc       Page 9 of 11                             
Page 9 of 11
STAFF’S RECCOMENDATION 



Document comparison by Workshare 9.5 on Wednesday, September 12, 2018
2:28:01 PM

Input:

Document 1 ID
file://W:\Public\COUNCIL\2018\09.17.2018\6c Dry
Creek\PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018.doc

Description PD 88 Amendment Ordinance 2018

Document 2 ID
W:\Public\COUNCIL\2018\09.17.2018\6c Dry Creek\PD 88
Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc

Description
W:\Public\COUNCIL\2018\09.17.2018\6c Dry Creek\PD 88
Amendment Ordinance 2018.Final.doc

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 6

Deletions 6

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 12





























Dry Creek Village - Developer Fence Color Proposal
Submitted: 08-16-2018 through 08-29-2018

Page 1 of 4

1

2

3

4

5

*Builder preference (In order of preference):
1. Colonial Revival Stone
2. Stone Lion
3. Warm Stone

**

*

jthomas
Rectangle



T
E

C
U

M
S

E
H

 C
T

M
A

N
IO

N
D

R

CHINO

VALLEY CT

P
H

O
E
N

IX
 C

T

FOUNTAIN HILLS DR

BEDFORD FORREST CT

TRUESDALE DR

T
E

C
U

M
S

E
H

 C
T

E
R

O
S

 L
N

V
IC

K
S
B

U
R

G
B

L
V

D

THEBES

SHILOH

CT
BEAUREGARD

CT

BEDFORD FORREST DR

S
H

IL
O

H
D

R

S
E

D
O

N
A

C
R

E
E

K
D

R

P
O

W
E

L
L

S
P

R
IN

G
S

C
T

ASH CREEK DR

CUMBERLAND DR

STON
E

W
A

L
L

C
T

T

INTON DR

CORBETT DR

C
H

A
R

D
C

T

BLVD

V
IC

K
S

B
U

R
G

B
L

V
D

CONFEDERA T

E
S

O
U

T
H

D
R

CONFEDERATE CT

BRECKIN
RID

GE LN

T
R

U
E

S
D

A
L

E
D

R
T

R
U

E
S

D
A

L
E

 D
R

P
I C

K
E

T
T

 P
L

S
A

V
A

N
N

A
H

L
N

S
H

IL
O

H
D

R

CUMBERLAND
DR

B
U

L
L

R
U

N
C

T

B
U

C
K

N
E

R
 C

T

S
A

L
T

R
IV

E
R

C
T

A
N

T
E
L

OPE H IL
LS DR

CUMBERLAND CT

WOODS CANYON CT

COYOTE TRAIL CT

C
O

Y
O

T
E

T
R

A
IL

D
R

S
A

N
D

S
T

O
N

E
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
E

N
N

E
S

A
W

 D
R

T
L

A
S

D
R

ARGOS CT

ITHACA DR

A
R

G
O

S
D

R

H
U

R
R

IC
A

N
E

L
N

STATE HWY 6

SPARTA DR

L
E

A
D

P
O

IN
T

D
R

OA
KLAWN

PLACE DR
BREMERTON

FALLS DR

CT

G
O

O
D

M
A

N

R
ID

G
E

D
R

S
C

O
T

T
S

D
A

L
E

P
A

L
M

S
D

R

A
EGEAN DR

TEAL
RUN

PLACE
DR

ORCHARD
RUN

W
AY

PAINTED
DUSK CT

L
IB

E
R

T
Y SQ U ARE

TR
L

NAPA
MEADOW LN

AM
BER

W
HEAT

C
T

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
S

Q
U

A
R

E
T

R
L

BIRCH
CA

N
YO

N
C

CARDIN
A

L
ELMMAPLEPLACE CT

S
Q

U
A

R
E

T
R

L

L
IB

E
R

T
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

K
W

Y

DA

STATE HWY 6

BRECKINRIDGE

CT

CONFEDERATE DR

TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

TRAMMEL  FRESNO RD

CLAYTON TERRACE DR

CHIMERA LN

SE
A

B
O

L
D

D
R

ATHENA CT

SEABOLD
DR

T
R

O
Y

 D
R

ALDRIDGE DR

L
A

K

E
O

LY
M

PIA PKWY

SE

L

E
N

E
D

R

D
EM

ETER

D
R

ARGOS DR

AURA
CT

ET

ARGOS

D
R

A
R

G
O

S
D

R

SELEN
E

D
R

PD, Planned Development District #88

Dry Creek Village

OLYMPIA ESTATES

VICKSBURG

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

1 inch = 1,000 feet

Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

PD #88



930 Legal
Notices

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  - PLANNING DIVISION  
 

 
1522 TEXAS PARKWAY MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS  77489  
   

 

  

FOR MORE INFORMATION: Additional information and a map of the subject site are available 
for review at City Hall, Missouri City, Texas on Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 
p.m.  You may call 281-403-8600 or email the Development Services Department-Planning 
Division at planning@missouricitytx.gov for further information. 

 
           

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  - PLANNING DIVISION  
 

 
1522 TEXAS PARKWAY MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS  77489  
   

 

  

   
WEBSITE   www.missouricitytx.gov  PHONE   281.403.8600 FAX   281.208.5551 
  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

LOCATION/DATE:  The City Council of the City of Missouri City will hold a public hearing on 
Tuesday, September 4, 2018, at the City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor, City Hall Building, 1522 
Texas Parkway (FM-2234), Missouri City, Texas at 7:00 p.m. 

 
PURPOSE:  To receive comments for or against a request by Stan Winter, Jones | Carter, to amend 
the regulations and restrictions of PD, Planned Development District No. 88 pertaining to fence 
regulations for the Dry Creek Village residential subdivision; and to the extent such rezoning 
deviates from the Future Land Use and Character map of the Comprehensive Plan, to provide for an 
amendment therefrom. 

 
SITE LOCATION: PD No. 88 is located east and west of the Fort Bend Parkway, north of FBISD 
Hightower High School and Trammel Fresno Road; east of the Olympia Estates and Vicksburg 
residential subdivisions. The Dry Creek Village residential subdivision is located within PD No. 88, 
south of Lake Olympia Parkway, east of the Olympia Estates and Vicksburg residential subdivision, 
west of the Fort Bend Parkway. 

 
SITE LEGAL DESCRIPTION: PD No. 88 is described to include the following tracts: 
 
Tract 1 being described as a 152.586 acre tract of land situated in the Elijah Roark League Survey, 
A-77, Fort Bend County, Texas same being Tract 11A of Olympia Estates as recorded in Slide 
Number 2331 A & B of the Fort Bend County Plat Records. 
 
Tract 2 being described as a 116.302 acre tract of land being out of the remainder of that certain 
263.13 acre tract of land and out of the remainder of that certain 80 acre tract of land, conveyed to 
Hermann Health Care System, Inc. by deed recorded under Clerk’s File No. 9774265, of the Fort 
Bend County Deed Records. 
 
Tract 3 being described as being a 88.1380 acre tract being out of the remainder of that certain 100 
acre tract of land, conveyed to Hermann Health Care System, Inc. by a deed recorded under Clerk’s 
File No. 9774265, of the Fort Bend County Deed Records. 
 
Tract 4 being described as being a 37.429 acre tract located in the Elijah Roark League, A-77, in 
Fort Bend County and recorded in the name of Point Center Financial, Inc. in F.B.C.C.F. No. 
2009050702. 
 
Tract 5 being described as being a 38.4163 acre tract of land being part of the remainder of an 80 
acre tract, conveyed to Hermann Health Care System, Inc. by a deed recorded under Clerk’s File 
No. 9774265, of the Fort Bend County Deed Records lying in the Elijah Roark League Survey, A-77 
in Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
The Dry Creek Village residential subdivision is contained within the above described tracts and 
is further described as being 46.60 acres of land filed and recorded as Dry Creek Village Section 
One under instrument number 20180086 in the Official Public Records of Fort Bend County Texas.  
 

CL
930 Legal

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  - PLANNING DIVISION  
 

930 Legal

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  - PLANNING DIVISION  
 

 

10   CLASSIFIEDS    WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 15, 2018 FORT BEND HERALD



Application:

City Council First Reading: September 4, 2018

Name

Property Address

OR

Fort Bend County Account 

Number

Land Area (Square Feet) 

Within 200 Feet

Pamela Moon 3222 Selene Dr. 476.96                                         

Anh Pham Azam 3203 Selene Dr. 10,954.89                                    

                                 11,431.84 

                             29,566,091.17 

                             18,855,817.20 

                             10,710,273.97 

0.11%

City of Missouri City, Texas

Development Services Department – Planning Division

Rezoning Application Protest Letters Analysis

Note:  A total of 0 letters of support and 2 letters of protest have been received for the 

application request as of August 30, 2018.

Total Area Represented by Protest(s):

Total Land Area Including  Subject Site:

Subject Site Only  Land Area:

Total Land Area Only Within 200 Feet  of Subject Site:

Dry Creek Village - PD #88 Amendment

Protest(s) Percentage of Land Area Within 200 Feet:

Protest Letters Received

8/30/2018 Page 1 of 1



3
33
0

2615

3
3
1
4

3
3
0
73
3
2
3 3
2
2
23
3
2
2

3
3
1
933
3
5

2719

3
41
0

2710

27272726

2735

27
14

2730

3
3
1
8 3
3
0
6

3
3
3
0

2815

280
2 3

3
0
7

3
32
3

2623

281
0

2806

2818

3
4
0
3

28263
3
1
5

3
4
0
3 2830

3
3
0
7

3
2
4
3

3
2
0
7

3
2
3
5

3
3
1
8

3
3
0
2

3
40
2

3
3
1
1

340
3

2714

3
3
1
5

2715

2731

3
3
2
6 3
3
1
8

2711 3
2
2
3

2715
2810

2710

28142806

28182811

2814

3303

3
3
2
7

2818

2815
3202

2815

2807

2810

3206
2810

3
4
0
2

3
3
2
2

2818

3
4
1
5

3
2
1
8

3202

2930

2938

3
2
3
1

3206

3
3
2
3

3
2
3
9

3
2
1
9

3
3
1
0

3
3
11

3
2
3
4

3
2
4
2

3
2
2
3

2707

2803

2810

3110

2718

2730

32022807
2822

3
4
2
2

2815
3
2
3
1

3
4
1
5 3

2
1
0

3
2
4
6

3
2
11

261
1

3
4
0
3

3
3
1
1

3
2
1
0

3
2
3
0

3
3
1
4

3
2
1
1

3
2
3
5

2627

3
3
2
6

3
3
3
0

3
3
1
5

3102

3
41
4

3
3
2
7

2718

27232722

3
4
0
7

3
3
2
6

3
411

2718
2730

2722

2803

2806

3
3
2
6

2815

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
9 28102803

27072706

3
3
3
1

3
3
1
0

3411

2715

341
5

3
4
1
1

3419 3
2
0
6

3
2
2
2

3
3
11

3
2
1
1

3
2
1
5

3
2
2
3

3
3
0
6

3
2
1
8

3
2
2
6

2734

27
18

3
4
1
5

2707

2802

3
3
1
4 2807 3
2
1
4

3
2
1
82810

273
4

2811

3
2
2
2

2722 2723

2814
2807

3
2
1
0 3
3
2
7

3
2
1
0

2907

3
2
1
5

2822

3
3
0
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
1
9

3
2
3
0

3119

2626

3
2
2
2

27032718

2719

2815

2810 2726

26
07

3
3
2
73
3
3
5

2619

3
3
3
1

2822

2827

2818

3
3
1
0

3
3
1
9

3
2
2
6

3
4
0
2

3
4
1
9

3
2
1
8

3
3
3
1

3
3
1
0

27032702

2711

3
33
43
40
6

3
41
0

3
2
1
9

3
2
2
7

3
2
1
8

3
2
2
2

3
2
2
6

272
6 2807

3
2
0
62811 3
3
3
4

2710340
7

341
9

280
6

3
3
1
9

2822

3
2
1
5

3
2
1
9

3
3
0
6

3
3
1
82814 2826

33
39

2819

3
3
1
4

33
31 3

2
1
0

3
41
4

2723

2726

272
2

3
3
0
3

2803

3
3
1
0

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
5

3
3
1
4

2702

27103
2
2
7

2803
27112714

3
4
0
2

2811
2818

33
35

3
4
0
7

3
2
2
6

3
2
3
0

2807

2819 2727
28032823

2731

32032830 28112831

2835 3
2
1
8

33
22

3
4
1
0

33
18

2631

3
2
0
2

3
2
0
6

3
2
1
0

2714

2
7
0
3

2718
2706 2702

3
2
1
9

2706 2715

2718

3
4
2
3

3
2
11

3
2
3
52926

3
2
3
8

32073
2
2
3

3
2
4
3

3
2
1
4

27152806 2718

2811

3414

2806
2826

2811

3
4
1
4

3
2
1
9

3206

3
2
2
2

3
2
2
6

3
2
4
7

3
2
1
4

3
2
3
1

3103

3106

3111

2630

26
27

3
32
63
33
4

3
3
1
8

3
3
2
2

3
3
2
7 3
3
0
6

3
3
0
7

2719

2738

2802

3
3
1
0 3
2
1
0

3
3
1
42811

3
3
1
4

2826

3
2
1
4

3
2
1
4

2710

3
3
2
3

3
3
1
9

2707

3
2
1
5

2714

27142719

2814
28022819

3207

3
4
1
8

3
3
0
2

3
3
1
4 3

3
0
6

3207

3
2
3
9

3107

3
3
3
9

3
3
1
83
3
3
0

3
3
1
5

2711

2714

2731

2727

3
3
2
2

273
0

3
3
0
2

3
3
1
5 3206

28023
3
2
3 28143
4
0
6

3
4
1
0

2822

3
3
1
83

3
1
9

3
3
1
5

3
2
2
7

3
2
3
1

2711

2719

2710

2807
2802

28102818 2806

3
4
0
6

2814

2902

3
2
1
5

3
2
3
9

3
2
4
3 3
2
1
43
2
4
22934

3
2
3
8

3
2
2
7

2942

3
2
1
8

3215

2911

3206

3211

3223

3
2
3
1

3203

3202

3203

3
2
2
7

3
2
2
3

3
2
2
6

3
2
2
2

3
2
3
5

3
2
3
9

2814

2818
2819

2815

2802

2910

3210

2703

3
2
3
0

3
2
3
8

3
2
3
4

3
2
4
2

3
2
4
6

3
2
3
4

3
2
3
0

2911

2915

2907

2903

2906

3114

3115

3
31
0

3
31
4

3
31
8

3
32
2

2814
2815

3202

3207

3211

2906

3406

3330

10343

3650

20220

3330 2622

2614

2623

2619

3103

3110

3118

3106

3115

3119

3111

3114

3122

3107

3114

3119

3111

3103

3107

3122

3115

3102

3110

3118

3310

3314

3318

3103

31113335

3331

3302

3107

3327

3322 3115

3330 3111

3326

3323

3306

3102

3107

3106 3103

3334

3331

3339

3214

3103

3122

3139

3150

3206

3211

3214

3215

3123

3131

3226

3114

3211

31423146

3102

3206

3115

3118

3135
3151

3210

321532233227

3106
32023210

3119

3134

3143

3202

3219

3107

3111

3203

3127
3147

32183222

3207

3138

3330

3306 3322

3326

3315

3338

3310

3318

3318

3310

3311

3327

3322

3314

3303

3319

3334

3326

3302

3307

3306

3314

3330

3406

3411

3407

3403

3227

3403

3231

3223

3415
3402

3235

3219

34183422

3407

3415

3215

3411

3414

3419

3327

2911

2914

3223

3339

3335

3319

2931

2919

3311

3327

3331

2922

3227

3303

3311

3335

3319

3311

3302

2938

3330
3319

3323

3315

3307

2902

3323

2931

29062935

2935
2939

3315

29072927

2926

2923

3219

3215

3334
3323

3231

2915

2930

29392918

3322

3326

3331

3303

2922

3307

3327

3331

3335

3303

28022806
2803

3414
3422

3419

3402

3410

3406

3415

3407

3411

3418

2818

2823
2822

2827

2839

2827

2831

2811

2823

3203

2803

2807

2835

3202

2815

2819

2843

2510

2503
2506

2515

2511

2502

2507

3
3
2
2

3402

3411

3407

2703
2707

2706

2702

2618

2603

2626

2622

3302

2606

3303

3306

2631

3
2
1
8

3
2
1
4

3
2
1
0

3
2
0
6

3
1
0
6

31023
1
1
8

3
1
1
4

3
1
1
0

3
2
0
2

26
03

26
07

26
23

26
27

27
03

2707

2711

2715

2719

3202

32033
2
2
7

3
2
1
5

3
2
0
7

3
2
1
1

3
2
1
9

3
2
2
3

3
3
3
5

3
3
3
9

3
3
4
3

3
3
4
7

3
3
3
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
2
3

3
3
1
9

3
3
0
3

3
3
0
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
5

3
3
4
2

3
3
3
8

3
3
3
4

3
3
3
0

3
2
1
8

3
2
1
4

3
2
1
0

3
2
0
6

3
3
2
6

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
8

3
3
1
4

3
3
1
0

3
3
0
2

3
3
0
6

3338

3335

3
2
1
1

3
2
0
3

2610

3306

3
3
1
0

3
3
2
6

3330

3334

3343

3339

3
3
3
5

3
3
3
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
0
7

3
30
33
3
2
3

3
3
1
9

3
3
1
5

3
1
1
9

3
1
1
5

3
11
1

3
2
0
7

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
4

3
3
1
8

3
3
4
6

26
11

26
15

26
19

331
8

3314

3310

3306

3302

3238

3234

3230

3226

3222

3218

3214

3210

3134

3130

3126

3122

3118

3114

3110

3019

3023

3027 3103

3107

3111

3115

3119

3123

3131

3135

3139

3143

3147

3203

3231
3235

3239

33
3
1

3
33
5

3315

33
2
7

3307
3311

3323
3319

3211

3223
3227

32153219

3207

21
2
2

21
18

21
14

21
10

21
06

2102

2034
2030202620222018

201420102006

2031
20272023

CHINO

VALLEY CT

P
H

O
E
N

IX
 C

T

FOUNTAIN HILLS DR

RREST CT

TRUESDALE DR

E
R

O
S

 L
N

THEBES

SHILOH

CT
BEAUREGARD

CT

BEDFORD
FORREST DR

S
H

I
L

O
H

D
R

S
E

D
O

N
A

C
R

E
E

K
D

R

P
O

W
E

L
L

S
P

R
IN

G
S

C
T

ASH CREEK DR

RLAND DR

STON
E

W
A

L
L

C
T

R
G

B
L

V
D

CONFEDERA T

E
S

O
U

T
H

D
R

CONFEDERATE CT

BRECKIN
RID

GE LN

T
R

U
E

S
D

A
L

E
D

R
T

R
U

E
S

D
A

L
E

 D
R

P
IC

K
E

T
T

 P
L

S
A

V
A

N
N

A
H

L
N

S
H

IL
O

H
D

R
CUM

BERLAND
DR

B
U

L
L

R
U

N
C

T

B
U

C
K

N
E

R
 C

T

S
A

L
T

R
IV

E
R

C
T

A
N

T
E
L

OPE H IL
LS

DR

CUMBERLAND CT

WOODS CANYON CT

COYOTE TRAIL CT

C
O

Y
O

T
E

T
R

A
IL

D
R

S
A

N
D

S
T

O
N

E
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
E

N
N

E
S

A
W

 D
R

ARGOS C
T

ITHACA DR

A
R

G
O

S
D

R

SPARTA DR

L
E

A
D

P
O

IN
T

D
R

N
PLA

CE DR

FALLS
DR

CT

G
O

O
D

M
A

N

R
ID

G
E

D
R

S
C

O
T

T
S

D
A

L
E

P
A

L
M

S
D

R

A
E

GEAN
DR

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

BRECKINRIDGE

CT

CONFEDERATE DR

TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

TRAMMEL  FRESNO RD

CLAYTON TERRACE DR

CHIMERA LN

S
E
A

B
O

L
D

D
R

ATHENA CT

SEABOLD

DR

T
R

O
Y

 D
R

ALDRIDGE DR

L
A

K

E
O

L
Y

M
PIA

PKWY

S
E

L

E
N

E
D

R

D
E
M

E
T
E
R

D
R

R

ELE
N

E

D
R

0 700 1,400350
Feet

1 inch = 750 feet
Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

PD #88

200' Buffer

200 Foot Analysis Map of Protest Received
1 of 2



2615

3
3
0
7

3
2
2
23
3
2
2

3
3
1
93
3
3
5

2719

2710

27272726

2735

2730

3
3
1
8 3
3
0
6

3
3
3
0

2815

3
3
0
7

2623

2806

2818

28263
3
1
5

3
4
0
3 2830

3
3
0
7

3
2
4
3

3
2
0
7

3
3
1
1

34
03

2714

2715

2731

3
3
1
8

2814

3303

3
3
2
7

2818

2807

2810

3
3
2
2

2818

3
4
1
5

3
2
1
8

3
3
2
3

3
2
1
9

26
11

3
3
1
1

3
2
3
0

3
3
1
4

2627

3
3
1
5

3
3
2
7

2718

27232722

3
3
2
6

2718
2730

2722

2803

2806

3
3
2
6

2815

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
9 28102803

27072706

3
3
3
1

3
3
1
0

2715

3
4
1
1

3
2
0
6

3
2
2
2

3
3
11

3
2
1
1

3
2
1
5

2734

3
3
1
4 2807 3
2
1
4

3
2
1
82810

3
2
1
0 3
3
2
7

2822

3
3
0
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
1
9

26
07

2619

3
3
1
9

3
2
2
6

3
3
1
0

27032702

2711

2807

3
2
0
62811 3
3
3
4

2710

3
3
1
9

2822

3
3
0
6

3
3
1
8 2826

33
39

2819

3
3
1
4

33
31 3

2
1
0

2723

2726

3
3
0
3

2803

3
3
1
0

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
53
4
0
2

2811

33
35

3
4
0
7

3
2
2
6

3
2
3
0

3
3
0
6

3
3
0
7

2719

2738

2802

3
3
1
0 3
2
1
0

3
3
1
42811

3
3
1
4

3
2
1
4

3
3
1
8

3
3
1
5

2711

2714

2731

2727
3
3
2
2 3
3
0
2

3
3
1
5 3206

28023
3
2
3 28143
4
0
6

3
4
1
0

3
3
1
83

3
1
9

3
3
1
5

3
3
1
0

2814
2815

3202

3207

3211

3406

3414
3422

3410

3418

2839

2827

2831

2811

2823

2803

2807

2835

3202

2815

2819

2843

2510

2503
2506

2515

2511

2502

2507

3402

3411

3407

2703
2707

2706

2702

2618

2603

2626

2622

3302

2606

3303

3306

2631

3
2
1
8

3
2
1
4

3
2
1
0

3
2
0
6

3
1
0
6

31023
1
1
8

3
1
1
4

3
1
1
0

3
2
0
2

26
03

26
07

26
23

26
27

27
03

2707

2711

2715

2719

3202

32033
2
2
7

3
2
1
5

3
2
0
7

3
2
1
1

3
2
1
9

3
2
2
3

3
3
3
5

3
3
3
9

3
3
4
3

3
3
4
7

3
3
3
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
2
3

3
3
1
9

3
3
0
3

3
3
0
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
1
5

3
3
4
2

3
3
3
8

3
3
3
4

3
3
3
0

3
2
1
8

3
2
1
4

3
2
1
0

3
2
0
6

3
3
2
6

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
8

3
3
1
4

3
3
1
0

3
3
0
2

3
3
0
6

3338

3335

3
2
1
1

3
2
0
3

2610

3306

3
3
1
0

3
3
2
6

3330

3334

3343

3339

3
3
3
5

3
3
3
1

3
3
2
7

3
3
1
1

3
3
0
7

3
3
0
33
3
2
3

3
3
1
9

3
3
1
5

3
1
1
9

3
1
1
5

3
1
1
1

3
2
0
7

3
3
2
2

3
3
1
4

3
3
1
8

3
3
4
6

26
11

26
15

26
19

3230

3226

3222

3218

3214

3210

3134

3130

3126

3115

3119

3123

3131

3135

3139

3143

3147

3203

3231
3235

3239

3307
3311

3211

3223
3227

3215
3219

3207

2102

P
H

O
E
N

IX
 C

T

E
R

O
S

 L
N

THEBES

ARGOS C
T

THACA DR

SPARTA DR

L
E

A
D

P
O

IN
T

D
R

E DR

R

CT

G
O

O
D

M
A

N

R
I
D

G
E

D
R

D
R

A
E

GEAN
DR

F
O

R
T

B
E

N
D

P
K

W
Y

CLAYTON TERRACE DR

CHIMERA LN

S
E
A

B
O

L
D

D
R

ATHENA CT

SEABOLD

DR

T
R

O
Y

 D
R

ALDRIDGE DR

L
A

K

E
O

LY
M

PIA
PKWY

E

L

E
N

E
D

R

D
E
M

E
T
E
R

D
R

R

0 350 700175
Feet

1 inch = 350 feet
Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

PD #88

200' Buffer

200 Foot Analysis Map of Protest Received
2 of 2









  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(d) Consider an ordinance amending Division 5, Article II, of Chapter 18, Businesses, of 

the Missouri City Code; amending regulations relating to mobile food units (MFU’s); 
providing a penalty; and consider the ordinance on final reading. 

 
Submitted by: Otis T. Spriggs, Director of Development Services 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
The proposed ordinance amendments to Division 5, Article II, of Chapter 18, Businesses, of the Missouri 
City Code, are to provide regulations pertaining to mobile food units is proposed to allow the director to 
review and consider applications that satisfy reasonable distance requirements regarding hand washing 
facilities, and operational requirements of mobile food units (MFU’s) that do not constitute a substantial 
hazard to public health or public safety.   
 
The proposed text amendment changes provide flexibility in the regulations regarding location(s) where the 
MFU’s can be in operation in proximity to other units and facilities;  and, provides for deviations of deficiencies 
that will not constitute substantial hazard to public health or public safety.   
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Last year Council established some base guidelines and regulations regarding the operation of mobile food 
trucks with in the Missouri City, with the adoption occurring as follows:   
 
October 16, 2017  Council Final Reading of Mobile Food Truck Ordinance 
June 25, 2018  Council approved an appeal of permit denials for the July 4th Celebration 
   (due to existing units not meeting particular code requirements).  
 
Under the June 25, 2018 action, Council authorized the Fire Marshal, the ability to consider future approvals 
of mobile food truck permits for the July 4th Celebration, with particular substitutions.   
 
The proposed text amendments will afford the Director of Development Services the ability to approve 
permits submitted by mobile food unit owners/operators for approximately one year to give those owners and 
operators time to bring their units in compliance with the adopted codes.  In the interim, certain unique 
circumstances will be reviewed by the plan reviewing departments, assuring that no public, life safety, or 
health risks are caused by any deviations.  
 
Also this change could prevent an influx of variance requests that could be potentially reviewed by Council, 
such as the June 25th instance, where community and City sponsored events could be affected by certain 
hardship situations that occur, due to location and proximity to required code restricted facilities and areas.    
 



  

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Purchasing Review:    N/A  
Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Ordinance  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council considers adoption of the proposed Ordinance of proposed amendments 
to Chapter 18- Businesses, of the Missouri City Code to provide flexibility in the regulations pertaining to 
mobile food units.   
 
Director Approval:   Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Director of Planning 
    
 
Assistant City Manager/   
City Manager Approval:  Scott Elmer, Assistant City Manager 
 



Mobile Food Ordinance 2018.doc  Page 1 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 18, BUSINESSES, OF THE MISSOURI CITY 
CODE; AMENDING REGULATIONS REGARDING MOBILE FOOD 
UNITS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING A PENALTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

*  *  *  *  *   

 WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the City Council of the City of Missouri City 
adopted regulations to facilitate the provision of food to members of the public by mobile 
food vendors for the benefit of public health and safety; and  
 
 WHEREAS, to provide mobile food vendors with additional time to comply with 
the City’s regulations, the City Council has determined that greater flexibility is required 
for the complete implementation of the mobile food unit regulations for a time certain; 
and     
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City now deems it 
appropriate to amend regulations regarding mobile food units; now therefore, 
  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct. 
 

Section 2. The Missouri City Code is hereby amended by deleting Sections 
18-134 and 18-135 of Division 5 of Article II of Chapter 18 thereof and substituting 
therefor new Sections 18-134 and 18-135 of Division 5 of Article II of Chapter 18, 
respectively, to provide as follows:  

 
“Chapter 18 - BUSINESSES 

.  .  .  . 
ARTICLE II. - FOOD SERVICE 

.  .  .  . 
DIVISION 5. - MOBILE FOOD UNITS. 

.  .  .  . 
Sec. 18-134. - Applications for mobile food unit permits.  

A person seeking to operate a mobile food unit in the city shall submit an application 
for a mobile food unit permit to the director in an application form provided by the 
director accompanied by the payment of a fee in the amount specified in a resolution 
adopted by the city council establishing a schedule of fees. The application shall include 
the following information:  



Mobile Food Ordinance 2018.doc  Page 2 of 5 

 

(1)  The name, address, telephone number, and email address of the applicant, 
provided that if the applicant is an entity, the following information shall also be 
provided:  

(a)  The legal name of the entity;  

(b)  If the entity is a corporation, the full name and address of each 
director, officer, and each shareholder, or if the corporation has 
more than five shareholders, the full name and address of at least 
five shareholders with the most shares;  

(c)  If the entity is a partnership, the full name and address of each 
partner and the type of partnership;  

(d)  If the entity is an unincorporated association, the full name and 
address of each associate and officer of such association;  

(e)   Proof of the entity's form and current status, including, but not 
limited to:  

i. A current and valid certificate of existence or certificate of 
authority from the state office of the secretary of state;  

ii. A current and valid certificate of good standing from the state 
comptroller of accounts;  

iii. All assumed names used and copies of all filings related to 
such names from the county clerk's office;  

iv. A certificate of incorporation; and  

v. If applicable, a determination letter issued by the Internal 
Revenue Service;  

(f)   The entity's federal tax identification number; and  

(g) Documentation that the entity is not delinquent in state, local, and 
federal taxes;  

(2) A copy of the applicant's valid and current driver's license;  

(3) If the applicant will designate an operator to supervise the operation of the 
MFU, the name, address, telephone number, and email address of the 
operator, and a copy of the operator's valid and current driver's license;  

(4) The applicant's sales tax number and a copy of the applicant's sales tax 
permit;  

(5) A certificate of title showing the current true ownership of the mobile food 
unit, provided that if the applicant is not the owner of the mobile food unit, 
a copy of a written and notarized statement from the owner authorizing the 
applicant to operate the mobile food unit;  

(6) The vehicle identification number, license plate number, and proof of 
vehicle registration;  



Mobile Food Ordinance 2018.doc  Page 3 of 5 

 

(7) A copy of the applicant's liability insurance policy, insurance endorsement 
or evidence of self-insurance on the MFU;  

(8)  A copy of a current and valid food protection manager certification;  

(9) A written standard operation procedure of how the applicant plans to 
operate the mobile food unit, that includes, but is not limited to, whether 
food will be prepackaged, hours of operation, methods of serving food to 
customers, the MFU's waste water disposal site and process, and other 
servicing operations details;  

(10) Plans drawn to reasonable scale that clearly specify and address the 
proposed layout of the MFU, the identity, number, and capacity of food 
equipment, the location and sizes of plumbing fixtures and connections, 
food preparation, storage and service window areas, construction material 
of the inside of the MFU, and location of the LP-gas appliances, LP-gas 
container storage, and fire extinguishers;  

(11) A description or menu of the types of food that the applicant proposes to 
sell or offer for sale from the mobile food unit;  

(12) The location(s) where the mobile food unit will be in operation and a site 
plan drawn to reasonable scale showing the location of the mobile food 
unit on the parcel on which it will be placed and the distance from any 
building, vehicle, or structure from each edge of the MFU when parked;  

(13) Proof of ownership of a central preparation facility, other fixed food 
establishment or service area, as applicable, or if the applicant is not the 
owner of the central preparation facility, other fixed food establishment or 
service area, a signed and notarized statement on the letterhead of the 
central preparation facility, other fixed food establishment or service area, 
as applicable, authorizing the applicant to use the central preparation 
facility, other fixed food establishment or service area as its base of 
operation;  

(14) If the central preparation facility, other fixed food establishment or service 
area that the applicant proposes    to use as its base of operation is 
located outside the jurisdiction of the city, a copy of the most current 
health inspection report obtained from the regulatory authority having 
jurisdiction over such central preparation facility, other fixed food 
establishment or service area;  

(15) For a mobile food unit that will be operated on private property, proof of 
ownership of the property or, if the applicant is not the owner of the 
property, a signed and notarized written statement from the property 
owner or the property owner's authorized agent granting the applicant 
permission to operate a mobile food unit on the property;  

(16) For a mobile food unit that will operate at one location for more than two 
hours, a signed and notarized statement from the owner or the authorized 
agent of the owner of a business establishment with a restroom with a 
flushable toilet, a hand wash sink with hot and cold running water, and 



Mobile Food Ordinance 2018.doc  Page 4 of 5 

 

soap and hand-drying provisions, located within a reasonable distance 
from the location where the mobile food unit will be in operation, granting 
employees of the mobile food unit permission to use such restroom during 
the business establishment's hours of operation or documentation 
providing an alternative proposal to satisfy the requirements of this 
subdivision;  

(17) A description of the signage that will be affixed on the mobile food unit; 
and  

(18) Any other information that may be requested by the director to fully 
evaluate and review the application. 

Sec. 18-135. - Review and approval of applications. 
(a) Upon receipt of a complete application for a permit, the director will review the 

application and grant a mobile food unit permit unless one or more of the 
following conditions is met:  

(1) The application contains false or misleading information, or required 
information is omitted;  

(2)  The application or the mobile food unit does not comply with all applicable 
laws, including the requirements of this chapter; or  

(3)  Operation of the mobile food unit constitutes a substantial hazard to public 
health or public safety.  

(b) Notwithstanding any provision contained in this division, the director may grant a 
permit for a MFU that generally complies with the requirements of this division, 
provided that:  

 

(1) The director notifies the applicant, in writing, of the deficiencies in the 
applicant’s application for a permit before the permit is issued;   

(2) The application does not contain false or misleading information, or omit 
required information; and  

(3) Operation of the mobile food unit will not constitute a substantial hazard to 
public health or public safety.  

 
(c) Subsections (b) and (c) of this section 18-135 shall remain in effect until 

September 30, 2019.” 
 

Section 3. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, if 
any, shall be and are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 
 



Mobile Food Ordinance 2018.doc  Page 5 of 5 

 

Section 4. Penalty. Any person who violates, or any person who causes or allows 
another person to violate, any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than 
Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00). Each occurrence of any violation of this Ordinance 
shall constitute a separate offense. Each day in which any violation of this Ordinance 
occurs shall constitute a separate offense. 
 

Section 5. Severability. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or 
part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
or provision hereof, other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.  
 
 PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 4th day of September, 2018.  
 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 17th day 
of September, 2018. 
 
 
 __________________________ 
 Allen Owen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 17, 2018 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTIONS  

(a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances – There are no Zoning Public Hearings and 
Ordinances on this agenda. 

 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(b)(1) Public Hearing and Ordinance: PID No. 2 Special Assessment   
  
Submitted by: Joseph Quintal, Assistant City Attorney 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This item requires a public hearing and relates to an ordinance levying special assessments on the first of 
two readings. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a Great Place to Live 
 Maintain A Financially Sound City Government 
 Grow Business Investments In Missouri City 
 Have Quality Development Through Buildout 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
Lake Shore Harbour subdivision is located in Public Improvement District Number Two (PID 2). City 

Council previously approved the Service and Assessment Plan for PID 2 and Assessment Rolls for Lake 
Shore Harbour Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6 in 2004, 2006, 2007, 2012, 2013, and 2015, respectively. This 
Ordinance is for the approval of the Section 8 assessment roll. The assessment is determined as prescribed 
by the Service and Assessment Plan. 

 
The cost of the infrastructure is $1,483,582.07. The cost per lot is $2,884.63, which includes interest. 

The annual assessment in Sections 1 and 2 was $1,148.53, $1,328.93 in Section 3 and $1,400.00 in Sections 
4 and 5. The annual assessment in Section 6 was $781.00. The property owner has been given notice of the 
proposed assessments and supports the assessments. 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY18 
Funds Budgeted 

FY18 
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

N/A     $0 

 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 



2. Plat of Section 8 of Lakeshore Harbour residential subdivision 
3. Copy of published notice  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Consider conducting a public hearing and adopting the ordinance levying special assessments for public 
improvements.  
 



PID 2 Assessment Ordinance 2018.doc       Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18-__  
               

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, LEVYING AN 
ASSESSMENT AGAINST SECTION 8 PROPERTIES IN THE LAKESHORE 
HARBOUR SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. TWO (LAKESHORE HARBOUR 
RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION); AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
  *  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Missouri City (the “City”) is authorized pursuant to TEX. LOCAL 

GOV’T CODE, ch. 372, as amended (“Chapter 372”) to create public improvement districts 
for the purposes described therein, and to levy and collect an assessment in furtherance of 
the purposes thereof; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has created City of Missouri City Public Improvement District 
No. Two (the “PID”) and, pursuant to Ordinance No. O-07-31, adopted a Service and 
Assessment Plan (the “Plan”) for the PID, all in accordance with the applicable provisions of 
Chapter 372; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City (the “City Council”) filed a 
proposed assessment roll with the City Secretary which roll was available for public 
inspection, and following notice thereof by mail and publication as required by Chapter 372, 
the City Council held a public hearing at which written or oral objections to the proposed 
assessments were considered and passed on by the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted, in the time and manner and after the 

notice required by law, a public hearing on such proposed assessment roll; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the levy of a special assessment 

in, for and on behalf of the PID is necessary and advisable, and that the proposed 
assessment roll apportions the cost of the subject improvements in the PID on the basis of 
special benefits accruing to the property because of the improvement; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The facts recited in the preamble hereto are found to be true and 
correct. 
 

Section 2. The assessment roll attached hereto is hereby approved and the 
special assessments described therein are hereby levied on the subject property in 
accordance with the terms of the Plan, which Plan determines the method of payment of 
the assessments, and makes provision for the payment thereof in periodic installments, 
interest thereon and the collection thereof. The Mayor, City Secretary and any other 
appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized to take all necessary actions on 
behalf of the City to implement the terms thereof in accordance therewith.  

 



PID 2 Assessment Ordinance 2018.doc       Page 2 of 2 

Section 3. There is hereby created a first and prior lien securing payment of the 
assessment levied, effective as of the date of this Ordinance as provided in the Plan and 
Chapter 372.   

 
Section 4. It is hereby found, determined and declared that a sufficient written 

notice of the date, hour, place and subject of this meeting of the City Council was posted at 
a place convenient to the public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law 
preceding this meeting, as required by the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 551, TEX. GOV’T 

CODE, and that this meeting has been open to the public  as required by law at all times 
during which this Ordinance and the subject matter thereof has been discussed, considered 
and formally acted upon.  City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written 
notice and the contents and posting thereof. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this ____ day of __________________, 

2018. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this ____ day of 

______________, 2018. 
 
 
 __________________________ 
 Allen Owen, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 



ADDRESS PLAT

2

2

0

7

2

2

0

3

3

9

0

7

3

9

0

3

3

9

1

1

3

9

1

5

3

9

1

9

3

9

2

3

3

9

2

7

3

9

3

1

3

9

3

5

3

9

3

9

3

9

4

3

3

9

4

7

3

9

5

1

3

9

5

5

3

9

5

9

3

9

6

3

3

9

6

7

3

9

7

1

4

0

0

3

4

0

0

7

4

0

1

1

4

0

1

5

4

0

1

9

4

0

2

3

4

0

2

7

4

0

3

1

4

0

3

5

4

0

3

9

4

0

4

3

4

0

4

7

4

0

5

1

4

0

5

5

4

0

6

3

4

0

6

7

2

1

1

0

2

1

0

6



ADDRESS PLAT







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(b)(2) Approval and adoption of the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2018, 

and ending September 30, 2019. 
  
Submitted by: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
   

SYNOPSIS 
 
Section 9.03 of the City Charter requires the City Council to adopt an annual budget prior to the beginning of the 
fiscal year.  The proposed FY 2019 budget covering the period from October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019 
was filed with the City Secretary on or before September 1, 2018, as prescribed by the City’s charter. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Missouri City’s annual budget process began in early February of this year with a Strategic Planning and 
Budget Planning Workshop with City Council and staff. During the session, Council was presented with a work plan, 
various overviews and updates on current year financial commitments.  The Council provided staff with their top 
priorities for the coming year for incorporation into the budget.  Throughout the budget process, staff facilitated 
public input sessions to ensure that our community had an opportunity to engage in the process. This proposed 
budget has been discussed in various council meetings and a Public Hearings was held in order to solicit public 
input prior to adoption. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

BUDGET COMPARISON - ALL FUNDS 

Description of Fund 

 FY2019 Proposed 
Budget 

 12 Months  

 FY 2018  
Adopted Budget 

12 months*  $ and % Change 

General Fund  $       51,456,355   $            48,157,672  3,298,683 6.8%

Special Revenue Funds  $         6,251,240   $              5,435,508  815,732 15.0%

Debt Service  $       10,641,659   $            10,707,814  (66,155) -0.6%

Capital Projects Funds  $       13,074,957   $            16,846,814  (3,771,857) -22.4%

Utility Funds  $       49,516,375   $            47,589,947  1,926,428 4.0%

Other Enterprise Funds  $         7,716,450   $              3,676,736  4,039,715 109.9%

Equipment Replacement Funds  $            697,166   $                 961,556  (264,390) -27.5%

Total All Funds Budget  $     139,354,202   $          133,376,047  5,978,156 4.5%



   
*The FY 2018 Adopted Budget in this comparison represents the City's amended 12-month operating budget prior to 
preparation and implementation of the extended 3-month which resulted in a 15-month budget (July 1, 2017 - 
September 30, 2018).   
 
The FY 2019 Proposed Budget can be accessed from The City of Missouri City website at 
http://www.missouricitytx.gov/.   

 
 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager  
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this Council 
action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Ordinance 
2. General Fund Revenue and Expense Summary 
3. Combined Fund Statement  
4. City Manager’s Budget Message 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends the adoption of the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 City Budget as presented by record vote.  
 
 
Director Approval: Sandra Clarkson, Interim Director of Financial Services  
 
  
City Manager Approval: Anthony J. Snipes, City Manager 
 



Budget Ordinance FY 2019.doc Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
GENERAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 
1, 2018, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019; MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY FOR SUCH FISCAL YEAR AS 
REFLECTED IN SAID BUDGET; ADOPTING A PROJECTION FOR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM SPENDING BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2019, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; ADOPTING 
PAY STRUCTURES AND AN INCENTIVE AND CERTIFICATION PAY 
PLAN WITHIN SUCH BUDGET FOR NON-EXEMPT PERSONNEL, 
EXEMPT PERSONNEL, FIRE PERSONNEL, AND POLICE 
PERSONNEL; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; AND CONTAINING 
CERTAIN PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

*  *  *  *  * 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Charter of the City of Missouri City, on or 
before September 1, 2018, the City Manager of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the 
“City”) filed with the City Secretary a proposed Budget of the City for the fiscal year 
period beginning October 1, 2018, and ending September 30, 2019 (“Fiscal Year 
2019”); and 

WHEREAS, on or before September 1, 2018, the City Manager submitted to the 
City Council a proposed Budget of the City for Fiscal Year 2019 that includes a 
projection for Capital Improvement Program spending beginning on October 1, 2019, 
and ending September 30, 2023, and an accompanying message; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held, after notice, as required by law, a public 
hearing on such Budget on the 17th day of September, 2018, at which hearing all 
citizens and taxpayers of the City had the right to be present and to be heard and those 
who requested to be heard were heard; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed Budget and has made 
such changes therein as in the City Council’s judgment were warranted by law and were 
in the best interest of the citizens and taxpayers of the City; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the Budget is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a 
part hereof for all purposes and the City Council desires to adopt the same; now 
therefore, 



Budget Ordinance FY 2019.doc Page 2 of 3 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct.  

Section 2. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 102 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, the City Council hereby approves and adopts the Budget, 
Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof, a copy of same being on file with 
the City Secretary. The City Secretary is hereby directed to place on said Budget and to 
sign an endorsement reading as follows: “The Original Budget of the City of Missouri 
City, Texas, for the Fiscal Year 2019”, and to keep such Budget on file in her office as a 
public record and on the City’s Internet website. 

Section 3. In support of said Budget and by virtue of the adoption thereof, 
there are hereby appropriated out of available cash funds and out of the general and 
special revenues of the City which will be received in the treasury during Fiscal Year 
2019 the amount set forth in said approved Budget for the various purposes stated 
therein. 

Section 4. Severability. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or 
part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
or provision hereof, other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this the 17th day 
of September, 2018. 

 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Allen Owen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 



Budget Ordinance FY 2019.doc Page 3 of 3 

 



BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,272,360$   11,932,708$   11,932,708$              6,921,158$     

Object and Description
FY 2017 

Actuals

FY 2018 

Original 

Budget

FY 2018 

Revised/Projected 

Budget *

FY 2019 

Proposed 

Budget 

REVENUES

PROP.TAX/ASSESSMENTS 25,264,709$   25,914,115$   28,483,562$              30,531,777$   

SALES & OTHER TAXES 8,236,200$     8,416,172$     10,365,156$              9,045,100$     

FRANCHISE REVENUE 4,265,045$     3,990,463$     5,115,436$                3,903,100$     

LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,308,357$     2,532,114$     2,671,821$                2,363,538$     

FINES/FEES & FORFEIT 874,763$         967,150$         1,042,289$                883,200$         

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 389,061$         384,751$         453,523$                   398,500$         

INTERGOV REV/GRANTS 2,597,246$     3,097,901$     3,125,268$                2,341,412$     

INVESTMENT EARNINGS 1,606$             250,000$         282,454$                   200,000$         

OTHER SOURCES/DONATN 327,137$         267,322$         1,335,857$                362,600$         

TRANSFERS FROM & ADM 1,484,754$     1,541,718$     2,463,060$                1,716,397$     

Total REVENUES 45,748,879$     47,361,706$     55,338,425$                 51,745,624$     

TOTAL AVAILABLE RESOURCES 58,021,239$     59,294,414$     67,271,133$                 58,666,782$     

EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,244,060$     4,623,470$     5,845,104$                4,921,437$     

FINANCIAL SERVICES 1,740,016$     1,878,884$     2,213,303$                2,157,956$     

POLICE 13,220,166$   13,636,763$   16,289,177$              13,605,533$   

FIRE 8,261,843$     8,151,091$     10,222,533$              9,043,133$     

PUBLIC WORKS 5,830,902$     6,983,702$     8,719,403$                7,314,716$     

PARKS & RECREATION 2,799,164$     3,128,486$     4,131,305$                3,291,136$     

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 1,448,852$     1,471,239$     1,724,860$                1,441,963$     

INNOVATION & TECHNOLOGY 3,178,368$     3,528,019$     5,788,586$                4,571,044$     

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 5,365,160$     3,921,019$     4,615,705$                5,109,437$     

OPERATING EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 46,088,531$     47,322,672$     59,549,975$                 51,456,355$     

USE OF FUND BALANCE** -$                 800,000$         800,000$                   -$                 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 46,088,531$     48,122,672$     60,349,975$                 51,456,355$     

NET REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (339,652)$         (760,966)$         (5,011,550)$                  289,269$           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 11,932,708$   11,171,743$   6,921,158$                7,210,427$     

Actual Fund Balance Reserve % 25.9% 23.2% 11.5% 14.0%

20% Reserve Requirement 9,217,706$        9,464,534$        11,909,995$                 10,291,271$     

Reserve Requirement 20% 20% 20% 20%

Amount over/(under) Reserve Requirement 2,715,002$        1,707,208$        (4,988,837)$                  (3,080,844)$      

CITY OF MISSOURI CITY

GENERAL FUND REVENUES & EXPENSES SUMMARY

*In 2017, Missouri City residents voted to approve a change in the City's fiscal year from July 1 through June 30 to October 1 

through September 30, effective with the fiscal year 2019 budget cycle.  To implement this change, three additional months were 

added to the Fiscal Year 2018 budget resulting in a 15-month budget.

**The use of Fund Balance is to cover expenditures associated with Hurricane Harvey.  These expenditures are not a part of 

regular operations however, we are reflecting them against the fund balance as we expect to be reimbursed from FEMA.



Object and Description GENERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE 

FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE 

FUND
CAPITAL 

PROJECT FUNDS
UTILITY FUNDS

OTHER 
ENTERPRISE 

FUNDS

EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT 

FUNDS

FY 2019 
PROPOSED 

BUDGET TOTALS

FY 2018 
ESTIMATED 

ACTUAL TOTALS

FY 2018    
REVISED/PROJECTED  
BUDGET TOTALS

FY 2017 
ACTUAL 
TOTALS

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,921,158$              18,131,062$          4,988,809$              6,152,344$          28,614,449$            511,438$           (148,166)$           65,171,093$          68,545,037$          86,055,117$                  68,545,037$     

REVENUES

40 ‐ PROP.TAX/ASSESSMENTS 30,531,777$             2,792,200$            11,347,029$             ‐$                       ‐$                           ‐$                    ‐$                     44,671,006$          41,757,132$          41,919,506$                  36,621,017$      

41 ‐ SALES & OTHER TAXES 9,045,100$               200,000$                ‐$                           3,421,957$           ‐$                           ‐$                    ‐$                     12,667,057$          12,691,004$          15,241,272$                  12,020,054$      

42 ‐ FRANCHISE REVENUE 3,903,100$               150,000$                ‐$                           ‐$                       ‐$                           25,800$              ‐$                     4,078,900$             4,278,144$            5,307,686$                    4,426,162$        

43 ‐ LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,363,538$               13,400$                  ‐$                           ‐$                       ‐$                           ‐$                    ‐$                     2,376,938$             3,100,816$            2,688,420$                    2,321,606$        

44 ‐ FINES/FEES & FORFEIT 883,200$                  82,000$                  ‐$                           ‐$                       ‐$                           ‐$                    ‐$                     965,200$                1,177,659$            1,146,428$                    953,087$           

45 ‐ CHARGES FOR SERVICES 398,500$                  ‐$                        ‐$                           ‐$                       16,109,591$             7,557,677$        ‐$                     24,065,768$          21,834,392$          26,334,095$                  20,227,115$      

46 ‐ INTERGOVERN REVENUE 2,341,412$               636,183$                ‐$                           ‐$                       200,000$                  26,800$              ‐$                     3,204,395$             3,426,967$            3,899,747$                    3,171,480$        

47 ‐ INVESTMENT EARNINGS 200,000$                  245,167$                140,000$                  321,210$              530,528$                  212$                   35,436$               1,472,553$             1,635,825$            1,704,520$                    121,508$           

48 ‐ OTHER SOURCES/DONATN 362,600$                  1,501,790$            ‐$                           9,400,000$           31,559,700$             5,133$                70,000$               42,899,223$          7,330,818$            19,676,855$                  18,478,004$      
TOTAL REVENUES  50,029,227$            5,620,740$            11,487,029$            13,143,167$        48,399,819$            7,615,622$        105,436$             136,401,040$        97,232,756$          117,918,528$                98,340,034$     

49 ‐ TRANSFERS FROM & ADM 1,716,397$               3,637,380$            ‐$                           ‐$                       6,034,787$               ‐$                    1,013,677$         12,402,241$          16,631,870$          17,732,381$                  19,988,460$      

TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS 51,745,624$            9,258,120$            11,487,029$            13,143,167$        54,434,606$            7,615,622$        1,119,113$         148,803,280$        113,864,625$       135,650,909$                118,328,493$   

TOTAL AVAILABLE RESOURCES 58,666,782$            27,389,182$          16,475,838$            19,295,511$        83,049,055$            8,127,060$        970,946$             213,974,374$        182,409,662$       221,706,026$                186,873,530$   

EXPENDITURES

51 ‐ PERSONNEL COSTS 35,195,692$             328,102$                ‐$                           ‐$                       ‐$                           1,144,372$        ‐$                     36,668,167$          36,135,518$          39,645,515$                  31,181,000$      

52 ‐ SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 2,318,963$               271,038$                ‐$                           ‐$                       1,869,465$               833,306$           ‐$                     5,292,772$             5,582,627$            7,999,407$                    4,530,221$        

53 ‐ PROF/CONTRACT SERVIC 5,352,113$               607,203$                ‐$                           1,172,000$           2,675,759$               5,150,691$        274,906$             15,232,671$          15,620,371$          22,298,576$                  14,494,421$      

54 ‐ REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 881,096$                  ‐$                        ‐$                           402,957$              908,700$                  112,510$           ‐$                     2,305,263$             2,784,792$            4,591,585$                    2,067,821$        

55 ‐ UTILITIES 2,278,946$               20,895$                  ‐$                           ‐$                       469,617$                  197,905$           ‐$                     2,967,363$             2,957,224$            4,094,068$                    3,166,887$        

56 ‐ OTHER EXPENDITURES 1,833,019$               264,401$                ‐$                           ‐$                       77,157$                    261,666$           ‐$                     2,436,243$             2,205,716$            2,836,207$                    2,795,899$        

57 ‐ DEBT EXPENDITURES ‐$                           2,648,066$            9,687,128$               ‐$                       5,919,890$               ‐$                    ‐$                     18,255,084$          14,601,764$          16,384,476$                  13,630,968$      

58 ‐ CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐$                           1,607,273$            ‐$                           9,400,000$           31,069,000$             ‐$                    422,260$             42,498,533$          12,869,125$          20,652,684$                  11,283,183$      
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,859,829$            5,746,978$            9,687,128$              10,974,957$        42,989,588$            7,700,450$        697,166$             125,656,097$        92,757,137$          118,502,517$                83,150,400$     

59 ‐ TRANSFERS TO FUNDS 3,596,526$               504,262$                954,531$                  2,100,000$           6,526,787$               16,000$              ‐$                     13,698,106$          15,219,556$          15,882,101$                  19,990,189$      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS 51,456,355$            6,251,240$            10,641,659$            13,074,957$        49,516,375$            7,716,450$        697,166$             139,354,202$        107,976,693$       134,384,619$                103,140,589$   

ENDING FUND BALANCE 7,210,427$              21,137,942$          5,834,179$              6,220,554$          33,532,679$            410,610$           273,780$             74,620,171$          74,432,970$          87,321,407$                  83,732,941$     

CITY OF MISSOURI CITY
COMBINED FUND STATEMENT

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FY 2019



 

 

 
City Manager 
 
1522 Texas Parkway 
Missouri City, Texas 77489 
 
 
 
 

 
Phone:   281-403-8500 
www.missouricitytx.gov 

 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor Owen and City Council 
FROM:  Anthony J. Snipes, City Manager 
DATE:  August 30, 2018 
REGARDING: Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget and Financial Plan 
I am pleased to present for your consideration the City of Missouri City’s Proposed General 
Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2019. Though this year has seen many challenges to our community 
and our region, our organization has risen to these challenges with strength and resilience. This 
budget is structurally balanced, taking into account the strategic priorities and focus provided 
through your guidance. It is important to note that, despite a number of revenue categories being 
reduced, this balanced budget was accomplished with no borrowing and minimal impact to 
service levels to our community. 
 
I have collaborated with our staff to find creative ways to fund our operations, in order to 
cushion the organization against possible revenue reductions. This includes finding savings in 
the current year’s budget to fund this current year’s three-month extended budget year. 
Departments have partnered with private organizations and non-profits, and, are seeking grant 
funding opportunities. These efforts have gone a long way to assist the organization in meeting 
our financial goals. However, to present a balanced and financially responsible budget, I asked 
departments to provide reductions ranging from 3% to 5% that would be necessary to address 
City Council’s strategic priorities.   
 
Based on those efforts, a total of $2.1 million was identified and involved no reductions in 
workforce and with minimal impact to citizen services. Budget cuts focused upon areas such as 
reducing IT and Fleet Replacement costs, office supplies, training and conference attendance, 
and, delays in staff certifications. Through careful review of each budget line item, our 
organization has been able to re-appropriate resources based on Council priorities without 
significant impact to service delivery or to staffing levels. 
 
CURRENT AFFAIRS AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
Community Resilience 
Community reliance is defined as the ability of a community to prepare for, respond to, adapt 
and recover from, natural and man-made acute shocks and chronic stress with minimal 
disruption. Over the past year, Missouri City has shown its resilience.  
 
This past summer, Missouri City and our surrounding communities faced an act of nature of 
historic proportion. August 2017, Hurricane Harvey made landfall in South Texas and began its 
march toward Missouri City. Saturday, August 26th, tornadoes touched down along Texas 
Parkway and in Sienna Plantation. By Monday, August 28th, many of our streets resembled rivers 
as evacuations became mandatory and as our neighbors watched the creeks rising inexorably 
toward their homes. Our Police officers and Fire fighters conducted over 1,300 high water 



rescues. Public Works employees drove trucks into high water areas to make rescues and to 
transport personnel throughout the City. Employees of the Parks Department ran a shelter and 
donation drop-off site at the Recreation Center. Our employees from every department worked 
side-by-side, sleeping and eating in City facilities, so that our citizens would have every resource 
possible available to them. We housed over 50 State Troopers and several National Guardsmen 
as they maintained order in our City while our safety personnel conducted rescues.  
 
Throughout this trying ordeal, we saw our community band together in a way that made us all 
proud. We saw ordinary citizens rally to support one another in their time of need. We saw our 
own staff work tirelessly in whatever capacities they were needed. Restaurants donated food to 
our Emergency Operations Center and to shelters, citizens volunteered to work at shelters, 
clothing, food, and supplies were donated for those in need.  
 
It is the combination of a strong community and strong leadership, which has placed Missouri 
City in a position to quickly recover from such an impact to our city. Our City’s leadership has 
been heralded and recognized for its planning, proactive measures, and response during and 
immediately after the storm. We partnered with Fort Bend and Harris County to quickly remove 
debris to allow our citizens to begin recovery. We have worked with owners of our shopping 
centers to repair storm damage.  In the year since the hurricane, Missouri City has reviewed our 
plans and began to assess improvements in the event that we ever face another such occurrence.  
 
Financial Impact of Hurricane Harvey   
The City has traditionally operated in a fiscally conservative manner, and as a result, we have 
created stability and a healthy fund balance. Still, we do face fiscal challenges in the coming 
year. Hurricane Harvey resulted in estimated direct costs to the City of over $900,000.  This 
number includes items such as labor, equipment, materials, rental equipment, and, contracts. It 
does not include lost revenues, such as, those associated with our revenue generating programs. 
Some portion of those direct costs may be reimbursed by the Federal Emergency Management 
Association (FEMA).  It should also be noted that based on the City’s Charter Commission’s 
recommendations, Missouri City residents voted to change the fiscal year to start date from July 
1 to October 1. This dictated the city for one year having a 15 month budget for fiscal year 2018.  
This change will impact the city’s fund balance and will require in short order that the fund 
balance fall below the Council adopted policy.   
 
Looking to our immediate financial future, the City’s property tax revenues increased by 9.2%.  
This is in light of preliminary contested values for homes impacted by Hurricane Harvey and 
other factors totaling $1.9 Billion for Fort Bend County.  Inevitably, the protested values for the 
certified tax rolls was $64.6 million for both Fort Bend and Harris Counties.   
 
Additionally many of our businesses were impacted by the storm. Commercial entities saw 
closures during and immediately after the storm, in addition to, many facing physical damages. 
Several commercial buildings along Texas Parkway were damaged by the tornadoes that touched 
down in that area. For example, the Wells Fargo building on Texas Parkway has yet to re-opened 



one year after the hurricane. As a result of these impacts, the City will continue to monitor 
commercial tax values in hopes that we are not negatively impacted.   
 
Economic Outlook 
While the U.S. economy continues to modestly expand, recent challenges in the oil industry have 
continued to impact the local economy. We are pleased to report that, through conservative fiscal 
planning and management, the City of Missouri City continues to be insulated from many of the 
difficulties unfortunately faced by our peers and partners in the region.  
As part of the budget development process, on April 05, 2018, for the third year, the City 
received an economic and demographic forecast presentation from Mr. Jon Hockenyos, President 
of TXP Economic Development Consultants. This presentation provided: 

• Examination of trends in regional/national/international economy with focus on variables 
crucial to the Houston region; 

• Review of performance and outlook for the Houston regional economy; 
• Review of overall trends and key sector; 
• Examination of third-party forecasts; 
• Examination of current structure and trends in Missouri City with focus on sectors and 

occupations where residents are concentrated; 
• Testing of a range of variables for predictive power; 
• Creation of Missouri City forecasts using a combination of analysis, statistics, input, and 

judgement. 

Sales Tax Revenue in Missouri City 
Sales tax rebates have turned positive, likely reflecting both economic improvement, heightened 
confidence, and rebuilding in wake of Harvey. 

 



Unemployment Rates in Missouri City - Based on Texas Workforce Commission Residents 
Survey 
Missouri City has seen unemployment rates return to pre-“energy crisis” levels. This is 
consistent with an upturn in the regional economy. Many Missouri City residents work outside of 
Missouri City with strong concentrations in Health Care and Professional Services. Thus, the 
analytical focus in this presentation was on where residents work, rather than jobs based in 
Missouri City.  

 
 
Missouri City General Fund Revenue 
General fund revenue is heavily impacted by Missouri City’s sales and property taxes. Based 
upon regional trends, and conservative projections of 2.5% increases, general fund revenue is 
anticipated to slowly rise as population growth increases in the city.   
 

 
 

$45.67M
$47.36M

$51.75 M
$53.04M

$54.37 M

FY17 Revised
Budget

FY18 Projection FY19 Projection FY20 Projection FY21 Projection

Missouri City General Fund Revenue Projection



Local and National Affairs  
Local governments continue to face instability due to state legislation that assaults municipal 
authority and threatens our ability to maintain service levels to provide a good quality of life to 
our residents. In a continuance of last year’s legislative tenor, we face legislation that erodes 
local control, disrupts local funding mechanisms, and the authority for home-rule municipalities 
in regards to annexation.   
 
Across our nation, polls show that citizens’ trust in and satisfaction with government continues 
to decline. Missouri City has worked hard to engage our citizens and to develop communications 
with our residents to build trust and partnership. The results of our recent Citizen Survey show 
that Missouri City consistently ranks higher than the State and National averages in satisfaction 
levels. Nevertheless, we continue to look for ways to build and improve upon these relationships, 
and, to provide our citizens with the level of service and quality of life that they expect. 
 
With these myriad pressures, I believe that it will be imperative to continue to follow the 
conservative fiscal planning and policies that have served our community well in years past. I 
have challenged all of our departments to find innovative ways to finance projects including 
identifying savings from the FY18 budget to finance projects in the extended budget year and in 
preparation of the coming fiscal year. Additionally, we continue to build public-private 
partnerships with local, regional, and national organizations, and, to partner with the new 501c3 
Missouri City Parks Foundation.  
 
Momentum  
We are experiencing a steady momentum in our organization that will continue to propel us 
toward greater success. As context, in considering this proposed budget, it is important to 
consider significant achievements throughout the past year that benefit Missouri City residents: 

• Conducted the bi-annual market compensation study, in continuity of Council direction, 
to support the organization’s competitiveness in hiring and retention; 

• Oversaw a Municipal Utility District (MUD) Strategic Plan which will guide City policy 
and provide a uniform, thoughtful, strategy for the future; 

• Developed a Five-Year Financial Plan with revenue and expenditure projections and 
planning; 

• Completed an Economic and Redevelopment Plan with ten recommendations to enhance 
and focus planning efforts; 

• Completed renovations and updates to the City Hall campus including painting, signage, 
an outdoor stage and plaza space, restroom upgrades, and landscaping; 

• Completed the Fire Department Standard of Coverage review which led to Council’s 
approval of Fire Station 6 to provide coverage needs anticipated for our growing 
population; 

• Partnered with METRO to bring a bus connection service which will improve 
transportation options for our citizens. 
 



Doing More With Less 
Historically, Missouri City employees have heard some version of the phrase, “One Missouri 
City employee does the work of two at any other organization.” This mentality has for years 
encouraged our workforce to work hard and accomplish great things. It also leads to the 
inevitable conclusion that Missouri City has fewer staff than comparably sized cities. Missouri 
City has continued to grow, as have the expectations of our citizens. At the same time, the 
number of general fund employees has not kept up with the pace of demand. 
 
The chart below demonstrates Missouri City’s staffing levels in comparison to many of the 
surrounding municipal organizations. Staffing levels are shown in relation to the size of the 
city’s population by demonstrating the number of FTE’s per 1,000 residents. 

    General Fund General Fund  

Market Cities Population  FTEs 
FTE Per 1,000 

Pop. 

Missouri City  
                  

74,561  365 4.9 
Alvin       24,236  129 5.3 
Friendswood 38,000 203 5.3 
Sugar Land      117,869  654 5.5 
Houston   2,303,000  13,984 6.1 
Lake Jackson 27,394  171 6.2 
West University Place 15,516  102 6.6 
Pharr 73,000  496 6.8 
Rosenberg 37,661  262 7.0 
Nacogdoches 33,614  245 7.3 
Texas City 48,262  384 8.0 
Baytown 78,360  633 8.1 
Deer Park  33,782  278 8.2 
Conroe 56,000  477 8.5 
Port Arthur 55,000  523 9.5 
Galveston 50,180  495 9.9 
La Porte 34,000  337 9.9 
Humble 15,500  170 11.0 
Average of Responding 
Cities     7.4 

 
As an organization, we must begin to consider the impact of maintaining low staffing levels. 
There are impacts to the level of service delivery and the scope of services that our organization 
is capable of executing. As our citizens’ expectations rise for increased programming, wider 
variety of services, and faster service delivery, our staffing levels will need to adjust to meet 
these demands. There is a limit to how far efficiencies and technological improvements may take 



us. And there is a limit to how far we can take the passion and dedication of our staff. At some 
point in the very near future, our organization will reach that limit. It is our responsibility to 
begin this consideration and to plan for that future.  
 
BUDGET DEVELOPMENT AND ALIGNMENT 
 
Strategic Goals and Strategies 
The City of Missouri City engages internal and external experts and community members to 
provide frameworks and actionable guidelines for our decision-making. Planning processes 
involve major community decisions about how much and where growth will occur, the nature of 
future development, and whether the community can afford provision of the services and 
facilities to support this growth.   
 
As referenced in Section IV, Long Term Planning, in 2014, Missouri City’s Strategic Plan was 
developed. This plan serves as a guide to prioritize initiatives, resources, goals, and department 
operations. Through this plan, the Mayor and Council set forth the following goals: 

1. Create a great place to live: safe, beautiful, and active; 
2. Maintain a financially sound City government: effective/quality services and 

infrastructure; 
3. Grow business investments in Missouri City: more businesses, more jobs; 
4. Develop a High Performance City team: working together, producing results; 
5. Have quality development through buildout: active centers, neighborhoods, housing, and 

mobility. 

A good Strategic Plan is a living document. In keeping with best practices, the City plans to 
undergo a five year Strategic Plan Refresh in Fiscal Year 2019. This Refresh has been addressed 
in the proposed budget. The process will engage Council members in reviewing the City’s goals, 
taking stock of strengths, weaknesses, and accomplishments, and reflecting and re-doubling our 
attention on existing goals. This is an opportunity to incorporate fresh ideas, and to bring 
together the City’s ambitions Comprehensive Plan, Economic Development and Redevelopment 
Plan, and, Municipal Utilities District Strategic Plan, for a more unified and aligned path 
forward. 
 
Budget Development  
The Mayor, City Council, and staff conducted a Strategic Planning and Budget Planning session 
on February 2nd and 3rd. During these sessions, Council was presented with a work plan and 
performance report, economic development overview, financial overview, a long-term CIP recap 
and follow up to previous presentations, updates on current year financial commitments, an 
overview of current year budget considerations, and operational updates. Council provided staff 
with insights into their top priorities for the coming year including three key areas of focus, 
which staff incorporated into this current budget proposal.  
 
 



The three areas which Council agreed must be addressed in the coming year included: 
• Animal Services; 
• Quail Valley Golf Course Management Philosophy; 
• Capital Improvement Projects Planning and Financing. 

Throughout the year, Council has provided additional direction regarding priority areas to be 
addressed in the coming year’s budget. These items include: 

• Implementation of Market Compensation and Benefits Study recommendations; 
• Funding of the organization’s health insurance plan; 
• Implementation of the Economic Development and Redevelopment Plan; 
• Replacement of key Information Technology equipment; 
• Execution of action steps form the Municipal Utilities Districts Strategic Plan; 
• Replacement of aged fleet vehicles; 
• Facility maintenance; 
• Execution of action steps from the Tourism Strategic and Marketing Plan; 
• Grounds and beautification maintenance; 
• Essential actions to address Standard of Coverage and development of Fire Station 6, 

including design of Fire Station and purchase of apparatus, as directed by the Fire 
Department Standard of Coverage Study. 

As part of the development process, throughout spring and summer of 2018, staff also facilitated 
public input sessions to ensure that our community members had an opportunity to engage in this 
process. This included public meetings presenting economic forecasts, presenting of budget 
information to the Citizen’s University, and hosting a youth input session. 
 
Current Progress toward Budget Priorities 
The Fiscal Year 2019 Budget was created in alignment with Council’s priorities, as indicated in 
the February Budget Planning Session and as directed through Council actions throughout the 
year.  
 
In February 2018 Council directed that several areas be addressed as priorities in the coming 
year. City staff began work to immediately address those areas. Progress, thus far, in those areas 
includes: 
 
Employee Compensation and Benefits  

• Completing the Council adopted compensation and benefits market study.  In FY 2018, 
Council added a review of benefits to the study.  Currently, the reviews occur bi-
annually. 

• Addressing any gaps in the employee’s retirement funds through the Texas Municipal 
Retirement System (TMRS) 

• Addressing any required increases in Health Insurance 



Animal Services 
• Hiring of an Animal Shelter Manager to oversee daily operations and drive improvements 
• Implementation of the “Shelter Manager” software to track pets brought into the shelter 
• Execution of a contract with a veterinarian to serve shelter pets 
• Purchase of furniture for the Animal Shelter 
• Implementation of a pet registration ordinance with fee 
• Installation of security cameras to provide surveillance coverage of the facility 
• Creation of new policies and procedures for the Municipal Volunteer Program and 

Animal Services 

 
Quail Valley Golf Course Management Philosophy 

• Conducted workflow and managerial process review of financial processes by external 
consultant 

• Integrated Quail Valley financial records with the City’s financial software - Munis – for 
greater collaboration, ease-of-use, and transparency 

• Reviewed with the LGC Board of Directors the funding philosophy for Capital 
Improvement Projects conducted at the golf course 

• Filled key managerial positions in Catering/Events, The Grille, and the pro shop 
• Released Request for Proposals and in process of selecting consultant to review current 

management structure, operations, and financials 

 
Capital Improvement Projects and Long Range Planning 

• Presented Council with Bonding Capacities and Options for CIP Planning 
• Allocated funding in FY2018 budget for a Five Year Financial Study 
• Identified funding for select projects included in the Fort Bend Mobility Bond 
• Adoption of the Economic Development and Redevelopment Plan 
• Completing last stages of the Municipal Utilities Districts Strategic Plan 
• Completion of Fire Department Standard of Coverage Study  

These areas will continue to receive staff focus in Fiscal Year 2019 and have been addressed in 
the proposed budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Conclusion 
The City is to be commended for its past conservative practices, not only in projecting revenues, 
but also in maintaining responsible expenditure and reserve levels. The result of these 
conservative fiscal practices is that our community is in a position of strength as we face 
projected shortfalls in some revenue categories.   
 
We will complete our fee study in FY 2019 and adjust fees accordingly during the FY 2020 
budget development.  This position allows Missouri City to continue providing current core 
service levels with responsible and reasonable augmentations. Our goal will always remain to 
continue superior service to our citizens. We will continue to reflect the City Council’s 
traditionally conservative budgeting approach to address our community’s needs while ensuring 
the long-term financial stability of the City of Missouri City.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Anthony J. Snipes 
City Manager 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 
 

 

 
To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(b)(3) Second and Final Public Hearing to receive comments regarding the City’s 

proposed tax rate of $0.630000 
  
Submitted by: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
The City’s budget is funded partially with property tax revenue generated from an annually adopted tax rate 
applied to certified taxable property values within the city limits.  Staff has recommended a near rollback rate 
of $0.630000 which exceeds the effective rate of $.581873, and therefore two public hearings are required 
per the Texas Local Government Code.  The first public hearing was held on September 13, 2018 at 5:30 
PM at City Hall, Council Chambers, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas.  This is the second public 
hearing. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Staff is recommending the adoption of a near rollback rate of $0.630000 per $100 valuation as the 2018 Tax 
Rate for the FY 2019 budget.  The recommended rate exceeds the effective rate of $.581873, and therefore  
two public hearings are required per the Texas Local Government Code. It is proposed that this rate be 
allocated to Maintenance & Operations and Debt Service as follows: 
 

 
Allocation 

 
FY 2019 

Compare 
FY 2018 

Maintenance & Operations (M&O) =  $.460000 $.440230 
Debt Service (I&S) =  $.170000 $.159770 
Total Rate $.630000 $.600000 

 
 
The City of Missouri City has scheduled two public hearings for the proposed tax rate for FY18 as follows: 
 
First Hearing:  September 13, 2018 at 5:30 PM at City Hall, Council Chambers, 1522 Texas Parkway, 
Missouri City, Texas. 
 
Second Hearing:  September 17, 2018 at 7:00 PM at City Hall, Council Chambers, 1522 Texas Parkway, 
Missouri City, Texas. 
 
Using a 100% collection factor instead of the 99% factor used in previous analysis, the total tax revenue 
proposed to be raised this year at the proposed tax rate of $0.630000 for each $100 of taxable value, 
including tax revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this year, is $41,708,130.   
 



The Council Members of the City of Missouri City are scheduled to vote on the tax rate at a public 
meeting to be held on September 17, 2018. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
For informational purposes, the proposed tax rate of $0.63 would raise the tax bill of an average home valued 
at $100,000 by $30.00 annually or $2.50 per month. 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve a proposal to adopt a tax rate of $.63. 
 
 
Director Approval:   Sandra Clarkson, CPA    
 
Assistant City Manager/   
City Manager Approval:  Anthony J. Snipes, City Manager 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(b)(4) Consider authorizing an amended pumpage fee based on recommendation from 

the Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee 
  

Submitted by: Shashi K. Kumar, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 

SYNOPSIS 
 

The Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee comprised of plan participants is charged with 
maintaining oversight over the implementation of the GRP program as well as setting/amending pumpage 
rates from time-to-time, as may become necessary.  At the August 21, 2018 GRP Oversight Committee 
meeting, the Committee recommended amendments to the pumpage fees to meet anticipated growth and 
expansion needs.  The City Council is to consider recommendations from this committee and authorize 
proposed changes (increase) to the pumpage fees.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Fort Bend Subsidence District (FBSD) was created by the Texas State Legislature in 1989, for the 
purpose of regulating withdrawal of groundwater to minimize land subsidence (sinking) and associated risks, 
which includes flooding impacts.  Each City and municipal utility district (MUD) in east Fort Bend County is 
required to reduce groundwater pumpage to no more than 70% of the total water demand withdrawn from 
the ground.  To meet this mandate by the Subsidence District, the City and MUDs have adopted and 
implemented a Joint Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP).  The City with partnership from 30-plus other local 
entities has constructed a Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant to produce treated surface water to meet 
this mandate.  Currently, about 42% of the total water supplied to the GRP participant area is attributed to 
surface water supplies (well above the 30% mandate by FBSD).  Water users located within the participant 
area contribute to the cost associated with meeting the FBSD mandate, which includes construction and 
operation of a Surface Water Plant and the purchase of raw surface water from the Brazos River.  This cost 
is passed on to all water customers (residents) within the participant area by paying a GRP fee based on the 
actual metered water usage. The GRP Oversight Committee which is comprised of plan participants is 
charged with maintaining oversight over the implementation of the GRP program as well as setting/amending 
pumpage rates from time-to-time, as may become necessary. 
 

The current wholesale pumpage fee charged by the City to its providers (MUD’s etc.) is $1.65 per 1,000 
gallons, and is proposed to increase to $1.72 on October 1, 2018 for fiscal year FY19.  This increase was 
substantiated after a detailed financial analysis (pro-forma) taking into account the projected revenues, 
expenses, debt service obligations and operating reserves for the 5-year planning horizon.  An average 
household within the city uses 8,000 gallons per month and currently pays a monthly GRP fee of about $18 
per month, which may include an administrative fee charged by the MUD/billing agent.  The proposed 
increase will be in the range of $0.57 for an average resident’s water bill. 
 

Both the current fee and increased fee are significantly lower than other pumpage (GRP) fees in the County, 
and much lower than the FBSD disincentive fee of $6.50 per thousand gallons which is charged to entities 
not meeting the 30% reduction mandate.  The increase in GRP pumpage is necessitated to support the 



Phase II expansion of the Surface Water Plant from the current 10MGD capacity to 20 MGD capacity to meet 
projected growth/demand and to comply with the FBCD mandates.  It should be noted that the GRP fee is a 
result of the FBSD mandate and not an additional tax levied by the City or the MUD.  The GRP Committee 
also recommended the following amendments (increase) to the pumpage fees and the Groundwater Users 
Fee in the out years with the ability to re-evaluate and recommend adjustments to the fees in each fiscal 
year, as necessary: 
 

Groundwater Pumpage Fee 
 $1.72 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2019 thru 2020 
 $1.75 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2021 thru FY2022 
 $1.76 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2023 

 

Groundwater User’s Fee 
 $0.47 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2019 
 $0.48 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2020 
 $0.50 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2021 
 $0.51 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2022 
 $0.53 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2023 

 

Per the recommendations from the City’s financial consultant and staff, this proposed rate change (increase) 
will enable the GRP Committee to obtain debt at a favorable rate to fund the planned plant expansion while 
maintain a healthy operational reserve for any unforeseen contingencies.  
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY19 Funds 
Budgeted 

FY19 Funds 
Available 

Amount to be 
Received yearly 

RWTP 
Revenue 

540-45524-01-
001- 
 

GRP Pumpage 
Fees 

$-4,714,301 $0 $-4,984,909 

RWTP 
Revenue 

540-45540-01-
001- 

Groundwater 
User Fee 

$-4,386,221 $0 $-4,622,595 

 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Schedule 3 – GRP Fee Analysis Summary  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Accept recommendations of the Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee and amend the 
GRP Pumpage fee to reflect the attached Schedule 3, effective October 1, 2018.  
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
City Manager Approval:   





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 8(a) Consider nominations and cast votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League 

Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees. 
  
Submitted by: Maria Jackson, City Secretary 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Consider candidate nominations and cast votes for candidates to serve the Texas Municipal League 
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The TMLIRP is the leading provider of workers' compensation, liability, and property coverage for local 
governments in Texas. Founded in 1974, TMLIRP is the oldest and largest pool of its type in the United 
States, serving over 2,800 governments and political subdivisions. TMLIRP’s mission is to provide Texas 
municipalities and other units of local government with a stable source of risk financing and loss prevention 
services at the lowest cost consistent with sound business practices. 
 
TML Region 14, San Jacinto Region/Houston Area, is one of the 15 sub-state regions to promote local 
interests in city government, facilitate the exchange of information among the cities in this region, and assist 
the TML Board of Directors in formulating policy that represents the diverse interests of the state. 
 
The City of Missouri City is a member of the TMLIRP and entitled to vote for Board of Trustee members. The 
TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool Board is comprised of fifteen voting members, twelve of whom are elected 
by the Pool’s membership to serve staggered, six-year terms. 
 
Council may vote for one candidate for each place or a write-in candidate to the TMLIRP Board of Trustees. 
Ballots must be received no later than September 30, 2018. The candidates are as follows: 
 

PLACE 11 
 
Dietrich von Biedenfeld. Alderman for the City of West Columbia (Region 14) since May 2012. Mr. 
Biedenfeld teaches at the Marilyn Davies College of Business at the University of Houston - Downtown and 
is a VA-accredited attorney. He serves as Chair of the Dispute Resolution Committee and past Chair of the 
Public Contract Law Committee for the American Bar Association Young Lawyer Division. He is also 
President of the Brazoria County Cities Association. Mr. Biedenfeld is a member of the International 
Association of Emergency Managers, Federal Bar Association, NIGP: The Institute for Public Procurement, 
and U.S. Green Building Council. He is also a member of the Columbia Historical and Brazoria County 
Heritage Museums. 
 
Randy Criswell (Incumbent). City Manager for the City of Canyon (Region 2) since 2008. Mr. Criswell has 
served on the TML Risk Pool Board Trustees since 2015 and currently serves as Chair of the Underwriting 
and Claims Committee. He has been in public service for 28 years, with nearly 24 years as an employee of 
the City of Canyon. Mr. Criswell has a Bachelor of Science degree from Texas Tech University, is an active 
member of TCMA, having served multiple terms on the Board of Directors and Committees. He has served 



as the TCMA Affiliate Representative on the TML Board of Directors, is a member of ICMA, and is a Certified 
Public Manager. 
 
Rick A. Schroder. City Administrator for the City of Helotes (Region 7) since September 2008. Mr. Schroder 
also serves as the Executive Director for the Helotes Economic Development Corporation (EDC). Prior to his 
tenure as City Administrator, Rick was employed by the EDC as the Economic Development Specialist from 
2006 to 2008. He graduated Magna Cum Laude from Trinity University in 2004 with a degree in Political 
Science, and he earned a Master of Public Service and Administration in 2006 from the George H.W. Bush 
School of Government and Public Service at Texas A&M University. During his coursework, he worked for a 
variety of public and private organizations, primarily focused on public service and government relations. 
 

PLACE 12 
 
Bert Lumbreras. City Manager for the City of San Marcos, Texas (Region 10). Bert Lumbreras has 37 years 
of experience as a City Manager or an Assistant City Manager in seven Texas communities, including Austin 
and Waco. He currently serves as the International City/County Management Association Mountain Plains 
Vice President and previously served on the Board of Directors of the Texas City Management Association 
from 2010-2014, including President in 2012.  He has a Bachelor's Degree in Political Science, with a 
concentration in Public Administration, and a minor in Geography and Urban Planning from Southwest Texas 
State University. 
 
Kimberly Meismer. Executive Director of General Operations for the City of Kerrville (Region 7), overseeing 
Human Resources, Municipal Court, Public Library, and Public Information. Ms. Meismer has over 21 years 
of public service, which includes serving the Cities of Kerrville and La Porte. She earned a Master's degree 
in Public Administration from U.T.-Arlington and a Bachelor's degree in Human Resource Management from 
Columbia Southern University. She is a member of the TCMA, International Public Management Association 
for Human Resources (IPMA-HR), Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM), San Antonio Human 
Resource Management Association, and is a former President of the Bay Area Human Resource 
Management Association. She is an IPMA-HR Senior Certified Professional and a SHRM Certified 
Professional. 
 
Jana Traxler. Human Resources Director and Risk Manager for the City of Murphy, Texas (Region 13). Jana 
Traxler is a municipal Human Resources Executive who is committed to being a strategic partner in municipal 
management, an employee advocate and a change agent. She has experience working in both local and 
state governments as well as experience working under a state funded contract with Hewlett Packard 
Enterprise Services. Prior to relocating to Murphy, Texas, she held the position of the Human Resources 
Labor Relations Officer for Shawnee County, Kansas. She is a graduate of the Villanova University Masters 
in Human Resource Development program and holds the Senior Professional in Human Resources 
designation. 
 
Robert D. Wilson, Jr. Board of Directors of the Post Oak Savannah Ground Conservation District in Milano, 
Texas (Region 10) for the last four years. Robert Wilson has also served on the Board of Directors for the 
Southwest Milam Water Supply Corporation for the past 13 years, and currently is the President. Mr. Wilson 
graduated from the University of Minnesota, majoring in mathematics. He was a Captain in the US Army, 
1964-1968, and served in Viet Nam. He spent over 40 years in Commercial Banking, with the last 15 as 
Branch President of Citizens National Bank in Rockdale, Texas. Mr. Wilson has served on numerous local 
boards and organizations, volunteering his time to assist and improve the quality of life in Rockdale over the 
past 15 years. He is active in his church as a Sunday School Teacher, Deacon, and Treasurer. 
 

PLACE 13 
 
Byron Black. (Incumbent). Board Chair, Central Appraisal District of Johnson County (Region 8). He served 
as Mayor of Burleson from 1998-2004, previously serving as mayor pro tern and as a Councilmember. He 
currently serves as Chair of the Impact Fee Committee for the City of Burleson. Mr. Black is a past board 



member of the Area Metro Ambulance Authority Board. He was a member of the Burleson Independent 
School District Board for 12 years, nine as President, and served as president of TASB. Mr. Black has served 
as a Board member of the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool since 2000, serving as Vice-Chair and Chair. 
 
Mike Jones. Chief Appraiser/Chief Administrator of the Fannin Central Appraisal District in Bonham, Texas 
(Region 13). His service in the property tax profession began in February, 2006 after serving a 20-year career 
in the United States Air Force. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Occupational Education from Wayland 
Baptist University. His professional credentials include the Registered Professional Appraiser and Registered 
Texas Assessor/Collector Designations, a Certified Tax Administrator from the Institute of Certified Tax 
Administrators and a Certified Chief Appraiser from the Texas Association of Appraisal Districts and the 
Texas Association of Assessing Officers. 
 

PLACE 14 
 
Bert Echterling. Mayor for the City of Robinson (Region 9) since 2015. Mr. Echterling has served as a 
council member for Robinson since 2006. He serves on the McLennan County Park Committee and on the 
Robinson Campus Improvement Committee. He is a past Board Member for the Robinson Economic 
Development Committee and the Robinson Chamber of Commerce. He was born and raised in Robinson, 
graduated from Robinson High School, and attended McLennan Community College. In 1996, he joined the 
family business, Echterling Builders, which he has owned since. 
 
David J. Harris. City Administrator for the City of Balcones Heights (Region 7) since 2014. Mr. Harris began 
his local government career in 1996 at Bexar County and has served 18 years in leadership of the cities of 
Hill Country Village (City Administrator), Schertz (Assistant City Manager), and Alamo Heights (Interim 
Director). He serves as Immediate Past President and on the Board of the Texas City Management 
Association, Secretary of TML Region 7, President of Alamo Heights Rotary Club. Mr. Harris received his 
BA in American Studies from Whitworth University and a MS in Urban Administration from Trinity University. 
He is an ICMA Credentialed Manager and a member of TCMA and ICMA. 
 
David Rutledge. Mayor of Bridge City (Region 16) since 2016, re-elected to a second term this past May, 
previously served as council member from 2005-2010 (term-limited), again in 2015, and is a representative 
on the Southeast Texas Regional Planning Commission (COG). Active in TML, he has been recognized as 
a Certified Municipal Official (CMO) the previous three years, is Vice President of TML Region 16, and serves 
on the TML Municipal Advocacy Committee and the Municipal Policy Summit. A mechanical engineer by 
profession from Lamar University in Beaumont, he serves on that university's Mechanical Engineering 
Advisory Council. 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City of Missouri City in voting for the TMLIRP Board of Trustees. 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Cast votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool Board of Trustees. 
 
Director Approval:   Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item:      9(a) Consider authorizing the execution of an agreement between the City and Fort Bend 

County (Sheriff’s Department) for the use of Station Five as a mini sub-station for 
Deputy’s.  

  
Submitted by: Eugene Campbell, Jr., Fire Chief 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This agreement for the use of the current patrol officer room that is currently unoccupied, would allow the 
county Deputy’s assigned to the Sienna Plantation beat to report directly to Station 5.   
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live. 
 Develop a high performance city team. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The approval of the agreement would permit the Deputy’s to stay within their beat as opposed to going to 
Richmond and arriving 45 minutes after their assigned shift time and leaving 45 minutes early.  This initial 
gap in time is driving time and at the end of their shift is for report writing purposes that produce a timeframe 
of non-coverage within this beat.  The agreement would allow the Deputy’s the opportunity to start and end 
their shift at Station Five, complete their reports within their beat utilizing the patrol room, and would provide 
citizens a place to meet Deputy’s to initiate reports.   
 
The Missouri City Fire and Rescue Services has worked with other City of Missouri City Departments 
(Information Technology, Building Maintenance, and our Legal Department) along with the Fort Bend County 
Sheriff’s Department to ensure that this agreement would allow for the citizens living within Sienna Plantation 
would have optimal Officer presence both day and night.   
 
The agreement would provide an opportunity for both the Fire Department and the Sheriff’s department an 
opportunity to protect the risks in our districts and beats. The agreement provides the opportunity for Deputy’s 
to stay within the neighborhood and will ensure a more rapid deployment of Deputy’s to assist both the City’s 
fire services and distressed callers.   
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 

Funding 
Source Account Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY18 
Funds 

Budgeted 

FY18 
Funds 

Available 
Amount 

Requested 
General 

Fund 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
Purchasing Review:   Shannon Pleasant, CTPM - Procurement & Risk Manager   



Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Draft agreement 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the agreement and seeks support to implement the agreement and move 
forward with sending the agreement to the County Judge for approval. 
 
Director Approval:    Eugene Campbell, Fire Chief  
 
City Management Approval: Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 
 
 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(b) Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for sidewalk construction and repair 

services to Brooks Concrete. 
  
Submitted by: Clifford Brouhard, P.E., PTOE, Assistant Director of Public Works 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
The Streets Division is charged with the responsibility of repairing and maintaining the citywide network of 
sidewalks.  Due to the large volume of sidewalk repairs required, term contracts for these services are 
desired.  The estimated cost of these services are over $50,000 and therefore require authorization by City 
Council. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Concrete sidewalk pavements over time require maintenance and repairs to eliminate cracking, separations, 
tripping hazards, and other related failures.  Per the City’s Sidewalk Maintenance Program, sidewalk 
pavement should be maintained to protect the general public from injury by identifying hazards and ensuring 
their timely correction and to protect the general public’s investment into the transportation system. 
 
Therefore, the Public Works Department initiated a bid request to accomplish the City’s stated goals.  The 
vendor awarded this contract will provide sidewalk construction and repair services on an as need basis.  
Sidewalks to be repaired under this contract will be based on our current work order system and sidewalks 
will be investigated for placement into the work order queue. 
 
Purchasing Division advertised invitation to bid IFB #19-306 - Term Contract for Sidewalk Construction and 
Repairs in the Fort Bend Independent newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  The bid was posted on 
Demandstar and ESBD bid posting websites for public download.  Purchasing sent bid notices via email to 
vendors registered with Missouri City and the State’s county HUB list.  The bid was publicly opened on 
August 14, 2018 where two bids were received.  Brooks Concrete located at 4018 Allen Genoa Rd, 
Pasadena, TX 77504 was the low bidder to this invitation to bid. 
 
Brooks Concrete is the City’s incumbent awarded vendor for sidewalk construction and repair services.  The 
Staff is well acquainted with Brooks Concrete’s work and has been satisfied with their overall quality and 
performance. 
 
Therefore, staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to award Brooks Concrete the term 
contract for IFB #19-306 Sidewalk Construction and Repairs from the date of contract execution through 
September 31, 2019 with (3) three automatic (1) one-year renewals for a total contract length of (4) four 
years.  A Standard City contract will be executed.   
 



BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account Number Project Code/Name FY19 
Funds 
Budgeted 

FY19  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested

Metro Funds 401-54109-15-401-50054 Sidewalk Repairs $400,000 $400,000 $400,000* 

*$400,000 in Metro funds are allocated yearly to pay for sidewalk repairs.  The total over the next 4 years is 
approximately $1,600,000 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Bid tabulation sheet 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for concrete sidewalk construction and repair to Brooks 
Concrete for the unit prices bid.        
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
City Manager Approval:   
 



Description

Aleksander 

Omega, LLC

Brooks 

Concrete

Manhole Adjustments 750.00$             100.00$    

Wheelchair Ramp, New 2,300.00$          550.00$    

Wheelchair Ramp, R&R 3,000.00$          750.00$    

Bricks 5.00$                  2.50$        

Sidewalk New 6" 9.50$                  5.18$        

Sidewalk New 4" 8.50$                  4.98$        

Sidewalk R&R 4" 12.00$                5.88$        

Sidewalk R&R 6" 13.00$                6.07$        

6" Curb 45.00$                6.25$        

Tree Root Removal 750.00$             200.00$    

Sod 7.00$                  0.45$        

6,900.00$          1,631.31$

IFB #19‐306 Sidewalk Construction and Repair



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(c) Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for pavement construction and 

repair services 
  
Submitted by: Clifford Brouhard, P.E., PTOE, Assistant Director of Public Works 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Roadway pavement repair and maintenance of City streets is a major task under the responsibility of the 
City’s Streets Division within the Public Works Department.  Large pavement repair and maintenance needs 
often require work that City staffing levels and equipment are not capable of undertaking.  Due to the scale 
and nature of this work, the City desires term contracts for these services.  The estimated cost of these 
services is over $50,000 and therefore requires authorization by City Council. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Concrete pavements over time require maintenance and repairs to eliminate cracking, separations, potholes, 
and other related failures.  Pavement should be repaired or maintained in a timely manner to protect the 
general public from damage to vehicles, to correct poor surface drainage, to avoid more extensive roadway 
damage, etc. By identifying pavement condition and ensuring their timely repair and maintenance, it well will 
help extend the general public’s investment in the transportation infrastructure. 
 
Therefore, the Public Works Department initiated a bid request to accomplish this goal.  The vendor awarded 
this contract will provide pavement construction and repair services on an as need basis.  Pavement sections 
to be repaired under this contract will be investigated by City staff for extent of damage and determination of 
repair or maintenance needs. 
 
Purchasing Division advertised invitation to bid IFB #19-307 - Term Contract for Pavement Construction and 
Repairs in the Fort Bend Independent newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  The bid was posted on 
Demandstar and Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), bid posting websites for public download.  
Purchasing sent bid notices via email to vendors registered with Missouri City and the State’s county HUB 
list.  The bid was publicly opened on August 14, 2018 where two bids were received.  Brooks Concrete 
located at 4018 Allen Genoa Rd, Pasadena, TX 77504 was the low bidder to this invitation to bid. 
 
Brooks Concrete is the City’s incumbent awarded vendor for pavement construction and repair services.  The 
Staff is well acquainted with Brooks Concrete’s work and has been satisfied with their overall quality and 
performance. 
 
Therefore, staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to award Brooks Concrete the term 
contract for IFB #19-307 Pavement Construction and Repairs from the date of contract execution through 
September 31, 2019 with (3) three automatic (1) one-year renewals for a total contract length of (4) four 
years.  A Standard City contract will be executed.   



 
BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 

 
Funding 
Source 

Account Number Project Code/Name FY19 
Funds 
Budgeted 

FY19  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

Metro 
Funds 

401-53537-15-
401-50063 

50063/Pavement Maint. & 
Management Program 

$697,000 $697,000 $697,000* 

*$697,000 in Metro funds are allocated yearly to pay for sidewalk repairs.  The total over the next 4 years is 
approximately $2,800,000 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Bid tabulation sheet 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for concrete pavement construction and repair to Brooks 
Concrete for the unit prices bid.        
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E.  
 
Assistant City Manager/  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
City Manager Approval:   
 



Description

Aleksander 

Omega, LLC

Brooks 

Concrete

2" Saw Cut  $                2.50   $         2.15 

Full depth saw cut  $                7.50   $         7.32 

Spalled joint repair  $              15.00   $         3.00 

6" Curb  $              50.00   $         6.28 

7" Conrete R&R  $              15.00   $         7.82 

High Early 7" R&R  $              17.00   $         7.98 

Manhole Adjustments 1,000.00$         100.00$    

Inlet Adjustments 3,000.00$         100.00$    

Wheelchair Ramp 2,750.00$         550.00$    

Bricks 5.00$                 2.50$        

6" Driveway Repair 13.00$               6.19$        

Sidewalk R&R 4" 12.00$               5.79$        

Sidewalk R&R 6" 13.00$               6.19$        

Sidewalk New 4" 10.00$               4.88$        

Sidewalk New 6" 11.00$               5.18$        

6" Driveway New 11.00$               5.18$        

Tree Root Removal No Bid 200.00$    

Sod No Bid 0.45$        

IFB #19‐307 Concrete Construction and Repair



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(d) Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for concrete pavement lifting 

services to Concrete Raising Corporation. 
  
Submitted by: Clifford Brouhard, P.E., PTOE, Assistant Director of Public Works 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
The Streets Division periodically repairs on an as-needed basis concrete street pavement and concrete 
sidewalk using specific methods, such as leveling or trimming the surface.  The City’s Streets Division 
desires term contracts for these services.  The estimated cost of these services are over the $50,000 
threshold and therefore will require authorization by the City Council. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Concrete street pavement sometimes requires leveling or trimming of concrete pavement to eliminate 
swales, birdbaths, and related failures on concrete roadways and signal pads throughout the City.  Concrete 
sidewalk pavement, per the City’s Sidewalk Maintenance Program, is maintained to protect the general public 
from injury by identifying hazards and ensuring their timely correction. In addition, it extends the investment 
in the transportation system, which includes sidewalks, driveways, and curbs in a way that protects street 
trees and other desirable vegetation whenever possible.   
 
Therefore, the Public Works Department initiated this bid to accomplish the goals stated above.  The awarded 
vendor will provide repair services on an as need basis for sidewalk pavement raising and concrete roadway 
pavement raising based on the attached bit price.       
 
Purchasing Division advertised invitation to bid IFB #19-304 - Term Contract for Concrete Pavement Lifting 
in the Fort Bend Independent newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  The bid was posted on Demandstar 
and Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), bid posting websites for public download.  Purchasing sent bid 
notices via email to vendors registered with Missouri City and the State’s county HUB list.  The bid was 
publicly opened on August 14, 2018, where one bid was received.  Concrete Raising Corporation (CRC) 
located at 10118 Moers Rd. Houston, TX 77075 was the sole vendor to respond to this invitation to bid. 
 
Concrete Raising Corporation is also the City’s incumbent awarded vendor for these services.  Staff is well 
acquainted and has been satisfied with the overall quality of work performed by CRC.   
 
Therefore, staff recommends that City Council award CRC the term contract for IFP #19-304 Concrete 
Pavement Lifting from the date of contract execution through September 31, 2019 with (3) three automatic 
(1) one-year renewals for a total contract length of (4) four years.  A standard City contract will be executed 
upon Council authorization. 
 



BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY19 
Funds Budgeted 

FY19  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

Metro Funds 
401-54109-15-
401-50054 

Sidewalk Repairs $400,000 $400,000 $400,000* 

Metro Funds 
401-53537-15-
401-50063 

50063 / Pavement 
Maintenance. & 
Management 
Program 

$697,000 $697,000 $697,000* 

*$400,000 & $697,000 in Metro funds are allocated yearly to pay for sidewalk and pavement repairs.  The 
average amount spent with CRC is approximately $200,000 a year. The total over the next 4 years is 
approximately $1,000,000. 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Bid tabulation sheet 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for concrete pavement lifting services to 
Concrete Raising Corporation (CRC).        
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
City Manager Approval:   
 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(e) Consider authorizing an amended interlocal agreement with City of Stafford for the 

use of the City’s Animal Shelter. 
  
Submitted by: Shashi K. Kumar, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
The current interlocal agreement with the City of Stafford for the joint use of the City’s Animal Shelter has 
expired and a new agreement is being presented for City Council authorization.  Under the terms of the new 
agreement, enhanced level or care is being proposed for Stafford animals consistent with the City’s recently 
adopted Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) along with a pro-rata share of cost increase to provide these 
additional services.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Develop a high performing City team 
 Create a great place to live 

 
BACKGROUND 

Since 1987 the City of Stafford and Missouri City have had an agreement for the joint use of the City’s Animal 
Shelter, at that time Stafford agreed to pay a monthly fee of $564.  This agreement was renewed in 1989 at 
the same rate of $564 a month.  In 1999 the agreement was renewed with an increase in the monthly cost 
to $1,000.   
 
In 2011, the City of Stafford and Missouri City executed an agreement for the redesign and construction of 
the new Animal Shelter, where the City of Stafford contributed $100,000 towards the design and construction 
expenses of the new Shelter.  The most recent joint use agreement, executed in October of 2011, has expired 
and with the recent increase in the level of service expected by City Council, a new agreement with a cost 
increase to absorb the pro-rate share of associated cost is needed.  The City of Stafford is currently paying 
Missouri City $1,674 monthly for the use of City’s facility.   
 
In the recent months, Council has adopted a new schedule of fees, updates to the City’s Animal ordinances, 
has reviewed the new Standard Operating Procedures and authorized a new Animal Services Manager 
position. In addition, upon the expiry of 72-hr hold, City animals are currently being administered basic 
vaccinations and medications as part of enhanced level of care.  Per the amended interlocal agreement, 
these services would now be extended to Stafford animals, to ensure a uniformity of care for all animals 
within the City’s Animal Shelter.  This will aid greatly in preventing the spread of transmittable diseases and 
improving the prospects of adoption of these animals by the respective jurisdictions. 
 
With the new increased level of service that Missouri City will be providing, a new monthly fee of $2,447 will 
be charged to City of Stafford.  With this increased cost, the following services will be included:  
 

After the 72-hour hold period, COMC will provide the following services: 
 

 Basic and booster vaccinations will be administered (DHPP, Bordatella) 



 Dewormer will be given monthly 
 Heartworm prevention will be given monthly  
 Diagnostic testing (heartworm testing) 
 Access to contracted veterinarian services within the facility 

 
Also, in the absence of a City of Stafford representative, the COMC Animal Services Manager will now 
have the ability to make decisions on the disposition of animals for the any of the following: 
 critically ill 
 critically injured 
 high (behavioral) risk animals 
 25% of use is exceeding and shelter is at full capacity 

 
City’s staff have worked with our counterpart (s) at City of Stafford over the past 3-months in arriving at this 
new amended agreement, to which City of Stafford has been very cooperative.  COMC Animal Services 
Manager will prepare a weekly report of all Stafford animals present in the facility to include the status, 
condition, and time in shelter to a City of Stafford representative.  
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY19 Funds 
Budgeted 

FY19 Funds 
Available 

Amount to be 
Received yearly 

General 
Revenue 

101-46510-15-
001- 

Animal Control 
Reimb. 

$-20,000 $0 $-29,364 

 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Amended Interlocal agreement 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the Mayor to execute and the City Secretary to attest authorizing the amended interlocal 
agreement with the City of Stafford.  
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
City Manager Approval:   
 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 1 of 8 

 
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF STAFFORD, TEXAS, AND THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, FOR 
THE JOINT USE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY ANIMAL SHELTER 

 
This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”), is 

made and entered into pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code, by and between the CITY OF STAFFORD, TEXAS (hereinafter referred 
to as “Stafford”), acting by and through the City Council of Stafford, and the CITY OF 
MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS (hereinafter referred to as “Missouri City”), acting by and through 
the City Council of Missouri City. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, Missouri City operates an animal shelter (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Animal Shelter”) located at 1919 Scanlin Road, Missouri City, Texas; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Animal Shelter is solely owned by Missouri City; and  
 

WHEREAS, since 1987, Missouri City has assisted Stafford by allowing Stafford to use 
the Animal Shelter for the shelter, maintenance, and disposition of animals impounded by 
Stafford; and  

 
WHEREAS, Stafford has compensated Missouri City pursuant to a contract for such 

use; and  
  
WHEREAS, Stafford desires that Missouri City continue to assist Stafford by allowing 

Stafford to use the Animal Shelter for the shelter, maintenance, and disposition of animals 
impounded by Stafford; and 

 
WHEREAS, provided that the Animal Shelter has the capacity to accommodate 

Stafford animals, Missouri City desires to continue to assist Stafford in the shelter, 
maintenance, and disposition of animals impounded by Stafford; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the current cost of operating the Animal Shelter is $213,232 as 
determined by calculating the total amount incurred by Missouri City attributable to the Animal 
Shelter; and  
 

WHERAS, such monthly fee includes, but is not limited to, operational costs and a 
facility use fee; and   
 

WHEREAS, Stafford desires to pay Missouri City the monthly fee as calculated in 
Exhibit “A;” and  

 
WHEREAS, the joint use of the Animal Shelter by Missouri City and Stafford will 

mutually benefit Missouri City and Stafford; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements 

and benefits to the parties herein named, Stafford and Missouri City agree as follows:  

 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 2 of 8 

  
ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

 
1.01 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the joint use of the Animal Shelter by 
Stafford and Missouri City.  
 

ARTICLE II 
TERM 

 
2.01 The term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year from the date of execution by the 
second party to execute this Agreement and shall automatically renew each year thereafter 
for a one (1) year term, for a total of five (5) such terms, unless the party terminating the 
Agreement gives the other party written notice of its intention to terminate this Agreement at 
least sixty (60) days before the date of termination. 
 

ARTICLE III 
DEFINITION 

 
3.01 Animal shall mean a dog, cat, or other domestic mammal not exceeding one hundred 
fifty pounds (150 lbs.) in weight. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
JOINT DUTIES 

 
4.01 Missouri City and Stafford agree to apportion the responsibility for the daily 
maintenance of the Animal Shelter.  Daily maintenance of the Animal Shelter shall include 
occasionally checking on the animals, feeding and watering the animals, cleaning the facility, 
and other similar or related activities, as determined and agreed to by both parties.   
  

ARTICLE V 
STAFFORD’S RIGHTS AND DUTIES 

 
5.01 Provided that the Animal Shelter has the capacity to accommodate Stafford animals, 
Stafford shall have the right to use the Animal Shelter for the shelter, maintenance, and 
disposition of animals impounded by Stafford.  Stafford shall be responsible for providing 
veterinary care to Stafford animals.  Stafford may use the euthanasia room at the Animal 
Shelter to perform any required euthanasia of a Stafford animal. The euthanasia of a Stafford 
animal shall be performed by the Stafford Animal Control Officer or his designee.  
 
5.02 Stafford shall clean all Animal Shelter kennels Monday through Friday morning of each 
week this Agreement is in effect. 
 
5.03 Stafford shall comply with Missouri City’s standard operating procedures for the 
operation of the Animal Shelter.  
   
5.04 Stafford further agrees to pay Missouri City the monthly fee as calculated in Exhibit “A” 
in advance for each month this Agreement is in effect for the use of the Animal Shelter for the 
shelter, maintenance, and disposition of animals impounded by Stafford.  Stafford agrees that 
such fee may be readjusted by Missouri City in accordance with this Agreement.   
 
5.05 Upon the provision of notice by Missouri City that insufficient capacity exists in the 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 3 of 8 

Animal Shelter for the continuation of this Agreement, Stafford agrees to remove its animals 
from the Animal Shelter within sixty (60) days of such notice.  
 

 
ARTICLE VI 

MISSOURI CITY’S RIGHTS AND DUTIES 
 
6.01 Provided that the Animal Shelter has the capacity to accommodate Stafford animals, 
Missouri City shall allow Stafford to use the Animal Shelter for the shelter, maintenance, and 
disposition of animals impounded by Stafford.  Missouri City shall make available basic food 
and incidental supplies at the Animal Shelter.  Missouri City shall be responsible for the 
disposition of all dead animal carcasses at the Animal Shelter. 
 
6.02 Missouri City shall clean all Animal Shelter kennels Monday through Friday afternoon 
and Saturday and Sunday morning of each week this Agreement is in effect. 
 
6.03 The City Manager of Missouri City or his designee shall determine whether the Animal 
Shelter has the capacity to accommodate Stafford animals.  Missouri City shall provide 
Stafford sixty (60) days notice of the City Manager’s or his designee’s determination of 
insufficient capacity.    
 
6.04 Missouri City may readjust the monthly fee on an annual basis.  At least ninety (90) 
days before the date on which the first term of this Agreement ends, and at least ninety (90) 
days before the date on which each subsequent term ends, Missouri City shall provide 
Stafford with written notice of the monthly fee to be in effect during the term of the Agreement 
immediately following the term in which notice is provided.   
   

ARTICLE VII 
OWNERSHIP OF ANIMAL SHELTER 

 
7.01 Missouri City and Stafford agree that Missouri City has maintained sole ownership of 
the Animal Shelter since the facility’s construction.  Both parties agree that during and after 
the term of this Agreement, Missouri City shall remain the sole owner of the Animal Shelter.  
  

ARTICLE VIII 
CURRENT REVENUE 

 
8.01 Each party understands and agrees that each party paying for the performance of 
governmental functions or services under this Agreement must make those payments from 
current revenues available to the paying party. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISION 
 

9.01 Each party, at its sole cost and expense, and its authorized representatives shall have 
the right to review and audit all books, records, vouchers and documents of whatever nature 
related to the other party's performance under this Agreement during the period of 
performance of this Agreement and for five (5) years thereafter or for so long as there exists 
any dispute or litigation arising from this Agreement.  
 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 4 of 8 

ARTICLE X 
LIABILITY 

 
10.01 By this paragraph, neither party waives or relinquishes any immunity from liability, 
limitation of liability, or defense on behalf of itself, its officers, employees, and agents 
provided by the Constitution and laws of the state of Texas as a result of its execution of this 
Agreement and the performance of the covenants contained herein.   
 
10.02 Each party to this Agreement agrees that it shall have no liability whatsoever for the 
actions or omissions of an individual employed by the other party regardless of where the 
individual’s actions occurred. Each party is solely responsible for the actions and/or 
omissions of its officers and employees.  

 
ARTICLE XI 

MISCELLANEOUS  
 

11.01 Venue for any litigation involving this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas.  
 
11.02 If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be held to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 
shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.  
 
11.03  This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing 
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other 
agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which is 
not contained herein shall be valid or binding. 
 
11.04  No party hereto shall make, in whole or in part, any assignment of this Agreement or 
any obligation hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party hereto.  
 

ARTICLE XII 
NOTICE 

 
12.01 All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
delivered on the third day following deposit in a United States Postal Service post office or 
receptacle with proper postage affixed (certified mail, return receipt requested) addressed to 
the respective other party at the address below or at such other address as the other party 
may have theretofore prescribed by notice to the sending party.  
 
12.02 Notices shall be addressed as follows:  

 
 Missouri City:   City of Missouri City  

1522 Texas Parkway  
Missouri City, Texas 77489  

 
Attention: City Manager 

  
Stafford:   City of Stafford  

2610 South Main Street  
Stafford, Texas 77539  



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 5 of 8 

    Attention: Mayor  
 
12.03 The parties may change their respective addresses and each may specify as its 
address any other address by providing at least fifteen (15) days written notice to the other 
party.  
 

ARTICLE XIII 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

 
13.01 This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the 
rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed. Any modification concerning this 
instrument shall be of no force and effect unless such modification is made in writing, 
approved by the governing bodies and signed by all parties hereto. 

 
IN TESTIMONY OF WHICH, this Agreement, in duplicate counterparts, each having 

equal force and effect of an original, has been executed on behalf of the parties hereto as 
follows:  

a. It has on the ___ day of _______________, 2018, been executed 
on behalf of Stafford, Texas, and by authority of a resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Stafford, Texas, authorizing such 
execution.  

 
b. It has on the ___ day of _______________, 2018, been executed 

on behalf of Missouri City, Texas, and by authority of a resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, authorizing 
such execution.  

 
  CITY OF STAFFORD, TEXAS 

   

  _______________________________ 

  Leonard Scarcella, Mayor 

  _______________________________ 

ATTEST:  Date 

   

_______________________________   

Bonnie Baiamonte, City Secretary   

 
  CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS 

   

  _______________________________ 

  Allen Owen, Mayor 

  _______________________________ 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 6 of 8 

ATTEST:  Date 

   

_______________________________   

Maria Jackson, City Secretary   

 



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 7 of 8 

Exhibit “A” 
The following reflects the applicable estimated cost reflected in the City’s proposed 2019 fiscal year 
(10/01/2018-09/30/2019) budget and the proposed yearly and monthly contribution from Stafford.  
 
Items Considered in 
Calculation of 
Stafford’s Costs   

City’s FY 2019 Cost per Year - 
Stafford 

Cost per Month – 
Stafford  

Comments  

ACO Supervisor 
Salary** 

$85,674 $8,567 $714 10% to Stafford 
(estimated time spent 
addressing/supervising 
ASO) 

Admin. Asst. 
Salary** 

$59,335 $5,934 $494 10% to Stafford 
(estimated time spent 
assisting in 
documenting, meeting 
public, answering 
phone/emails) 

Commodities $12,000 $3,000 $250 25% to Stafford 
(allotted use of facility 
capacity): 
Commodities include 
day to day necessities 
such as food, 
medicines, 
vaccinations, 
heartworm testing, 
office supplies and 
janitorial supplies 

Contractual  $30,000 $7,500 $625 25% to Stafford 
(allotted use of facility 
capacity): Contracts 
include carcass 
disposal, vet. 
evaluations in facility, 
computer services, 
insurance, facility 
maintenance, 
telephone and garbage 
collection 

Total Direct Costs  $187,009 $25,001 $2,083  
Overhead $12,980 $1,031 $86 8% to Stafford for 

City management, 
HR/OD, city 
secretary, legal, 
financial services, and 
public works (based 
on estimated time 
spent 
addressing/preparing 
associated 
issues/documents) 

Facility Use Fee* $13,333 $3,333 $278 25% to Stafford for 
use of facility, bldg.: 
value 30 yr  

Totals  $213,232 $29,365 $2,447  

 
*Facility Use Fee: Value based on insured value of $400,000, 30-year life  



2018.08.22.2 ILA Animal Services.doc  Page 8 of 8 

**Salaries include benefits: Taxes at 7.65%, TMRS at 15.08%, Long-term disabilities @ 0.28% and 
insurance at $13,348 per person.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(f) Consider authorizing the Farmers Market Partners’ request to host a monthly farmers 

market at 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway under the Special Event’s Permit Ordinance for a 
period expiration of November, 2019.  

  
Submitted by: Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Director, Development Services 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Farmers Market Partners has requested permission to utilize the grounds at 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway for 
the purposes of a seasonal farmers market to be held 1st & 3rd Saturdays of every month, from 10:00 am until 
2:00 pm. Current authorization expires November 30, 2018.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The applicants, Farmers Market Partners were approved for the Farmers Market to occur monthly, during 
the farming season until November 30, 2018 by City Council on April 16, 2018. The frequency limitation was 
waived under the Special Events provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, whereby Council authorization is 
required.  
 
Development Services including the Health Division, Communications, Police, and Code Enforcement staff 
members have monitored the events over the last four (5) months.  The partners have reached out to the 
HOA and surrounding residence in order to address outstanding inquiries and concerns from the surrounding 
community that resulted from the event.  A parking plan with agreements was decided on and was subject 
to the original authorization.   To date, staff is unaware of any public safety and health risk of the farmers 
market.  
 
Sponsors of this special event have agreed to ensure adequate parking, based on the projected number of 
attendees. Access has been monitored to assure reasonable traffic flow with a minimum amount of 
congestion.   A signage plan is also proposed within the project vicinity, including a banner flag placement at 
Lake Olympia Parkway at Highway 6 (on market day only) and directional signage to alleviate any traffic 
impacts for the 4-hour event.    
 
An upcoming meeting will be scheduled with Farmer’s Market Partners regarding a more permanent solution 
to the long-term proposal for the property, to address all Zoning Code issues from a land use perspective.  A 
formal map amendment request will be processed through the public hearing process, and a 
recommendation from the Planning Commission will be forwarded to Council at a later date.    
 
 
 



BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Written request submitted to Development Services for Approval. 
2. Power Point Presentation (Submitted by the Applicants) 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of this special event, subject to City Council action, due to waiver of the 
frequency clause within Section 9.10 Special Events that states that special events shall occur for two weeks, 
and no more frequently than every six months on the subject property, for a period ending November 30, 
2019, with the proposed signage plan request.    
 
Director Approval:   Otis Spriggs, Director of Development Services 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Scott R. Elmer, P.E. 
 



1

Otis Spriggs

From: thomasinejohnson@gmail.com

Sent: Friday, September 7, 2018 2:29 PM

To: Otis Spriggs

Cc: 'Jill Argento'

Subject: RE: Farmers Market Partners Additional Information

September 7, 2018 

 

Hi Otis, 

 

Per our conversation this morning, I would like to make the following amendments to the Farmers Market Partners 

continual special event request that was submitted July 18, 2018. 

• We would like for the continual permit to extend Farmers Market Partners Market Days  to November 30, 2019. 

 

• Be able to have an additional banner flag to be placed at the entrance at Lake Olympia Pkwy and Hwy 6 on day 

of the markets. 

 

• We will not ask for a yearly rate for the food truck vendors. 

 

 

If you need additional information prior to our meeting on September 17, 2018 please let me know. 

 

Thanks, 

Thomasine Johnson 

 

 

From: Otis Spriggs [mailto:otis.spriggs@missouricitytx.gov]  
Sent: Tuesday, July 24, 2018 5:05 PM 

To: thomasinejohnson@gmail.com 

Cc: Jill Argento 
Subject: RE: Farmers Market Partners Additional Information 

 

Thank you!  So noted…. 

 

 

Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
The "Show Me" City

 

Otis T. Spriggs, AICP | Director of Development Services 

1522 Texas Parkway | Missouri City, TX 77489 

t. 281.403.8661|  f. 281.403.5551  

website | map | email         

~ A Safe, Scenic City rated one of America's "Best" Places to Live 

~  

The Mission of the City Government of Missouri City is to provide municipal services in a 

financially responsible and customer friendly manner, while engaging our residents. How can we 

better serve you? Take our customer satisfaction survey. 



2

 

 

OTS 

 

From: thomasinejohnson@gmail.com [mailto:thomasinejohnson@gmail.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, July 24, 2018 1:08 PM 

To: Otis Spriggs <otis.spriggs@missouricitytx.gov> 

Cc: Jill Argento <ricottaj@hotmail.com> 

Subject: Farmers Market Partners Additional Information 

 

Hi Otis, 

 

Per our conservation this morning, please make note of the following two additional items 

that we are requesting in the packet you received last week regarding the Farmers Market 

Partners Continual Permit Request: 

•      Our request is for continual permit that would not have to be renewed every year. 

•      Request a yearly food truck permit rate for the food truck vendors that participates with 

Farmers Market Partners market days on more than one occasion.  

 

 

Please let me know if you need anything else from us to complete our request.  We would like 

to make sure we adhere to the  November 2018 mandate with the City of Houston.  The 

community response has been very favorable.  As always, it is a pleasure working with you and 

your team. 

 

Yours truly, 

Thomasine Johnson 

832-347-3811 (cell) 

 

 



Missouri City Planning and 

Zoning  

Special Event  

Continual Approval  

Request 

 

   
 

Presented By: 
 

 Jill Argento 

 Thomasine Johnson 
July 18, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
 Objective 

 

 Farmers Market Partners Overview 

 

 Benefits to Missouri  City and Community 

 

 Community Feedback 

 

 Requests and Permits to continue 

 

 Market Photos taken by Missouri City Communication Dept. 



Objective 

Provide the City with details of our Farmers Market to support a 
permanent approval to operate:  

 

 

 Dates:  1st & 3rd Saturday of every month 

  

 Location:  2700 Lake Olympia Parkway,              
  Missouri City, 77459 

 

 Time:  10 am to 2 pm  
   9 am to 1 pm summer  

 

 



 

 

 

 

Farmers Market Partners (FMP) 

Overview 

 FMP is a Farmers Market Management Company   

 Currently operating at 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway 

 Brainstorm of long time Missouri City residents Jill Argento and Thomasine Johnson 

 Partner and support local farmers, producers and specialty vendors 

 Build a stronger local food movement 

 Grow a diverse local food culture by maintaining an authentic space for all people  

 Provide a sustainable living for producers who steward the earth 

 Partner with non-profit organizations in support of their great causes  
 Boys Scouts of America, Alzheimer's  Association. Makarios, Boys Choir to name a few  

 

 Vendors  

 Local/Regional farmers and artisan food vendors 

 Non-profit organizations  

 Young Sprouts Club Lemonade Stand free of charge. Everything they earn they keep 
 Young Sprouts Entrepreneurs are earning up to $150.00  at lemonade stand. 

 Rotating Food Truck Vendors (2) 
 Great success for food truck vendors 

 



Farmers Market Partners (FMP) 

Overview 

 Community focal point 
 A place of destination for neighbors to meet and become more neighborly 

 Neighbors enjoy meeting and chatting with neighbors and friends 

  
 Educational/Entrepreneurial Program  

 Activity based “Young Sprouts Club” for ages 5 – 12 years olds 
 Avenue to teach entrepreneurial skills to children 
 Educational tool to teach children to make better food choices at a young age 
 An avenue for students to perform their community serve hours 
 Partnering with The Wide School and FBISD Schools 

 WIDE School had a great market day! 

 
 Parking 

 FMP addressed parking issues and concerns 
 Lake Olympia has no parking restrictions 
 Many patrons came by foot or bicycle 
 Patrons – due to our interactive map they shop and leave 

 Collaborated with MC Planning Department to address increase in traffic.  Solution found 
 

 Website Presence 
 www.FarmersMarketPartners.com 
 FMP had developed an app that allows the consumer to order online and pick up items at market 

 

http://www.farmersmarketpartners.com/


Benefits to Missouri City & Community 
 

 Incremental Missouri City Revenue 

 Temporary food permits required for certain vendors 
 More than a dozen food truck permits to date 

 

 Employment 

 We have generated employment for Missouri City residents via our vendors and with 
our management company.    

 

 Further enhance the profile and image of the City “The Show Me City” 

 

 Become a great destination point in Fort Bend County 

 

 Partnered with Missouri City Adopt a Pet Program 

 

 Community Focal Point 

 Strengthen the community spirit and safety through neighbors meeting each other at 
the market, hence forging a closer relationship to each other 

 

 Creating a sense of pride to live in our community as they will take on a sense of 
ownership that this is THEIR Missouri City Market By The Lake 

 

 The Lake Olympia Community is showcased as a desirable place to live 

 



Benefits to Missouri City & Community  

 Educational opportunity 

 Residents meeting the farmers who grow their food and learn about more 

seasonal style of eating  

 

 Great place for neighbors to meet 

 

 Our Young Sprouts Club mission is to inspire children to take part in their local food 

system and put a focus on the future generation to make better food choices 
from a young age 

 

 Young Sprouts Club participants are given a special educational tour with 
farmers the day of market 

 

 The Young Sprouts Club showcases Missouri City as being proactive to educate 
our younger generation. 

 

 



Benefits to Missouri City & Community  

 Entrepreneurial opportunity 

 

 The Young Sprouts Club participants are the emerging Missouri City entrepreneurs 

 Sprouts are learning how to run a business.  Parents have given FMP great feedback 

 

 Young Sprouts Club participants are given a certificate of appreciation 

 Young Sprouts are featured on FMP website 

 

 Young Sprouts Club participants are given a pot and flower seeds to start their 
own garden at home 

 

 The Young Sprouts Club participants keep all the money they earn the day of 

market 

 

 The Young Sprouts Club showcases Missouri City as being proactive to educate 
our younger generation. 

 

 



Community Feedback  

 

 

 

 Parking Concerns 

 Access Parking 

 Solutions:    

 Note preferred parking areas on the website 

 Provide parking area signs with specified language on day of market 

 Parking along Lake Olympia Pkwy where street parking is permitted 

 Parking at Palmer Elementary since the school is closed on Saturdays 
 

 Parking at Tennis Court and Pool Area 

 Solution: 

 Place signage that states no guest parking in this area day of market 

 



Community Feedback Parking solution 
 

 

 

 

Farmers Market Parking Area 

FMP has had no parking on Lake Olympia Pkwy 



Community Feedback (nextdoor.com) 

 Gena Tribble, Lake Olympia – Lakefront 

 “To say this is exciting news is an understatement!” 

 

 Vicky Pilom, Lake Olympia 

 “Awesome. So excited.” 

 

 Bethany Pegues, Palmer Plantation - Lake Olympia 

 “This is wonderful! Very excited!” 

 

 Tom Simpson, Lake Olympia 

 “Looking forward to it.” 

 

 Katheryn Prather, Palmer Plantation - Lake Olympia 

 “This is so awesome!” 

 

 Babs Arroyo, Lake Olympia – Lakefront 

 “Good job” 

 

 Kay Row, Lake Olympia – Lakefront 

 “We are excited about the fresh vegetables” 

 

 

 



Community Feedback (nextdoor.com) 
 Steve Tran, Lake Olympia 

 “I look forward to going to this every other Saturday.” 

 

 Deborah Douglas, Quail Valley Glenn Lakes 

 “This Farmers Market is a great addition to our community. We bought lots of goodies a couple 
of weeks ago and look forward to going again!” 

 

 Kyandria Edwards, Winfield lakes 

 “I can’t wait! I love farmers markets!” 

 

 Thomas Thomas, Vicksburg Village of Shiloh 

 “Very Good, I will be there.” 

 

 Denisa Forbes, Quail Valley Thunderbird 

 

 “We had a great time and bought lots of fresh veggies from Gundermann Acres and bread a 
couple of weeks ago. It was great running into friends and neighbors there. So, so glad that this 
is a continuing effort. I’ll be sure to share on FB.” 

 

 Terri Lauria, Quail Valley Thunderbird 

 “So wonderful to see a Farmers Market coming to our community!! That is so AWESOME!” 

 

 



Requests and Permits 

 Permanent Approval Request 

 Operate on the 1st and 3rd Saturday of the month at 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway, Missouri City  

 

 Directional Signage 

 Place directional signage within a 3 mile radius on the day the market is open 

 Place parking signage in designated areas 

 

 Feather Banners 

 Place feather banners (2.5x11.5) on the day of the market at the corner of Hwy 6 & Lake 
Olympia Parkway, Lake Olympia Parkway  at Lake Olympia Estate Entrance 

      & 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway 

 

 Building Banner 

 Place a building banner @ 2700 Lake Olympia Parkway week of the market 

 

 

Thank-you 

It has been a pleasure working with you. 

Jill Argento and Thomasine Johnson 



Farmers Market Partners in action ….  

 

 

 



Farmers Market Partners in action ….  

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 17, 2018 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 10(a) Consider an ordinance amending the FY 2018 Adopted Budget  
Submitted by: Bertha P. Alexander, MBA - Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 

 

SYNOPSIS 
 

Consider an ordinance amending the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, and ending 
September 30, 2018; transferring various appropriations among accounts; amending line items from the 
FY18 3-month extension budget amendment; authorizing the appropriate city officials to take steps 
necessary to accomplish such transfers making certain findings; containing certain provisions relating to the 
subject; and consider the ordinance on the first and final reading.    
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

 Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

In accordance with Article IX of the City of Missouri City Charter, upon request by the City Manager, the 
Council may by ordinance transfer part or all of any unencumbered balance from one department, office or 
agency to another. 
 

The purpose of this amendment is to revise appropriations in various line items and funds in accordance with 
the attached Exhibit A for the fiscal year 2018 Adopted Budget.  The details and purposes are outlined in the 
exhibit. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

See Exhibit A-Budget Amendment Details  
 

Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: Sandra Clarkson, CPA, Interim Director of Financial Services   
 
 

Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 
party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution.  

 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Budget Amendment Ordinance  
2. Exhibit A – Budget Amendment Details 

 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the FY 2018 budget amendment as presented. 
 

Director Approval:  Sandra Clarkson, CPA, Interim Director of Financial Services   
 

Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval: Anthony J. Snipes, City Manager 



 

AmendBudget FY 2018 2018.09.11.doc Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O-18- __ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE GENERAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JULY 1, 2017, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018; 
TRANSFERRING VARIOUS APPROPRIATIONS AMONG ACCOUNTS; 
APPROPRIATING SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUE TO VARIOUS FUND 
ACCOUNTS; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO 
TAKE STEPS NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH SUCH TRANSFERS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; AND CONTAINING CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. O-17-15, passed and approved on June 19, 2017, 

the City Council of the City of Missouri City (the “City Council”) approved and adopted 
the City of Missouri City, Texas, General Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2017, and ending June 30, 2018 (“fiscal year 2018”); and 

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. O-18-17, passed and approved on June 18, 2018, 

the City Council amended the fiscal year 2018 budget, extending the fiscal year to 
September 30, 2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 9.04 of the City Charter authorizes the City 

Council, upon written request by the City Manager, to transfer by Ordinance all or part 
of any unencumbered appropriations balance from one department, office, or agency to 
another; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 9.04 of the Charter authorizes the City Council, 

upon certification by the City Manager, to appropriate by Ordinance all or part of any 
unencumbered supplemental appropriations balance to one or more fund accounts, 
including capital improvement projects fund accounts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has certified that certain unencumbered 

appropriations and supplemental appropriations are available and has requested that 
such unencumbered appropriations be transferred to various other accounts and that 
such supplemental revenues be appropriated to various fund accounts; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of City Council to comply with the requests of the City 

Manager; now therefore, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 

Section 1.  The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby found to be true and correct. 



 

AmendBudget FY 2018 2018.09.11.doc Page 2 of 2 

 
Section 2.  The General Budget of the City of Missouri City, Texas, for the 

fiscal year 2018, as extended, be, and is hereby, amended as set forth in Exhibit “A,” 
budget transfers, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 3.  The appropriate officials are hereby authorized and directed to 

take those steps necessary to accomplish such transfers and to cause the same to be 
duly reflected in the records of the City. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this 17th day of 

September, 2018. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Allen Owen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Funding Source Account Number
Account Number 

Description

FY 2018 
Original 
Budget

FY 2018 
Proposed 

Budget 
Amendment

FY 2018 
Amended 
Budget 

Purpose/Description JRN# TYPE

Court Juvenile Case Fund 223-59101-10-106
Trans To 101-General 

Fund
             41,456                (6,000)                35,456 

General Revenues 101-49223-01-001
Trans From 223-CRT 

Juven Fund
           (41,456)                  9,455               (32,001) 484 3

Court Technology Fund 222-49221-01-001
Trans From Fund 221-

COURT SEC
           (28,773)                28,773                       -   

Court Building Security Fund 221-59222-10-106
Trans TO 222-Court Tech 

Fund
             28,773              (28,773)                       -   485 3

Surface Water Operating Fund 540-56535-99-999 Insurance Claim Expenses                     -                    1,000                  1,000 

Surface Water Operating Fund 540-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  (1,000)                 (1,000) 74 3

General Fund 101-53525-10-102 Legal Notices Exp.                     -                    1,135                  1,135 

CDBG 240-53501-17-217 Printing & Publishing                1,743                (1,135)                     608 363 3

MCDA 260-53509-10-260 Developer Agreement Exp                     -             1,125,000           1,125,000 

MCDA 260-49401-01-001
Trans From Fund 401-

Metro Proj
                    -           (1,125,000)          (1,125,000)

MCDA 260-39500-00-00 Appropriations                     -           (1,125,000)          (1,125,000)

MCDA 260-39400-00-000 Estimated Revenues                     -             1,125,000           1,125,000 777 3

Surface Water Operating Fund 540-56003-54-540- Training & Travel                     -                    5,000                  5,000 

Surface Water Operating Fund 540-39200-00-000- Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  (5,000)                 (5,000) 886 3

Metro Fund 401-41315-01-001-     Metro Tax Rebates/Reimb                     -              (488,712)             (488,712)

Metro Fund 401-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                488,712              488,712 894 3

General Fund 101-41302-01-001- Sales Tax Rebate                     -              (450,000)             (450,000)

General Fund 101-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                450,000              450,000 967 3

TIRZ#1 261-59101-10-261-
TRANS TO 101-
GENERAL FUND

             25,991                13,600                39,591 

TIRZ#2 262-59101-10-262-
TRANS TO 101-
GENERAL FUND

             60,260                13,600                73,860 

PID#2 263-59101-10-263-
TRANS TO 101-
GENERAL FUND

                    -                  13,600                13,600 

TIRZ#3 265-59101-10-265-
TRANS TO 101-
GENERAL FUND

             60,000                13,600                73,600 

PID#4 266-59101-10-266-
TRANS TO 101-
GENERAL FUND

                    -                  13,600                13,600 

TIRZ#1 261-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  13,600                13,600 

TIRZ#2 262-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  13,600                13,600 

PID#2 263-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  13,600                13,600 

TIRZ#3 265-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  13,600                13,600 

PID#4 266-39200-00-000 Budgetary FB Unreserved                     -                  13,600                13,600 1204 3

Reduce Budget Amendment Line Item 
from FY18 Extension BA. Journals 195 & 

227, Lines 26 & 552

Exhibit A-Budget Amendment Details

Reverse Budget Amendment Line Items 
from CC approved FY18 Extension BA, 

Journals 195 & 227

Cover salary for Assistant City Attorney 
for the administration and management 
and management of the Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zones (TIRZs), which was 
approved by the TIRZs Board on 

6/11/18.

Increase line from Fund Balance to 
cover training expenses for Utilities 

Manager

TML insurance claim paid, minus 
deductible, for electrical failure and fire 

that occurred at SWTP.

Moving Legal Notice expenses from 
Printing & Publishing to Legal Notices 

Exp.

To Transfer Park 8Ninety Original 
Budget from Fund 401 Metro Fund to 

Fund 260 MCDA Fund to prepare 
payment for developer project costs, per 

reimbursement request.

Move Funding for Metro Rebate to 
Sienna Planation Management District. 

Utilizing the revenue code for move 
transparency.

To adjust budget for sales tax rebates to 
account for only rebates paid from 101. 

Annual and quarterly payments.



Funding Source Account Number
Account Number 

Description

FY 2018 
Original 
Budget

FY 2018 
Proposed 

Budget 
Amendment

FY 2018 
Amended 
Budget 

Purpose/Description JRN# TYPE

Reduce Budget Amendment Line Item 
from FY18 Extension BA. Journals 195 & 

227, Lines 26 & 552

Exhibit A-Budget Amendment Details

Utility Operating Fund 505-48890-01-057 Impact Fee Revenue                     -              (500,000)             (500,000)

Utility Operating Fund 505-53570-50-057
WW Capacity Buy-In 

Expenses
                    -                500,000              500,000 1627 3

Surface Water Construction 542-48807-01-001 Bonds  Proceeds Revenue     (20,000,000)         20,000,000                       -   

Surface Water Construction
542-58700-54-666-

80026
Infrastructure 
Improvements

           416,628        (20,000,000)        (19,583,372) 1635 3

Surface Water Construction 542-57050-54-542 Bond Interest Expense         1,938,589                71,000           2,009,589 

Surface Water Construction 542-57550-54-542
Pay Agent/Registrar/ESC 

Exp
                    -                    1,500                  1,500 1636 3

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51001-57-570- REGULAR SALARIES            128,490 
               13,797 

             142,287 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-570-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
             12,073 

               (4,863)
                 7,210 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-570-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
               7,467 

                    933 
                 8,400 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-570-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
               2,580 

                  (443)
                 2,137 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51001-57-571- REGULAR SALARIES              37,136                21,648                58,784 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-571- OVERTIME                7,112                (7,112)                       (0)

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-571-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
           106,067                15,667              121,734 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-571-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
             12,029                       45                12,074 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-571-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
             10,366                  1,415                11,781 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-571-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
               2,495                  1,061                  3,556 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-572- OVERTIME                3,808                (3,808)                       -   

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-572-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
             26,996                  7,189                34,185 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-572-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
               2,614                   (324)                  2,290 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-572-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
               2,256                     265                  2,521 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-572-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
                 545                     126                     671 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-573- OVERTIME                  555                   (555)                       -   

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-573-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
             40,995                     (75)                40,920 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-573-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
               3,099                   (355)                  2,744 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-573-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
               2,025                (1,506)                     519 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-573-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
                 643                     158                     801 

New developments in Mustang Bayou 
Utility Service Area approved by City 

Council to provide permanent 
wastewater treatment capacity at District 

Plant for City's contribution.

Not selling bonds in FY18, but will occur 
in FY19. Adjusting accounts accordingly.

Bond Interest expense  and Pay agent 
/Registrar/ESC exp budget adjustments 

to cover overage.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.



Funding Source Account Number
Account Number 

Description

FY 2018 
Original 
Budget

FY 2018 
Proposed 

Budget 
Amendment

FY 2018 
Amended 
Budget 

Purpose/Description JRN# TYPE

Reduce Budget Amendment Line Item 
from FY18 Extension BA. Journals 195 & 

227, Lines 26 & 552

Exhibit A-Budget Amendment Details

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-573- OVERTIME                  555                (1,408)                   (853)

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-573-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
             40,995                15,363                56,358 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-573-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
               3,099                       97                  3,196 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-573-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
               2,025                     889                  2,914 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-573-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
                 643                     733                  1,376 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51001-57-576- REGULAR SALARIES              27,317                29,625                56,942 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-576- OVERTIME                5,007                (5,007)                       -   

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-576-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
           183,511                (3,255)              180,256 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-576-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
             17,551                (1,505)                16,046 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-576-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
             20,199                  5,444                25,643 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-576-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
               3,530                  1,284                  4,814 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-577- OVERTIME                  497                   (497)                       -   

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-577-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
             39,312                   (752)                38,560 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-577-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
               3,517                   (927)                  2,590 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-577-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
                 661                     116                     777 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51001-57-578- REGULAR SALARIES              31,767                  2,695                34,462 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51004-57-578- OVERTIME                7,879                (7,879)                       -   

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51106-57-578-
CONTINGENCY 

WORKERS
           330,246                19,890              350,136 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51302-57-578-
TAXES, SOCIAL 

SECURITY
             30,369                     385                30,754 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51403-57-578-
ER-GROUP HEALTH 

INSURANCE
             33,641                  6,618                40,259 

MC Recreation & Leisure LGC 571-51710-57-578-
WORKERS 

COMPENSATION
               6,130                  2,974                  9,104 

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.

To reverse salary savings entries that 
were included on the 3 month FY18 
budget amendment approved and 

entered on June 18, 2018.



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 17, 2018 

 
11. RESOLUTIONS  

(a) Consider a resolution amending the bylaws for the Missouri City Parks Foundation. 
 

 

 
Cover memo – Forthcoming  



 

Amendment to Bylaws 2018.doc  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-18-__ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY, TEXAS, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. R-16-11, ADOPTED ON 
MARCH 21, 2016; AMENDING THE BYLAWS OF THE MISSOURI CITY 
PARKS FOUNDATION; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO 
THE SUBJECT. 

*  *  *  *  * 
  
 WHEREAS, on November 20, 2017, the City Council of the City of Missouri City, 
Texas adopted Order No. O-17-10, which changed the City of Missouri City’s (the 
“City’s”) fiscal year from July 1 through June 30 to October 1 through September 30 
pursuant to the results of the November 7, 2017 special election; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Missouri City Parks Foundation has, in 
accordance with the procedures established in the Missouri City Parks Foundation’s (the 
“Parks Foundation’s”) bylaws, elected to amend the Parks Foundation’s bylaws in order 
to change the Parks Foundation’s fiscal year to reflect the amended dates of the City’s 
fiscal year; now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 

Section 1. City of Missouri City Resolution No. R-16-11, adopted on March 21, 
2016, ratifying the creation of Missouri City Parks Foundation and the submission of the 
application for formation thereof; approving bylaws for said Foundation; providing for 
repeal; providing for severability; and making certain findings related thereto, is hereby 
amended as set forth herein. 

Section 2. Exhibit B of said Resolution No. R-16-11 is hereby amended by 
deleting Exhibit “B” thereof, and substituting therefor, a new Exhibit “B,” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3. This Resolution is effective immediately upon its passage and 
approval. 

 Section 4. Repeal. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith, if 
any, shall be and are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict only. 



 

Amendment to Bylaws 2018.doc  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Section 5. Severability. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this resolution, or the application of same to a particular set of persons or 
circumstances, should for any reason be held to be invalid or adjudged unconstitutional 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining 
portions of this resolution, and to such end the various portions and provisions of this 
resolution are declared to be severable; and the City Council of the City of Missouri City, 
Texas, declares it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding 
the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether 
there be one or more parts. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of September, 2018. 
 

 

 

__________________________________ 
Allen Owen, Mayor 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
__________________________  __________________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary  E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 



Exhibit “B” 

 

BYLAWS OF THE 
MISSOURI CITY PARKS FOUNDATION 
A TEXAS NON-PROFIT CORPORATION 

 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1. In this Article: 

 Board means the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 

 City means the City of Missouri City, Texas. 

 City Council means the city council of the City of Missouri City, Texas. 

 Corporation means the Missouri City Parks Foundation. 

 

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSE 

2.1. The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes allowed by 
law, including supporting the City in the City’s acquisition, ownership, construction, development, 
improvement, operation, or maintenance of land, equipment and facilities owned or controlled by 
the City including land, facilities, equipment and activities for recreation, entertainment, sports, 
the arts, and similar activities that might benefit the citizens of the City of Missouri City.  

2.2. The Corporation will focus its efforts on encouraging persons, businesses, and corporations, 
to make contributions of funds, equipment or donations of real estate or other property of value, 
to the foundation. 

2.3. The Corporation may not: 

2.3.1. Engage in any activities that do not further its purposes as set forth in this Certificate or take 
any action that would be inconsistent with the requirements for a tax exemption for charitable 
organizations under Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and Section 501(c)(3) and Texas Tax Code 
Section 11.18(c) and related regulations and rulings; 

2.3.2. Pay any of its net earnings for the benefit of any private individual, other than for services 
rendered or as provided for in these Bylaws; or 

2.3.3. Devote a substantial part of its activities or income to attempting to influence legislation or 
the outcome of any public election. 

 

 



MISSOURI CITY PARKS FOUNDATION BYLAWS/Page 2  

ARTICLE 3. POWERS 

3.1. The Corporation has all the powers of a Texas non-profit corporation and will operate in 
compliance with State law, including Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organization Code, the 
Corporation’s Certificate of Formation, and these adopted Bylaws. 

 

ARTICLE 4. OFFICES 

4.1. The Corporation’s initial office will be located at City Hall, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri 
City, Texas 77489. 

 

ARTICLE 5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

5.1. Number. The Board will have no less than five, but no more than fifteen directors. 

5.2. Qualifications. To qualify to serve as a director, a person must be committed to achieving the 
Corporation’s purpose with the financial skills, knowledge, experience or resources necessary to 
achieve those purposes. 

5.3. Appointment, Vacancies, and Removal. The City Council appoints the persons to serve as 
directors on the Board, will fill vacancies on the Board, and may remove a director at any time. 

5.4. Terms. Directors serve two-year terms that begin on July 1 and end on June 30. Directors 
continue to serve until their successors are appointed. To provide for staggered terms, the City 
Council may appoint a specified number of the initial directors to serve one-year terms. 

5.5. Compensation and Expenses. Directors will not receive a salary or other fixed compensation 
for their service, but may be reimbursed for expenses incurred under written policies approved by 
the Board. 

5.6. Meetings. Meetings will be held as requested by the President or a majority of the Board or at 
regular intervals as determined by the Board. 

5.7. Quorum. A majority of the appointed directors are a quorum for the transaction of corporate 
business. The directors may, by resolution, approve procedures to allow directors who cannot 
attend a meeting to participate in the meeting by telephone or video conference and vote on matters 
that come before the board. 

5.8. Executive Committee. The board of directors by resolution may elect three or more other 
directors to serve on an executive committee which will include the President that has and may 
exercise the authority of the board of directors to the extent specified in the resolution. The 
designation of the executive committee and the delegation of authority to the committee does not 
operate to relieve the board of directors, or an individual director, of any responsibility imposed 
on the board or director by law. 

 



MISSOURI CITY PARKS FOUNDATION BYLAWS/Page 3  

5.9. Conflict of Interest. No director of the Board shall have an interest in any contract or 
transaction involving the Corporation in violation of any policy adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Missouri City or any charter provision of the City of Missouri City applicable to City 
officers and employees, Chapter 171 of the Texas Local Government Code, or any provision of 
any other law that establishes standards of conduct or governs interests in contracts by directors of 
nonprofit corporations. 

 

ARTICLE 6. OFFICERS 

6.1. Officers. The City Council will appoint a director to serve as president of the corporation, who 
serves at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed at any time. The Board will elect 
directors to serve as vice-president, secretary, and treasurer, who serve at the pleasure of the board 
and may be removed at any time. 

6.2. Term. Officers serve one-year terms, or until their successors are appointed. 

6.3. President. The president presides at all Board meetings, supervises the business of the 
Corporation, and performs other duties assigned by the Board. The president executes contracts 
and other documents evidencing actions approved by the Board. Not less than once a year, the 
president will give a report to the City Council on the Corporation’s activities and financial 
condition. The president may appoint directors to standing or temporary committees to assist or 
make recommendations to the Board. 

6.4. Vice-President. The vice-president performs the duties of the president in the president’s 
absence and performs other duties as assigned by the president or the Board. 

6.5. Secretary. The secretary notifies the directors of Board meetings, records votes and minutes 
of the Board’s meetings, is the custodian of the Corporation’s records, and performs other duties 
as assigned by the president or the Board. 

6.6. Treasurer. The treasurer keeps accurate accounts of the Corporations’ expenditures and 
revenues, insures the Board’s financial policies are followed, makes regular financial reports to 
the Board, provides for an independent audit of the Corporation’s accounts as requested by the 
Board, and performs other duties as assigned by the president or the Board. 

6.7. Compensation. Directors will not receive a salary or other fixed compensation for their 
service, but may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses arising from their duties under policies 
approved by the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 



MISSOURI CITY PARKS FOUNDATION BYLAWS/Page 4  

ARTICLE 7. FINANCE 

7.1. Fiscal Year. The Corporation’s fiscal year is October 1st to September 30th. 

7.2. Annual Budget. The Board will adopt an annual budget which specifies revenues and major 
expenditures by type and amount.  

7.3. Checks, Drafts, or Orders for Payment. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of 
corporate funds may be signed manually or electronically, as approved by the corporate officers 
specified in a resolution adopted by the Board, or in the absence of a resolution, by at least two 
officers.  

7.4. Deposits. All corporate funds will be deposited in a bank or other depositories selected by the 
Board. 

 

ARTICLE 8. MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1. Dissolution. Upon the Corporation’s dissolution, its assets will be distributed to the City. 

8.2. Amendment to Certificate of Formation or Bylaws. An amendment to the Corporation’s 
Certificate of Formation or these Bylaws is not effective until approved by the Board and the City 
Council. 

8.3. Controlling Law and Conflicts. These Bylaws are subject to the Texas Business Organization 
Code, including Chapter 22, governing nonprofit corporations. If there is a conflict between these 
Bylaws and the mandatory provisions of the Texas Business Organization Code, the latter controls. 

8.4. Bylaws Effective Date. These Bylaws are effective on the date approved by the initial Board 
of Directors. Any amendments to the Bylaws are effective on the latest date of the dates approved 
by the Board and the City Council. The initial Bylaws were adopted by the initial Board of 
Directors on March 21, 2016. 

 



Exhibit “B”

BYLAWS OF THE
MISSOURI CITY PARKS FOUNDATION
A TEXAS NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

.  .  .  .

ARTICLE 7. FINANCE

7.1. Fiscal Year. The Corporation’s fiscal year is JulyOctober 1st to JuneSeptember 30th.

.  .  .  .

 



Document comparison by Workshare on Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
4:37:11 PM
Input:

Document 1 ID Original.doc 
Description  
Document 2 ID Modified.doc 
Description  
Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 
Deletion 
Moved from 
Moved to 
Style change 
Format change 
Moved deletion 
Inserted cell  
Deleted cell  
Moved cell
Split/Merged cell
Padding cell

Statistics:

Count
Insertions 2
Deletions 2
Moved from 0
Moved to 0
Style change 0
Format changed 0
Total changes 4



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 17, 2018 

 
12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Discussion, review, and possible action regarding a meeting or activity of one or more of the following 
entities (each entity refers to a City of Missouri City entity unless otherwise indicated):  
Charter Review Commission, Community Development Advisory Committee, Construction Board of 
Adjustments, Electrical Board, Parks Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone Boards, Fort Bend Chamber of Commerce, Houston-Galveston Area Council, Fort Bend Regional 
Council, Texas Municipal League, Fort Bend County, Harris County, Gulf Coast Building and Construction 
Trades Council, Mayor’s Youth Commission, Finances and Services Committee, Fort Bend Leadership 
Forum, Fort Bend County Drainage District, Economic Development Committee, Missouri City Parks 
Foundation, Missouri City Police and Fire Auxiliary, Livable Community Committee, Texas Parkway Alliance, 
High Performance Organization Committee, Missouri City Juneteenth Celebration Foundation, Fort Bend 
County Mayor and Council Association, METRO, Planning, Development and Infrastructure Committee, Fort 
Bend Independent School District, Greater Fort Bend Economic Development Coalition, Transportation 
Policy Council, Community Development Advisory Committee, Veterans Memorial Committee, Missouri City 
Recreation and Leisure Local Government Corporation, Missouri City Development Authority, and the 
Greater Houston Partnership and Emergency Management updates. 
 
13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council may go into Executive Session regarding any item posted on the Agenda as 
authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
14. RECONVENE 

Reconvene into Regular Session and Consider Action, if any, on items discussed in Executive 
Session. 
 
15. ADJOURN 

 

 

 
 


	September 17, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda
	1. ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. STAFF REPORTS
	September 4, 2018 Special City Council Meeting minutes
	September 4, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting minutes
	September 5, 2018 Special City Council Meeting minutes
	September 10, 2018 Special City Council Meeting minutes
	6b Cover memo re River Pointe Church
	Ordinance
	Ordinance O-15-62
	Application
	Pavilion example images
	Ortho map
	Notice of public hearing
	Rezoning application protest letters analysis

	6c Cover memo re Dry Creek Village
	Ordinance
	Changes marked
	Ordinance O-16-13
	Application
	Letter of owner authorization
	Dry Creek Village conceptual plan
	Developer proposed fence layout
	Developer fence color proposal
	Ortho map
	Notice of public
	Rezoning application protest letters analysis
	Letters of protest

	6d Cover memo re mobile food units
	Ordinance

	7. (a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances
	7b1 Cover memo re PID No. 2
	Ordinance
	Plat of Section 8 of Lakeshore Harbour residential subdivision
	Copy of published notice

	7b2 Cover memo re adoption of budget
	Ordinance
	General Fund Revenue and Expense Summary
	Combined Fund Statement
	City Manager’s Budget Message

	7b3 Cover memo re public hearing fopr proposed tax rate
	7b4 Cover memo re pumpage fee
	Schedule 3 – GRP Fee Analysis Summary

	8a Cover memo re votes for candidates of TMLIRP
	9a Cover memo re use of station five as a mini sub station for FBC deputy's
	Draft agreement

	9b Cover memo re sidewalk construction
	Bid tabulation sheet

	9c Cover memo re pavement construction
	Bid tabulation sheet

	9d Cover memo re concrete pavement lifting
	Bid tabulation sheet

	9e Cover memo re animal shelter agreement with Stafford
	Amended Interlocal agreement

	9f Cover memo re farmers market request
	Written request submitted to Development Services for Approval.
	Power Point Presentation (Submitted by the Applicants)

	10a Cover memo re budget amendment
	Ordinance
	Exhibit A

	11a Cover memo re bylaws of the Parks Foundation
	Resolution
	Changes Marked 

	12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS
	13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION
	14. RECONVENE
	15. ADJOURN



